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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
5 755 48 22

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
hereby present the audited consolidated financial results of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023 (the “Year”).

The operating environment in the past three years has been volatile. In
Year 2023, the PRC re-opened including removal of strict border
controls and lockdowns in cities with rising COVID-19 infections. This
good news like bringing a ray of warmth to the frigid global economy.
Many industries started to resume.

Unfortunately, the war in which Russia invaded Ukraine (the “War”)
reaches stalemate in 2023. At the same time, the Israeli-Palestinian
conflict suddenly emerged, exacerbating the international changes. In
the face of the complex and uncertain macro-environment and
changes in the industry ecology, the Group has always maintained
strategic focus and promoted the operational integration and
efficiency enhancement of its business divisions, which has contributed
to the steady growth of its operating results.

In Year 2023, the Company completed of subscription of new shares
under a specific mandate. The Company intended to apply the net
proceeds for the expansion of products portfolio and for updating the
equipment of the EMS and Distribution Production Businesses. As a
result, the gross profit of the EMS and Distribution Production
Businesses increased was mainly contributed by the cost saving
arising from automation of the production and the drop in material
cost upon the resumption of supply chain from the lapse of the
Covid-19 pandemic crisis. As a result the gross profits margin of the
group from approximately 19.2% for the year ended 31 December 2022
increased to approximately 27.3 for the year ended 31 December 2023,

The Company achieved steady progress in business development,
rapidly strengthened its fundamental capabilities, continuously
amplified its distinctive advantages and deepened innovation and
reform, laying a more solid foundation for its long-term development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHRES

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our staff for their diligence and dedication during the
year. | would also thank all our shareholders, stakeholders, customers
and business partners for their unfailing supporting and trust for the
Group.

Lin Dailian
Chairman

28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year 2023, in the face of the complex and uncertain macro-
environment and changes in the industry ecology, the Group
maintained strategic focus and promoted the operational integration
and efficiency enhancement of its business divisions, which has
contributed to the steady growth of its operating results.

During the epidemic, the working environment changed to more full-
time employees work from home or choosing hybrid work model and
online meeting become more popular which lessen the use of
communication product in office. At the same time, the War reaches
stalemate in 2023 and affect the business of European market. As a
result the revenue of the EMS and Distribution of Communications
Products Businesses continuous decrease from approximately
HK$521.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately HK$454.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group commenced a Money Lending business in 2022 which
generated approximately HK$0.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.

During the year 2023, the Group commenced an energy storage
products business. The revenue of Real Estate Supply Chain Services
and Energy Storage Products generated approximately HK$19.8
million (2022: HK$7.4 million).

Combined the aforesaid reasons, the Group generates total revenue of
approximately HK$502.0 million, decreased by approximately HK$27.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank and cash balances
totaling approximately HK$271.6 million (2022: HK$252.2 million) with
efforts made to maintain a healthy financial position.

In EMS segment, there are two main groups of products, namely
communication and non-communications products whereas non-
communication products mainly included appliances and appliances
control products and multimedia products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The EMS and Distribution of Communications Products Businesses

The EMS and Distribution of Communication Products businesses
contributed revenue of approximately HK$444.2 million (2022:
HK$502.6 million) and HK$10.4 million (2022: HK$18.5 million),
respectively, to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The decrease in the revenue of the EMS Businesses was resulting
mainly from the decrease in the business of European market. The
continuous decrease in the revenue of and Distribution of
Communications Products was mainly caused by decreasing in the
demand of the communication product in North America. More full-
time employees work from home or choosing hybrid work model and
online meeting become more popular which lessen the use of
communication product in office.

Real Estate Supply Chain Services and Energy Storage Products (the
“RES and ESP”)

Revenue from the Real Estate Supply Chain Services operation
provides two types of services, comprising the real estate advisory
service and real estate purchase service related to investment
opportunities in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia markets on behalf of
customers. In 2023, the Company changed the Company name to
China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited in order to
develop the energy storage business. Revenue of Real Estate Supply
Chain Services is recognised at a point in time upon completion of
each service. The RES and ESP segment has contributed
approximately HK$19.8 million (2022: HK$7.4 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The RES and ESP’s revenue increased due
to the ESP business commenced in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Securities and Other Assets Investment and Others

The Securities and Other Assets Investment and Others business
contributed revenue of approximately HK$27.3 million (2022: HK$0.7
million) to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Money Lending

The money lending operations of the Group are managed through our
wholly-owned subsidiary — Be Smart Finance Limited with money
lenders licenses issued under the Money Lenders Ordnance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group’s money lending business is
broadly classified into four loan categories, including: (i)property
mortgage loans; (ii) other secured loans; (iii) guaranteed loans; and (iv)
unsecured loans. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group’s money lending business was focused on unsecured loans. The
Group plans to explore further potential money lending business
opportunities and the Group’s assessment of achieving reasonable risk
and returns. There is no specific target customer group. The source of
customers of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023
were mainly through the referrals of past and existing customers of
the Group. The source of funds for the money lending business is
generally funded by the internal resources of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s money lending
segment generated revenue of approximately HK$0.2 million,
accounting for approximately 0.05% of overall revenue. Money lending
business is a newly commenced segment of the Group. Operating loss
from this business segment amounted to approximately HK$1.1 million.
As at 31 December 2023, we had 4 active loan accounts, all of them
are individual customers. As at 31 December 2023, the percentage of
the amount of loans and interest receivables from these four
customers to the total loans and interest receivables under money
lending segment are ranging approximately 20.5% to 33.4%.

The management remains alert and will prudently maintain effective
controls and procedures for loan approvals, credit monitoring as well
as recovery and compliance matters applicable to all aspects of the
money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R AT

Loan Portfolio e

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s loan portfolio by categoriesis R-ZE-_=F+-A=+—8 ' "&EEIREH|
shown as below: P NERMAATIRIOT ¢

Loan

% of matured but
Loan total loan not settled; % of
principal principal or Loan not past due
asat Interest asat matured but loans to
Number of 31 December rate per 31 December with interest relevant
loans 2023 annum 2023 Duration overdue principal

R=B==f

R-E-=F tZA BRI EISES
+=A =t-H ERER R BHER
=t—-Ai HERAE REEERE 518
EREE Exxe ENE SBEESL HR BAHETR AEESH

HK$000 HK$000

T TR

Individual loan: BAER
— unsecured loan —BERER 4 2,390 10% 100% Within 1 Year - 0%
—4R

Total @t 4 2,390 100% - 0%

The following is the breakdown of the amount of loan and interest T&# &5 —E-_=F+_-_A=+—HEKEZ
receivables and allowance for expected credit losses as at 31  RFELARTELEEEIEREHRL -
December 2023:

As at 31 December 2023
R=-ZE-=%+=-H=+—H

Gross amount Net amount

of loan and Allowance of loan and

Loan interest for expected interest
principal receivables credit losses receivables

FEWRERK BHEE ERERK
EREE FEBE BiRRE MNEFHE

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAETT FAETT

Individual loan: BAAES:
— unsecured loan — EIEFER 2,390 89 (748) 1,731
Total et 2,390 89 (748) 1,731

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 4 (2022: 4) active accounts, R-E-=€+=-A=+—H K&EFEH4LF
all of them were individual loans unsecured loans (2022 4). (ZEZZF 4@ EBRERFP 23(=F
ZZF A REANEERTER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

The following is an aging analysis of net amount of loan and interest
receivables based on the due date at the end of the reporting period:

TREIIHRERRRIZZHA
KoM SRR RR e DT

EITH R E R

HK$'000

FAT

Not yet due i) A< 480 2 1,731
Overdue 750 55

— 1-30 days —1230H -

— 31-60 days —31260H -

— 61-90 days — 612 90H -

— over 90 days —90BM -

Total @t 1,731

During the Year, interest income generated from the top five
customers accounted for approximately 0.05% (2022: 0.02%) of the
Group’s total revenue, while the single largest customers accounted
for approximately 0.02% (2022: 0.01%) of the Group’s total revenue.

As at 31 December 2023, loan and interest receivables balance of the
largest and top five customers under money lending segment
accounted for approximately 33.4% (2022: 33.4%) and 100% (2022:
100%) of the Group’s total loan and interest receivables balance
respectively.

Internal Control

The management remains alert and will prudently maintain effective
controls and procedures for loan approvals, credit monitoring as well
as recovery and compliance matters applicable to all aspects of the
money lending business.

The Group has established strict credit policies and controls to reduce
all associated credit risks. Various approval criteria are carefully
considered during the credit assessment stage, including verification
of identity, repayment ability, and relevant investigative results after
carrying out due diligence during the application procedure. The
Group’s management are responsible for assessing and approving
loans within predetermined credit limits. They also regularly oversee
the Group’s credit policies and credit quality of the Group’s loan
portfolio. Increasing effort has also been put in the recovery
procedures for loans receivables. Legal actions will be taken on a case-
by-case basis, having considered the normal market practice as well
as the actual circumstances during the Group’s credit collection
processes and negotiations with relevant customers in order to
minimise any possible credit losses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Loan Approval

Before any loan applications can be granted, internal credit
assessments would have to be performed to decide the proposed loan
size and interest rate charged. The internal credit assessment include,
but is not limited to, (i) verification and background checking, such as
the identity documents and statutory records (i.e. identity card,
address proof, business registration certificate, latest annual return,
etc.); (i) income or asset proof of the borrower and guarantor, such as
share certificates, bank statements and securities statements, etc.; (iii)
the evaluation of the value of collateral; and (iv) the verification of the
authenticity of the information provided. Furthermore, the Group
would perform public searches on the borrower and guarantor to
ensure compliance with the relevant requirements and regulations of
anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing (“AML & CTF”).
There are no specific requirements on their income and/or asset
threshold set by the Group. Normally, the management would
determine and approve the loan amount and interest rates based on
the relevant financial strength, repayment ability as well as the overall
quality of borrowers/guarantors and the respective collaterals, subject
to business negotiations and market conditions.

Loan Renewal

For loan renewal, the Group would carry out an updated assessment
similar to that during the loan approval stage. In addition, the Group
would assess the borrower’s past repayment record and changes in
market circumstance before making a decision on loan renewal and
the relevant interest rate charged.

Recovery and Compliance Matters

After the loan is granted, the Group would conduct review on the
repayment records and loan portfolio on a regular basis, and in
particular, any past due loan accounts. When considered appropriate,
the Group would further (i) obtain relevant updated information and
documents from the borrower; and (ii) perform public searches on the
borrower to assess the recoverability of loan. Putting every possible
effort on loan recovery, appropriate course of actions, such as sending
legal demand letters, legal proceeding arrangements, etc., would be
considered by the Group, subject to the recovery situation of the loans
and negotiation with customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

As a licenced money lender in Hong Kong, the Group shall ensure
compliance with the applicable laws, regulations and codes of all the
relevant regulatory authorities, in particular, the Money Lenders
Ordinance and the relevant requirements and regulations of AML &
CTF.

In order to ensure the compliance with the abovementioned
requirements throughout the course of conducting the money lending
business, loan transaction review would be conducted upon the grant
of the loan as an on-going monitoring purpose. The overall internal
control system, which includes the implementation of the Group’s
credit policy, operation manual and other related internal control
measures would be reviewed by the management on a regular basis
and the policies would be devised and revised from time to time when
considered necessary.

Interest rates

In addition to the aforementioned factors included in the Group’s
credit approval policy, when deciding the interest rate for loans, the
Group would also take a holistic view in the assessments of setting
loan terms based on the general market environment at the time,
interest rate of competitors at the time, the amount of the Group’s
funds available and also the overall quality of the borrower.

For the Group’s existing loan portfolio as at 31 December 2023, the
effective interest rates were matched and charged to customers of
differing risk levels, at 10% per annum. The major terms of loans
granted include loans receivable, interest rate and maturity date.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded an
impairment loss on loans and interest receivable of approximately
HK$0.7 million. The Group’s impairment losses relate primarily to the
expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance for loans and interest
receivables. Generally speaking, ECL assessments are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience adjusted for factors that
are specific to particular debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions as at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions. The ECL on loans receivables
are assessed individually for those debtors with significant balances
and/or those collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings. Each grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure that each of its constituents continues to share similar credit
risk characteristics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Geographical Analysis

Revenue from the major European countries (Switzerland, Belgium
and France) totalled approximately HK$174.6 million (2022: HK$228.3
million), and accounted for approximately 34.8% (2022: 43.1%) of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023. The U.S.A,
market contributed approximately HK$122.7 million (2022: HK$102.6
million) in revenue and accounted for approximately 24.4% (2022:
19.4%) of the Group’s revenue. The PRC (including Hong Kong) and
other countries accounted for approximately HK$84.9 million (2022:
HK$57.2 million) and HK$119.8 million (2022: HK$141.2 million),
respectively, representing approximately 16.9% (2022: 10.8%) and
23.9% (2022: 26.7%) of the Group’s revenue.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded total
revenue of HK$502.0 million (2022: HK$529.3 million).

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are two broad groups of
business units for segment accounting purpose, EMS and Distribution
whereas the latter representing the distribution of communication
products. In EMS segment, there are two main groups of products,
namely communication and non-communications products whereas
non-communication products mainly included appliances and
appliances control products and multimedia products.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue from EMS
decreased by 11.6% to HK$444.2 million (2022: HK$502.6 million),
whereas the revenue from Distribution segment decreased by 43.7%
to HK$10.4 million (2022: HK$18.5 million).

The decrease in the revenue of EMS segment was resulting mainly
from the decrease in the business of European market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

The continuous decrease in the revenue of Distribution segment was
mainly caused by decreasing in the demand of the communication
product in North America. More full-time employees work from home
or choosing hybrid work model and online meeting become more
popular which lessen the use of communication product in office.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by 14.7% from HK$427.9 million in 2022 to
HK$365.1 million in 2023 is mainly caused by the decrease in the level
of sales for the year 2023 and the decrease in material cost due to
recovery from Covid-19 pandemic.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 35.0% from HK$101,4 million to HK$136.9
million, while the gross profit margin increased by 8.1% which was
mainly contributed by the cost saving arising from automation of the
production and the drop in material cost upon the resumption of
supply chain from the lapse of the Covid-19 pandemic crisis.

Impairment losses

The Group made overall impairment losses of approximately HK$7.5
million on certain assets for the year ended 31 December 2023,
representing a decrease by approximately HK$5.0 million (2022:
HK$12.5 million). It was mainly comprised of impairment losses on
intangible assets of approximately HK$2.6 million, impairment losses
on other receivables (net of reversal) of approximately HK$9.2 million
and impairment losses on trade receivables of approximately HK$0.2
million, which offset by reversal of impairment losses on loan to other
parties (net of reversal) of approximately HK$4.5 million.

Other income

The other income is increased from approximately HK$9.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$13.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The increase was mainly due to
interest income on bank fixed deposit and bank deposit increased
from approximately HK$2.7 million to approximately HK$8.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of HK$38.0 million (2022: HK$30.0
million) accounted for approximately 7.6% in 2023 and 5.7% in 2022 of
the Group’s revenue respectively. The increases are mainly caused by
the increase in the staff cost of HK$8.3 million.

Administration expenses

Administration expenses of HK$88.8 million (2022: HK$105.0 million)
accounted for approximately 17.7% in 2023 and 19.8% in 2022 of the
Group’s revenue respectively. The decreases are mainly caused by
decreased in the staff cost of approximately HK$8.2 million.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure slightly decreased by
approximately HK$1.2 million from approximately HK$14.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$13.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs were approximately HK$3.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and HK$4.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2022, represented approximately 0.6% and 0.8% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The finance costs decreased was mainly due to the
decreases of finance lease liabilities during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Income tax expense

Income tax expenses during the year ended 31 December 2023
included approximately HK$3.1 million of current tax charge (2022:
HK$3.6 million). The Group’s income tax expense represents amounts
of income tax paid by the Group, at the applicable tax rates in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC
and U.S.A., The Group had no tax payable in other jurisdictions during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

The Group’s effective income tax rates for years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 were approximately 38.0% and (7.4%), respectively.

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributed to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$5.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: loss of
approximately HK$54.0 million). The Group’s net profit margin
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately 1.0% (2022: loss margin 10.2%).

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to
approximately HK$92,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: profit of approximately HK$2.0 million).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows.

As at 31 December 2023, the bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$271.6 million (2022: HK$252.2 million), representing
an increase of approximately HK$19.4 million from 2022. Respective
sum of approximately 25.9%, 68.1% and 6.0% of the bank and cash
balances was denominated in RMB, USD and HKD, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy
position at 2.6 times (2022: 1.9 times).

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of the borrowings were
approximately HK$4.8 million. The borrowings represented the loans
from financial institutions and loan from an independent third party of
approximately HK$4.3 million (2022: HK$13.0 million) and HK$0.5
million (2022: HK$0.6 million), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Exchange risk exposure

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in the PRC and Hong Kong denominated
in RMB and USD, respectively. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had
minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies, i.e. RMB and USD, used by the
respective group entities, or in USD for the respective group entities
with HKD being the functional currency. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HKD and USD to be insignificant for transactions denominated in USD.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 31 December 2023, the Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps,
hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions. The Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments as at 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$0.3 million (2022: HK$0.6 million).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no pledged assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Financial guarantee contract

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) to one of the suppliers of an overseas
subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was disposed on 7
October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of US$2.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million), representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary and the
supplier. The supplier subsequently sold the trade balance to a third

party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regards, as at 31 December 2023
and 2022, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the sum limited
to US$650,000, subject to the full payment of the final settlement
effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the
Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to the
Guarantee.

Contingent liabilities

The Group and the Company did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Significant investments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held listed equity investments of
approximately HK$nil (2022: HK$nil million). No dividend income was
received during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 in
respect of these investments.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint ventures

Save for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Shanghai Rongshu
Business Consulting Co., Ltd., the Group had no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures during
the Year.

Apart from the aforesaid transactions, there were no other material
investment by the Group that should be notified to the Shareholders
of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Human resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 930 employees
in various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and the PRC. In
order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure smooth
operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it offers
competitive remuneration packages, with reference to market
conditions, individual qualifications and experience.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and decided by
the remuneration committee and the Board respectively, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Share option scheme

On 17 February 2020, the Company proposed to the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting to be held on 10
March 2020 (the “2020 EGM”) to terminate the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 31 December 2010 (the “2010 Share
Option Scheme”) and to approve and adopt a new share option
scheme (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”). Details of the New Share
Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated 17
February 2020.

On 10 March 2020, at the 2020 EGM, the proposed adoption of the
2020 Share Option Scheme and the termination of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme were duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

On 28 January 2021, 35,671,850 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Group (the
“Grantees”), subject to acceptance of the Grantees, under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 10 March 2020. The share
options granted shall vest in the Grantees in accordance with their
respective the timetable.

Details of the grant of share options are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 January 2021,

On 14 June 2022, 53,328,000 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain employees of the Group, subject to
acceptance of the employees, under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 10 March 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W DT

Details of the grant of share options are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 14 June 2022.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which share options were exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2022 was HK$1.06 per share.

On 8 June 2023, at the annual general meeting (the “2023 AGM”), the
Company proposed adoption of 2023 Share Option Scheme and 2023
Share Award Plan and termination of the 2020 Share Option Scheme
were duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll. Details of the
2023 Share Option Scheme and 2023 Share Award Plan are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 11 May 2023 and the poll result of
the 2023 AGM are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
8 June 2023.

On 3 November 2023, 15,695,082 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary share of HK$0.2 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain employees and Director of the Group, subject
to acceptance of the employees and Directors, under the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 8 June 2023. The share options
granted shall vest in the guarantees in accordance with their
respective timetable. Details of the grant of share options are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2023 and 13
November 2023.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which share options were exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$1.9 per share.

As at 1January 2023 and 31 December 2023, the total number of share
options available for grant under the share option scheme were 1,012
and 1,557,836 respectively.

The total number of shares that may be issued in respect of options
granted under all schemes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in
issue for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately 10.7%.

As at the date of the 2023 Annual Report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 18,316,378,
representing approximately 9.4% of the issued shares of the Company
as at such date.

FEARNBERENFBEIRAARBHAS
“TFERATHHEMARE -
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AAANERRER BB - FH_T_=FERKR
BT EI R =T Z = F R RE RN BN
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BRI AE1,01219 121,557,836 17 ©

BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE " BE
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Details of the share option movements during the period from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 under the New Share Option

BMR=B-=F—A—BE-F-=F+=
A=+ B SR STRAE R 8B T R B

Scheme are as follows: EBFEFBOT
Number of share options
BREUR
Effectof  Reallocation
the share during the Grant Exercised Lapsed/
Exercise ~ Outstanding  consolidation year ended during the during the cancelled  Outstanding
price asat asat  31December year ended year ended during asat
Holder of per Share 1 January 30 March 2023 31December  31December  31December 31 December
Share Options Date of Grant Exercise period (note ) 2023 2023 (note’3) 2023 2023 2023 2023
Bz Bz
3 BE BE -3-=f% I
B R-B-=F +=h k- St k- St +-R —EC-cE
8k TECZE ZE=tA =t-HL tZA tZA =t-HL 124
BRE e -A-B  Rfefiz  EEENIR =t+-8 =t-B  EE&M/ =t-8
BEA REBH TEHE (R3£2) WATE L7 (F3)  LEERE LEREGE B WATE
(HK9)
(1)
Executive Directors
HiEs
Lin Dalian 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.127 346 5,333,092 (4,799,783) - - - 533,309
R ——E-fztNB ZE-FtAZt/NBZ
ZFIE-R4A
SNov-23 2024113202612 25 - - 1725291 - - 1725291
ZZE+-fZA -E-ME+-R=AZ
ZFIET-AZA
Bian Sulan 3Nov-23 2024713 =2026.112 25 - - 1725201 - - 1725201
THE ZZE+-RZR  ZBomEH-AZRZE
“EoRET-AZA
Wang Guozhen 28-Jan-21 2021728 = 2026127 346 5333,092 (4,799,783) (533,309) - -
fi i “—F-A-tN\B ZE--ELA-tN\RE
ZRIRE-ACTA
Employees 28-Jan-21 2022128 2026127 346 20,316,607 (18.284946) 533,309 - (476983) 2087987
k& Z—E-AZt/\B ZEZZE-AZTNRE
ZFIE-R4A
Employees 3-Nov-23 2024113202612 25 - - 12244500 - - 12244500
8 ZZE+-BZR ZE-PEt-AZAR
ZZIET-AZA
Total 30,982,791 (27,884,512) - 15,695,082 - (476,983) 18316,378
3
Notes: et -
m The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (28 January ~ (D ARRBENREERIBRERH(ZF=_—F—A

2021) on which the share options were granted was HK$0.35.

2 The exercise price per share of share options has reflected the adjustment in relation to
the share consolidation which completed on 30 March 2023.

3 Mr. Wang Guozhen resigned as executive director and appointed as vice president on 4
April 2023. On 12 June 2023, Mr Wang resigned as vice president and appointed as

senior operation manager.

4) The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (2 November
2023) on which the share options were granted was HK$1.9.

5) The number of share option available grant as at 31 December 2023 was 1,557,836.

@
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4
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Z+N\B) AR THERO0ISETT

BRENEBRITEECRRBEBN _T_=F=A=1
FSER R 1D & DF R 52 -

TEREAEN - ZE-_=—FMNANHEBERTESTIES
EREIERE -RZTZ=FX<A+=H ThEEHEaE
IRVERERSREERE -

ARBBEOHREERHBRERR(—FE_=F+—A
ZR) AT ERLIET -

RZTZ=F+ZA=+—H AI#HETFHERELE
£41557,83617 °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Summary of matters relating to the share option scheme reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee

Grant of share options under the scheme

Having considered that the past performance and contributions to the
Group of the Grantees, the Remuneration Committee and the Board
consider that the grant of such share options with a short vesting
period:

(i) aligns the interests of the Grantees with that of the Company
and the shareholders of the Company as a whole;

(i) rewards and recognises the contribution of the Grantees to the
Group; and

(iii) provides incentive to the Grantees to continue to work for the
success and improved performance of the Group. All of these are
consistent with the purpose of the Scheme.

Performance target

There is no performance target attached with the share options. The
Remuneration Committee has noted that the purpose of the share
option scheme is to provide incentive or reward to the Grantees for
their contribution to the Group and that the share option scheme does
not restrictively specify the contribution. The Remuneration
Committee has also considered (a) the importance of the roles and
responsibilities of the Grantees; (b) the past performance and
contributions of the Grantees; and (c) the expected contributions of
the Grantees to be made to the future development of the Group and
is of the view that the grant of share options without any performance
target aligns with the purpose of the share option scheme.

Clawback mechanism

There is no clawback mechanism attached to the share options. The
share options granted shall lapse and cannot be exercised with
immediate effect if the Grantees, who is an employee (including any
director), ceases to be an employee of the Group or a Director on the
ground including, but without limitation to, that he or she has been
guilty of serious misconduct.

FMZ B eEMBREAERE AR

REF R TRERE

REBARANBERTENEAEENER -
@M;z”@&§$‘\mﬁ BT 2R EAR

() FEARANMNGZEARFRARFBRE
MM R E B0

(i HERBAAFEAEASENER &

(i) BEAERAEBERAEE K R E
REMB AN - FAAMAEG T A EIH
SR

®EER

BERETEMNSRBEZE - FHNZESTE
3 BN E N R AR ASAREERM
TEE R B IR BNk 22 ) - Mg AR ST 23T
WARHBRMELRFMRE - HFHZEEE
ER@AERANACRETHNEZE : (b))
EANBERRBRER k(O EEAKRAS
REBRARRERBIELER - WRARTI
A RIR B M ERET S BRI B
g{j o

(5] 435 444 151
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In respect of the share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2023, the Remuneration Committee considers
that the Scheme is intended to reward eligible participants who have
contributed to the business development of the Group and to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. In addition, the Remuneration Committee also consider
that: (a) the Grantees are eligible participants under the Scheme who
would contribute directly to the overall business performance and
sustainable development of the Group; (b) the granting of share
options to the Grantees is a recognition for their past contributions to
the Group; and (c) the share options are subject to the terms of the
share option scheme which provides for circumstances under which
the share options may lapse. Saved as disclosed above, the Company
did not make any grant of share options to the directors and/or senior
managers of the Group as set forth in Rules 17.03F, 17.06B(7) and
17.06B(8) of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2023.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023

(i) Subscription of new shares under specific mandate and

application for whitewash waiver (the “Subscription of New
Shares”)
On 13 September 2022, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with China New Retail Holding Group
Limited (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 517,600,000 new shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.1855 per subscription share,
with an aggregate consideration of HK$96,014,800. The
subscription shares shall be allotted and issued pursuant to the
specific mandate to be obtained from the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”).

The subscription shares represent (i) approximately 42.9% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company; and (i) 30.0% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the subscription shares.

MBE—_E-_—Fr_FT_=F+=-_A=+—
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Under Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, the Subscriber would be
obliged to make a mandatory general offer to the shareholders
for all the issued shares and other securities of the Company not
already owned or agreed to be acquired by it or parties acting in
concert with it unless the whitewash waiver is obtained from the
executive director of the Corporate Finance Division of the
Securities and Futures Commission or any delegate of the
executive director (the “Executive”). In this regard, an
application will be made by the Subscriber to the Executive for
the granting of the whitewash waiver pursuant to Note 1 on
Dispensations from Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code in respect of
the allotment and issue of the subscription shares.

All conditions precedent under the subscription agreement have
been fulfilled, and the completion took place on 6 February 2023.
Upon completion, 517,600,000 subscription shares were duly
allotted and issued as fully paid by the Company to the
Subscriber at the subscription price of approximately HK$0.1855
per subscription share for the total consideration of
HK$96,014,800 pursuant to the specific mandate obtained at the
EGM held on 10 January 2023.

Details of the Subscription of New Shares are set out in (i) the
announcements of the Company dated 13 September 2022, 14
September 2022, 5 October 2022, 26 October 2022, 25
November 2022 and 2 December 2022; (ii) the circular of the
Company on 15 December 2022 and (iii) the completion
announcement on 6 February 2023.
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)

(iii)

(iv)

26

Share Consolidation

On 24 February 2023, the Company implemented a share
consolidation on the basis that every 10 issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each to be consolidated into 1
consolidated share of HK$0.2 each. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 24 February 2023
and 28 March 2023 and the circular of the Company dated 13
March 2023. The share consolidation has become effective on 30
March 2023.

Placing of new shares

On 20 October 2023, an aggregate of 23,244,000 shares of the
Company with a nominal value of HK$0.2 each has been
successfully placed at HK$1.37 per share. The net proceeds from
the placing shares (after deduction of commission and other
expenses of said placing of new shares) amounted to
approximately HK$30.9 million. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 28 September 2023 and
20 October 2023.

Change of Company Name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 22 September 2023, it
is approved that the english name of the Company be changed
from “Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited.” to “China
Energy Storage Technology Development Limited” and its dual
foreign name in chinese be changed from “ 3R 50 B R B8 &E Rl i &
BRAR to R BEFEEREERBR QR For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
August 2023 and the circular of the Company dated 7
September 2023.

The Company name, stock short name and company logo have
been changed. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 24 October 2023.

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Fund Raising Activity of the Company in the Past Twelve Months

Set out below is the summary of equity fund raising activity of the
Company during the past twelve months immediately preceding the

date of this report:

Net proceeds

PSSR R &

ARPBET —EAANKEE

(approximately) Intended use of net proceeds

BHRAFERERE

TXHINARRRBEEARREBHABET
EAMBEEEESHME

Actual use of net proceeds as
31 December 2023

—E_=f4+ZA=+—-H
BREFHERAR

Date of announcement Fund raising activity
REE REbEE

NERH 5EED (8E4) i
15 October 2021, Rights issue on the basis HK$58.7 million

1 November 2021 and of one (1) rights share

22 November 2021 for every two (2) 58,700,000 /4 7T

existing shares held on

I S i R = the record date

2 -F+-A-AR

ZEZ-F+-AZ1TZH BERRSBRHEREW
QBRRARNEHE—
() B BB By 22
ETTHX

4

Notes:

1)) On 19 December 2023, the Board resolved to change the unutilised net proceeds of 1))
HK$17.1 million, which was originally allocated for the funding of potential merger and
acquisition to the general working capital of the Group. Details can be found in the

announcement published on 19 December 2023.

for the expansion of the Group’s
product range under the EMS
and Distribution Products
Businesses: (i) HK$17.1 million
for the funding of potential
merger and acquisition
opportunities of assisted
reproductive services-licensed
providers located in regions in
the PRC; and (iii) HK$7.4 million
for general corporate and
working capital purposes.

(i) 34,200,000 78 7L A A ER A
SERETHERB RO HE
MEBT2ERZ (i)
17,100,000 BTLARRHE 2
MERE S @R FESE
TERRTS R E 2 BTE O
B 1 R (i) 7,400,000 BT A 1E
—MREEREEESRS -

Azt -

Approximately (i) HK$34.2 million  Approximately (i) HK$34.2 million

was utilized for the expansion
of the Group’s product range
under the EMS and Distribution
Products Businesses; (ii)
HK$4.8 million was utilised for
general corporate and working
capital purposes. The remaining
proceeds will be fully used as
intended by 31 March 2024.
(Notes 1)

#(1) 34,200,000 B T AR ERE

FEEEEFRERER
DHERER TZERZRY
(i) 4,800,000 8 TLAE—
¥NEELCHER - MBAE
FBER_Z-NF=A
=+ —HARERTEREEY
R o (L)

NEZBZ=F+-A+NA EFSHRERARDAM
1S RIRFFLI17100,0008 7T - EREDEAR BEE
ROHRRES  REABFARE-—REEES - B

2R T _=F+-_ATAATIBNAE -
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Net proceeds Actual use of net proceeds as
Date of announcement Fund raising activity (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2023
FEREEE R-BZ=§+=-A=+-H
AERH SEED (##) FEREFERERR FERERRERAR
13 September 2022 and Subscription of new HK$95.5 million (i) approximately HK$14.0 (i)  approximately
6 February 2023 shares under specific million for the repayment of HK$14.0million was used for
mandate 95,500,000 78T borrowings; the repayment of
“E-—FAR+ZHR borrowings and the
—Z-=%-AXH BEENRERETRO () #914000000 B TRERES remaining proceeds will be
EE& fully used as intended by 31
December 2023;
(i) approximately HK$19.5
million for the expansionof (i) #714,000,000 & LE AR
product portfolio of the EMS BREER  FBmEZ0Es
and Distribution Products RZE-_=F+-A=1—
Businesses; ARSI AR EEER
(i) #919500,000FTTHREAX (i)  approximately HK$19.5
ETRERBE R HERE million was utilized for the
BHERES expansion of product
portfolio of the EMS and
(i) approximately HK$21.0 Distribution Business;
million for upgrading the
equipment of the EMSand (i)~ #919,500,000 B L AR ER
Distribution Products EFEEREROBERE
Businesses; and BRERMES
(i) #921,000,0007 L BRI
ETRERB IO HERE
BRI
(iv)  approximately HK$41.0
million as general working
capital of the Group
(iv)  #141000,000 B LB ERE
Er—REEER
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Net proceeds

Date of announcement Fund raising activity (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds
FEREEE

AERH SEED (##) FEREFERERR

Actual use of net proceeds as
31 December 2023
R-B-=5+-A=+-H
FEREFHEERAR

28 September 2023 and Placing of new shares HK$30.9 million  Approximately HK$30.9 million to
20 October 2023 under general mandate the development of renewable
30,900,000 7% T energy charging solutions
“To=FAAZTNBR RE—REERETRN specialized for electric vehicles
“E-=£+HZTH
#930,900,000 BT BRREEE T
FEATRELRATRAIE

(i) approximately HK$1.0
million was utilised for
upgrading the equipment of
the EMS and Distribution
Business as at the date of
this announcement and such
proceeds will be fully utilised
as intended by 30
September 2024; and

(i) #91,000,000 B THGHIE
BERASHEARARET
RERB RO HEREB
R ZERERERRZ

E-NFENAZTBARE
FERSESER

(iv)  approximately HK$41.0
million was fully utilised as
general working capital of
the Group

(iv)  #741,000,0008 T2 EH
BEAEEM—HREEES

Approximately HK$19.1 million was
used to the development of
renewable energy charging
solutions specialized for electric
vehicles and the remaining
proceeds will be fully used as
intended by 30 September 2024.

#119]00,000 /& TE BRHEES)
EERANBARRR SRR
£ FBAEIEER TN
FNA=THARRTERETEY
#H -
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The remaining unutilised net proceeds as at 31 December 2023 of
approximately HK$44.1 million is estimated to be fully utilised
according to the intentions in the year 2024.

PROSPECTS

The PRC government remains determined to make progress on green
and low-carbon development, continuously optimizing policies to
achieve carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals under the new
development philosophy. In order to catch up with the policies, the
Company changed the Company’s name to China Energy Storage
Technology Development Limited in 2023. The Company will
vigorously expand the production and sales of new energy storage
equipment and supply chain services, energy storage system
integration, new energy storage technology and supporting services
businesses in the future. It can seek to improve the profitability of the
Company’s energy storage business under the dual benefits of policies
and market demand and also provide a broader market space for the
Company’s development. The global economy will continue to be
challenging in year of 2024 of the impacts of high interests rates,
geopolitical tension and ongoing military confrontation in East Europe
and Middle East regions. The Group considers the future of the market
is challenging. The Group will continue to closely monitor the market
conditions and take necessary measures to adjust the business
development strategy.

R-E - =F+-_A=+—HHBRTRBHFH
B RIEEEE 4 44100,0008 T BN -

“OFERBRERREEBA -
B

PEIET I KBS e EIRER - THELK
B NERFBRIEXTROBCER MRS E
7 RERBEIK  ARAR T _=FEF
AT BEFEEFRERABR AR - ARFIRE
BANBERIMER TR BEHRMHRER
% RRERMEK - R RERE R AL E R
FE - AIRSRBUR TSR RELALF T RHae
EBHARR BRI - TR BA AR
RIEHEEEANTS=H - —T-0OF 25
X WEBARBER REANFRIEEE
FHBHBESEARNTE  2REBEDBEER
BB - AERERB/ARRTIHITmAE - AEME
BEEZ RIS - WERER M B 38
BEEBHRR -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The new Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) as set out
in existing Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has come into effect on 1
January 2022, their requirements are applicable to the financial year
commencing on 1 January 2022. Currently, the Company has adopted
the code provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Previous CG Code”) as set out in the
previous Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules before the New CG Code
came into effect.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) under Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2023, except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1
and C.1.6 of the Code as described below.

Code Provision C.2.1

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision C.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Lin Dailian, who acts as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company since 12 July 2019, is also responsible for overseeing the
general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Group. The roles of the respective executive directors and senior
management, who are in charge of different functions complement
the role of the chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and consistent
leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.

TEER
ARBBAERSRENDEER
NEBRA RIS

" LAMREEZR

FHNRE LR AM ST R EE AR
([FeEERIU)ER=ZTE=_=_F—A—
A HETEAR _ZE-_—_F—A—A8HK
MEPTRFEE - B - ARRDEAFTLEEA
SFRIAERAT S AT LT AR BIFT 8Os (b 28
ATRIREEERRE (XA EEEERTA])
FTa#k <P RIMESC -
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Code Provision C.1.6

Under the code provision C.1.6, independent non-executive directors
should generally attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to other
pre-arranged business commitments, Mr. Yang Weidong and Mr. Li
Huiwu were not able to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 June 2023.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision C.2.1 and C.1.6 and will continue to consider the feasibility to
comply with the said code provision. If compliance with the said
provision is determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to
assume the different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

Compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.21

On 12 June 2023, Mr. Yang Weidong (“Mr. Yang”) was resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and cease to be the member of
the audit committee and nomination committee and and the Chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 12
June 2023 due to his own business commitment.

Upon the resignation of Mr. Yang, the number of independent non
executive Directors and members of the Audit Committee fell below
the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Following the appointment of Mr. Wu Chi King on 6 September 2023
as an independent non-executive Director and the member of the
audit committee and the chairman of remuneration committee (and
the member of nomination committee of the Company, the Company
has complied with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules in relation to the
composition of the Board and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules with regard
to the composition of the Audit Committee.

On 23 September 2023, Mr. Chak Chi Shing (“Mr. Chak”) has resigned
as an independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company with effect from 23 September 2023
due to his own business commitment.

Upon the resignation of Mr. Chak, the number of independent non
executive Directors and members of the Audit Committee fell below
the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Following the appointment of Ms. Zhang Xiulin on 20 December 2023
as an independent non-executive Director and the member of the
audit committee, the Company has complied with Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules in relation to the composition of the Board and Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit
Committee.

According to Rules 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the Company is
required to meet the requirements set out in Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules within three months after failing to meet the
requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities
transactions by the directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The three independent
non-executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board.
The composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Guozhen (resigned on 4 April 2023)

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan

Mr. Liu Zhiwei

Mr. Li Yinxiang (appointed on 3 March 2023
and resigned on 14 August 2023)

Ms. Bian Sulan (appointed on 12 June 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Yang Weidong (resigned on 12 June 2023)

Mr. Chak Chi Shing (resigned on 23 September 2023)
Mr. Wu Chi King (appointed on 6 September 2023)
Ms. Zhang Xiulin (@ppointed on 20 December 2023)
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The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 46 to 48 in this
annual report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each
of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and
strategic planning experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. All independent
non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic
plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.

Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision C.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days
prior to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes
are prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment on the final version of which are endorsed
in the subsequent Board meeting.
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the date
of this annual report.

ERBUFNTESNESHEREEES - R
BEARFNAKERMR  BREFHERE
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o OmREBUM - $QTEA$¢#&EIHH1WE
BIUIFMITER AW

Number of
meetings attended/held
HESBXE BHREBEXE

Shareholder Board
meeting meeting
Name of member REHE BRRXE EEEER
Executive Directors: HITESE -
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WREE A () 1/4 12/19
Mr. Wang Guozhen ! TEELE! 2/2 8/8
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan MRREE 3] 2 £ 2/4 16/19
Mr. Liu Zhiwei 2ER A 4/4 13/19
Mr. Li Yinxiang 2 ERRE S A2 /1 6/7
Ms. Bian Sulan * TERE LS 1/1 10/10
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIBTESE -
Mr. Chak Chi Shing * BEBTE 4/4 15/15
Mr. Li Huiwu FERLE 2/4 15/19
Mr. Yang Weidong ® BB ES 1/3 9/9
Ms. Zhang Xiulin © R LS N/A A3 A N/A A3 A
Mr. Wu Chi King 7 AT AT E 1/1 4/4

! Resigned on 4 April 2023
2 Appointed on 3 March 2023 and resigned on 14 August 2023

Appointed on 12 June 2023
Resigned on 23 September 2023
Resigned on 12 June 2023
Appointed on 20 December 2023
Appointed on 6 September 2023
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors committed to participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending training or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Directors have been provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements from time to time. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development programs to
develop and refresh their professional knowledge and skills.
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Training for Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023 the Directors participated in
the following trainings:

- Sl

BE_T-_=F+-A=+—HILFE E&F
ZINA T -

Type of training

EIER

Executive Director: HITEE -
Mr. Lin Dailian MEE A A B
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan MR 2 £ B
Ms. Bian Sulan (appointed on 12 June 2023) TEELT (R _E_=F A+ -_HEZT) A B
Mr. Liu Zhiwei BIEE ST E B
Mr. Li Yinxiang IR A B
Mr. Wong Guozhen (resigned on 4 April 2023) TEESRE (RZFE = =F/ HAPYHFF ) B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BN ITEE -
Mr. Wu Chi King LR it

(appointed on 6 September 2023) (RZEZZFNANAEZ() B,C
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE B, C
Ms. Zhang Xiulin ?E?%W‘ﬁj:

(appointed on 20 December 2023) (RZFZ=F+=-H=+HEZF) B
Mr. Chak Chi Shing “i%f‘ﬁi

(resigned on 23 September 2023) (R=ZF-—=FNH -1+ =HEFT) B,C
Mr. Yang Weidong (resigned on 12 June 2023) BRREAE(RZE-ZFNNA+=ZHFHE) B
A attending in house training sessions. A 2NN B IIRE -
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates distributed by the Group relating to B: MEASESENEREE  —BEBKREESHEOR

economy, general business and regulatory matters. & BT R EFTES ©
C attending training sessions required by the relevant professional bodies of which he is a C: SIMEEREEEEE 2R EIRE -
member.

DIVIDEND POLICY f% BUBUR
The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), ARATDEHEMRELE ([REBEE]) - BiEZ
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends 3 - AN A @ AJEEAIARN R B ER Tk & 9 IR AR

to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders of the
Company to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years and shall include
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010.
As at 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee had three members
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wu Chi King (Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and Ms. Zhang Xiulin.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the
Board on 24 February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the
Revised Code, a copy of which is posted to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2023 included the

following:

. to review the financial results and reports of the Company;

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters
and management response;

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management

system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory

requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and

BERZBEZEARBIERENRERAE
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. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor. . EHR NP ERER -
Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year BRZZEEENEE_ZT-_=F+-A=+—H
ended 31 December 2023 and the individual attendance of each IFFEERITT AL EKENERHE X
member is set out below: ;HINT

Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of member REHR HESEIY BTERRE
Mr. Li Huiwu FER LA 3/3
Mr. Yang Weidong HIERLA 1/3
Mr. Chak Chi Shing (Chairman) 2 BEBELE (LE)? 3/3
Mr. Wu Chi King (Chairman) * PRTFRRSCE (E/E) N/A i@
Ms. Zhang Xiulin 4 SR T4 N/A i
Notes: M aE
1 Resigned on 12 June 2023 1 RZTZZ=FA+ZHET
2 Resigned on 23 September 2023 2 i =FNA=Z+=RFE
3 Appointed on 6 September 2023 3 i =FNANBEZE
4 Appointed on 20 December 2023 4 R-ZE-_=F+-A=-1+REZ{T
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The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010.
The Remuneration Committee had three members comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Chi King
(Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin
Dailian.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 and further
revised on 31 March 2023 pursuant to the Revised Code. The terms of
reference are currently available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. No Director shall participate in any discussion
about his or her own remuneration. The remuneration of the Directors
was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions.

Seven meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2023 to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of
each member is set out below.
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BRI N8 - SACBMERIHERMT

Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHESZ HESERE ETEERH
Mr. Yang Weidong (Chairman) ' BEEAEE (L) 2/3
Mr. Wu Chi King (Chairman) 2 TR (EE)? 2/2
Mr. Lin Dailian PRREE ST E 6/7
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE 7/7
Notes: BiE

1. Resigned on 12 June 2023
2. Appointed on 6 September 2023

1. RZZBZ=FA+ZHEE
2. RZTZZ=FNAAEZF
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.
The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
currently available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2023:

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2023 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the re-appointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr. Wu
Chi King.

Five meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the individual attendance of each
member is set out below.
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHA HESERE RITEERE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WREE A (/) 5/5
Mr. Yang Weidong'' BIERLE 1/2
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE 5/5
Mr. Wu Chi King 2 HHFRRSE A 1/1
Notes: M aE

1. Resigned on 12 June 2023 1. RZZE-Z=FXA+-AFHT

2. Appointed on 20 September 2023 2. RZBZ=FNA-THEZE
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises that the Board with a reasonable balance of
skills and experience and sufficient diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business and operation of the Group would be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
enhance the quality of its performance.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, relevant industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made according to the merits of candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
Three of them are independent non-executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, and knowledge.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as
its external auditor for the Year. Analysis of the remuneration in
respect of audit services provided by the external auditor is included
in note 13 to the financial statements in the Annual Report. For the
Year, the total fee paid in respect of the non-audit services is
approximately HK$40,000. The non-audit services was paid for tax
filing services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tam Mei Chu (“Ms. Tam”) is the company secretary of the
Company, with effective from 31 August 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2023, Ms. Tam had complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
Ms. Tam is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management
within the Group. The system is set up to address key business risks of
failure to meet corporate objectives and to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
purpose of such system is to manage and control risks properly, but
not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls, internal audit
and risk management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls on annual basis. The Board considered the system is effective
and adequate. The review has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board ensures the existing
resources, qualifications and experience of staff and their training
programmes and budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board has appointed external independent professionals to
perform internal control review. As approved by the Audit Committee,
the external independent professionals made assessment on various
business and operation risks of the Group. Internal control review of
business and operation cycles is conducted under rotation basis every
year. The Audit Committee reviewed the findings from the external
independent professionals periodically and discussed the
recommended actions needed to be taken to develop and improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The Board will
continue to improve the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems through periodic reviews and recommendations from the
external auditors during their audit and external independent
professionals during their internal control review.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”),
and any information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the
Listing Rules or any inside information required to be disclosed under
the Inside Information Provisions should be announced immediately.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to
as an extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognised that effective communication to shareholders
and potential investors is very important to gain their confidence and
attract new investors.

The Group has taken following measures to enhance the
communication with shareholders and investors of the Group:

(1 Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all
shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated by the
Stock Exchange. All results announcements and reports are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website www.link-asia.com.hk.

(2) The Group releases business update through voluntary
announcement posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website to keep all shareholders updated about the
business development of the Group.

(3) The Group has provided enquiry mailbox (enquiry@1143.com.hk)
and phone number on the Company’s website. Shareholders,
investors and interested parties are welcome to make their
enquiries through email and phone and the management will
provide their timely response.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, the Company has amended its Articles of Association
to among other things, confirm with the amendments to the Listing
Rules and applicable laws of the Cayman Islands. The current version
of the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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EHERFS

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Dailian (“Mr. Lin”), aged 43, joined the Group in July 2019. Mr.
Lin graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics and
later studied at Fudan University. He is a well-known venture capitalist
in China. Mr. Lin has over 17 years of experience in entrepreneurship
and investment, successfully led or participated in the equity
investment and listing of nearly 30 projects. Mr. Lin has been adhering
to the concept of value investment, real estate finance, corporate
strategic planning and business model shaping. He has extensive
practical experience and professional knowledge in business
management, mergers and acquisitions, and restructuring of
companies. With rich entrepreneurial experience and value investment
philosophy, Mr. Lin has been recognized in the financial industry. He
has won the Top 100 Best Venture Capitalists of Hurun 2016 and the
Top 30 Outstanding Innovative People of China’s Equity Investment in
China.

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (“Ms. Lin”), aged 34, holds a Bachelor of
Communication and Information System Management* (15 £2{Z B
EEEIR) from Chinese People’s Liberation Army National University
of Defense Technology, School of Information Communication* (F1
AR BB E BB K 21(E B85 26). She has over 10 years of
experience in operation management and medical business
management. Before joining the Group, she was a general manager of
oversea projects of Shenzhen Jinjiayuan Import and Export Limited*
CFYle = RHELE OB AR, the managing director of Chaoshang
Investment (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* (1 7 3% & = IR R JID
B BR A A]), and executive director of Qianhai Aesthetics and Plastics
Surgery Medical Group (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* (R /&2 3
SECFIDIZERER AR,
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Mr. Liu Zhiwei (“Mr. Liu”), aged 54, obtained a Specialist Certificate
of General Higher Education in Clinical Medicine from Sun Yat-sen
University of Medical Sciences in 1992, a Bachelor’s Degree in Clinical
Medicine in Chinese and Western Medicine from Hunan University of
Chinese Medicine in 2015 and an EMBA degree from Jilin University in
2017. In addition, Mr. Liu is currently an executive vice president of the
Meixian Chamber of Commerce in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group,
he was the chairman of Shenzhen Xinxin Medical Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* CRINTTHBEE R ZEREGR A F]) and the
chairman of Yuanta Chinese Medicine Chain (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu has over 30 years of experience in Chinese medical business and
over 20 years of experience in the operation and management of
Chinese medicine healthcare institutions. He also has solid theoretical
knowledge in the field of Chinese medicine technology and health
preservation by food.

Ms. Bian Sulan (“Ms. Bian”), aged 56, has over 30 years of working
experience in marketing, promotion and media business management.
Before joining the Group, Ms. Bian worked as the general director of a
company mainly engaged in social media business in the PRC, mainly
responsible to manage the company’s daily operations, including but
not limited to marketing promotion, customer management, product
sales and review of the company brand development. She has
extensive experience in sales planning, marketing management and
wide personal networks in different industries.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Chi King (“Mr. Wu”), aged 41, received a Bachelor of
Computer Science from Monash University and is a Certified Practising
Accountant (CPA) of Certified Practising Accountant Australia. He has
accumulated extensive experience in finance and accounting by
working in various listed and sizable companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu
is currently the financial controller of Hang Heung Cake Shop
Company Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability which is a food product manufacturer. Mr. Wu is also an
independent non-executive director of (i) Palinda Group Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8179) since September 2022; (ii) Mansion
International Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange(Stock Code: 8456) since June 2021; and
(ii) Wan Cheng Metal Packaging Company Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8291)
since June 2020.
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Ms. Zhang Xiulin (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 63, has over 20 years of
experience in corporate management and human resources
management. Ms. Zhang served as the executive vice president of
Shanghai Resource Property Consultancy Co., Ltd. ( /8RR E % B
BRI B R A E]) from 2002 to 2010; from 2011 to 2013, she served as
the general manager of Shanghai Fujie Decoration Construction Co,,
Ltd.* (_E)SEAREMTIZABR A F]), which is a joint venture company
of Shanghai Resource Property Consultancy Co., Ltd., where she was
mainly responsible for the company’s annual budget planning, guiding
the establishment and improvement of the company’s various
management systems, as well as the organizing and planning of the
company’s important meetings and major events. Ms. Zhang acted as
the deputy secretary-general of the Shanghai Jiaxing Chamber of
Commerce* ( /& 5 B €) from 2013 to 2020, and was mainly
responsible for event coordination and daily administrative
management of the chamber. Ms. Zhang graduated from the
Department of Business Management of Shanghai Polytechnic
University (/82 — T3 K2 in 1996 with a bachelor’s degree, and
later completed a postgraduate program in human resource
development and management at East China Normal University (R
RIEIA2) in 2006.

Mr. Li Huiwu (“Mr. Li”), aged 45, was appointed in October 2019. Mr.
Li obtained a bachelor degree in accounting from Wuhan Polytechnic
University, the People’s Republic of China in June 2002. He is currently
an affiliated member of The Association of International Accountants
and a certified tax planner and a certified intermediate accountant in
the PRC. He has approximately 16 years of experience in financial
accounting, internal audit and risk management. Mr. Li held various
senior positions in the internal audit department in certain companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange where he was mainly
responsible for internal control and risk management matters.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2023 (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the
Group’s management of significant issues affecting the operation,
including environmental, social and governance issues. This Report is
prepared by the Group with the professional assistance of APAC
Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with the “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate environmental and social responsibility, covering its
operating activities which are considered as material by the Group —
(i) electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) for consumer electronic
products with the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou
(“Guangzhou Factory”) through offering one-stop solutions to a
number of international brand owners (the “EMS” business); (ii)
securities and other assets investments in Hong Kong; and (iii)
provision of real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service in Southeast Asia; (the “Investments and real estate supply
chain services” business) The Group’s headquarter office is located in
Hong Kong and its operation location in PRC with its diversified
customer base covering Japan, Asia-Pacific region, America and
Europe.

REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with the Group via the Group’s social media platforms or email
at enquiry@1143.com.hk.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is achieving and benchmarking with well-recognized
International Guidelines and protocols of Sustainable development. As
a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure the sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole. The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees,
has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high-
quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will
invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes
within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the
potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s activities,
products, services and relationships. It allows the Group to understand
risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationships with each of its key
stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to our business and established various channels
for communication. The following table provides an overview of the
Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SHRE
Government »  Compliance with the applicable * Annual reports, interim reports
B laws and regulations and announcements
BFERAEERER FEBE  PHBRERAE
*  Proper tax payment *  Company website
HOEENTR NGRS
Shareholders and investors * Low risk * Annual general meetings and other
BRRREREE KR shareholder meetings
+ Return on the investment BRERBFERE REMRERE
1% & [0 3R » Annual reports, interim reports
* Information disclosure and and announcements
transparency FEHRE  PHRERASE
EERELEAE +  Company website
+ Protection of interests and fair NGIEE DA
treatment of shareholders * Meetings with investors and
REEREESE R A FFB analysts

HEEERDTENE R

Employees » Safeguard the rights and interests +  Training, seminars, briefing
== of employees sessions
RIEE B gl g kgng
*  Working environment *  Newsletters
THEIRIE FrER
» Career development opportunities « Intranet and emails
FERERKE PRI Bt 4 A0 2B 6
* Health and Safety
EREEZ S
Customers » Safe and high-quality products e Annual reports, interim reports
TR 22 REEHER and announcements
+  Stable relationship FEHRE  PHRERASE
BIEAER +  Company website
« Information transparency NGIEED
ERERE +  Email and customer service hotline
+ Integrity BIH MR REELR
HiE +  Regular meetings
+  Business ethics EHEE
[HES L
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SHRE
Suppliers and partners * Long-term partnership *  Business meetings and phone calls
L RER I % RHABHBER ¥BERLERE
* Honest cooperation * Regular meetings
HHaE EHEgE
» Fairness and openness * Reviews and assessments
YNSRYNGS et REHE
* Information resources sharing
ERER{E
* Risk reduction
P R b
Financial institutions *  Compliance with the applicable *  Consulting
SRS laws and regulations Eo
H AR RER + Information disclosure
+  Disclosure of information EEHE
E R + Annual reports, interim reports
and announcements
FEBE  PHRERAE
Media * Information transparency *  Company website
e SRERE NSIEER
* Interviews
[Eil
Public and communities *  Community involvement ¢ Annual reports, interim reports
ABRUE fLE 2 and announcements
«  Social responsibilities FEHRE PHRERRE
HeEE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns of stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in ESG reporting by
understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business
of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators
(KPIs) are reported in the Report according to recommendations of
the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules) and the
Global Reporting Initiative Guidelines. The Group has evaluated the
materiality and importance of ESG aspects through the following
steps:

FREFNEN—RIER - AEETREIR
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Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

. Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

. The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of the
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

. The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

. Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2023, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing the
management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the reporting
period, the Board and the ESG Sustainability Working Group spent
significant time evaluating the impact of ESG-related risks on our
operation and formulating relevant policies for dealing with the risks.
The oversight of the Board is to ensure the management has all the
right tools and resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of
strategy and long-term value creation.
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ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and accountability,
our Group has established an ESG Working Group, which has clear
terms of reference that set out the powers delegated to it by the
Board. We highly value the opinions of each stakeholder and treat
them as the cornerstone for the development of the Group.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the ESG Working Group at the
meetings. During the reporting period, the ESG Working Group and
the management reviewed the ESG governance and different ESG
issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-
related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders, the
Group is to understand the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting
impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance of ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification by
industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their
degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue and can
enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable development
work in the future. Those important and material ESG areas identified
during our material assessment were discussed in this Report.
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Board reviews progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Rectification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectations.
Effective communication about the goals and target process with key
stakeholders such as employees is essential, as this enables them to be
engaged in the implementation process, and to feel they are part of
the change that the company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years enables the
company to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results in
achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires the ESG Working Group to carefully examine
the attainability of the targets which should be weighed against the
company’s ambitions and goals. The ESG Working Group specifies
whether the target is to be set on an absolute basis or intensity basis is
essential for target setting.

A, ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable
development and compliance with applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations relating to environmental protection, we endeavour
to maintain green manufacturing processes and office
operational practices in order to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts of our business activities.

Achieving the balance among another two pillars of society and
economy of sustainable development, the Group is dedicated to
contributing to the environment, the third pillar of sustainability
and following these principles to minimize our adverse impacts
on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations from all levels and functions of the
organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal
requirements (if any) of the relevant interested parties; the
person or organization that can affect, be affected by, like
shareholders and/or stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators, non-governmental
organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and
understood
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Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
to adopt a systematic approach to effectively protect the
environment and respond to changing environmental
conditions in balance with socio-economic needs

Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for the
environmental-friendly facilities, equipment and
instruments that are operating safely, effectively and more
efficient

Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments,
educational training, and enhancing staff’s environmental
protection awareness

Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into
our business strategic visions and competitive implications
by aligning them with business priorities and decision-
making

EMISSIONS

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to the
environment and has ethical duties to reduce emissions.
Given the nature of our business, the impacts on the
environment and natural resources are not significant. In
spite of this, we are committed to minimizing our
environmental impacts by responsibly managing our
business operations, reducing our carbon footprint and
using resources effectively.

In the meantime, we have fully complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations where we
operated such as the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (2015) in
the PRC, the Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty)
Ordinance (Cap. 611), and the Road Traffic Ordinance (Cap.
374) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded case (2022: nil).
regarding emissions was brought against us or our
employees during the reporting period.
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A1l.1 Air Pollutant Emissions ALl KRSFEMHER

The Group attaches great importance to mitigating
the possible adverse impact of its EMS business on
the environment and considers the environmental
protection mindset an important obligation during its
production and operating activities. The Group’s
major environmental aspects mainly include energy
consumption and waste generation. Nevertheless, the
impact on natural resources is minimal due to our
business nature.

During our operation, the PRC factory’s canteen used
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) as the cooking fuel
and the factory generated electricity itself from nine
power generators for one hour bimonthly with the
use of diesel. The electricity generated would be
consumed during staggered power consumption.
Moreover, the petrol consumption came from vehicle
use for business transportation purposes. The burning
of LPG, and the consumption of diesel and petrol
generated nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur dioxides
(S02) and particulate matter (PM) to the environment
nearby. The rapid drop in the air pollutant emissions
was mainly attributable to the PRC factory canteens
outsourced during the reporting period, the LPG
consumption resulted in the complete elimination.
Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce the
emission of air pollutants by 2% by 2025.
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The details of air pollutant emissions during the
reporting period were as follows:

Investment and
real estate supply
chain services

Air Pollutions Unit EMS RERBHE
EREEY By EFHERY HRESE RS
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 47.50 -
&y T
— Stationary combustion kg 46.93 -
—~ REETRER T
— Mobile combustion kg 0.57 -
— REBBRER T
Sulfur oxides (SOx) kg 1.20 -
lie=a7) T
— Stationary combustion kg 1.00 -
~ REETRER T
— Mobile combustion kg 0.20 -
— REBBRER T
Particulate matter (PM) kg 6.09 -
k) T
— Stationary combustion kg 5.98 -
~ REETRER T
— Mobile combustion kg 0.11 -
~ REBBRER T

Emissions from production

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are the major
organic waste produced during the paint spraying
process for our products. Therefore, the governance
of industrial waste gases containing VOCs is the focus
and control area for our product fabrication
processes. Besides VOCs discharges, benzene,
toluene, xylene, total non-methane hydrocarbons,
lead and tin are also the air pollutant being produced
during our production process. During the reporting
period, a licensed party was outsourced by the Group
to carry out an inspection assessment regarding to
the average density and speed of waste gases
emissions from our factory on a specific date.

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited #2 Bl g Rl R AR A T
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FETRENFEERET
B BE RS & B
RIRBARZERRE -
BE R T E R R ey RT
HAERBIIN T

The assessment results provided by the licensed
party showed that our waste gases emission has met
the standard discharge limit of the relevant
environmental regulations in the PRC, the assessment
results of the density and speed of waste gases
emissions are shown in the following tables:

Average density FHEE
Year 2023 —E&==

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BER B By thRELEY HBRELEY
Old factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 8.0X10°
EFIRLEEEN 257,/ HX R
New factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 1.1X104
IR EEN 257,/ HX R
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <0.7 <85
E AP PR 2R 2R,/ A%
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052309
ERELRSE + SGT-HJ23052309

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023, 12 June 2023
BA#: —S-=FAZH - ZZ-=FA+=H
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Volatile organic
compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (voC)
BRER Bfy 3 EiF S —RE BRMEELEY
Organic waste gas emission from old ~ mg/m? 0.02 0.04 013 169
factory production unit ER/HK
REEFIRAEENR
BRERHR
Waste gas emission from new factory — mg/m? 0.06 021 0.27 183
production unit YAk
REMIHEEENNERIER
Waste gas emission exhaust port from ~ mg/m? 0.02 0.07 02 25
plastic injection after waste gas 27,/ ik
treatment
BRERGIBHEENEREND
Waste gas emission exhaust port from  mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 05 017 333
assembly pad printing and spray ~ £3%,/ A% R
painting after waste gas treatment
BREEGAEBIREREER
BREEHRD
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <12 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
BREHRE BR/IhK (N/A)
TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
7R Bib Bif B TNEf

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052308, SGT-HJ23052309
SFERERS : SGT-HI23052308 » SGT-HJ23052309

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023, 12 June 2023

BEBH: —E-=FxXA-H —E-=F~A+ZH
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Average density FHERE
Year 2022 ===

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BER B By WRELEY BRELED
Old factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 3.7X10
ERFTIREESN 2R/ MK RigH
New factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 3.6X10*
MIMEESEN 2R/ MK RigH
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <07 <85
R R B 2R/ MK
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051102
SHERERSE © SGT-HJ22051102

Sampling Collection Date: 18 May 2022
BERH: —E-—FHA+/\H
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Volatile organic
compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (voC)
BRER Bfy & LS —RE BRMEELEY
Organic waste gas emission from old ~ mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 0.04 0.08 112
factory production unit ER/ Ik Fig
REEBTIHMEEENMN
BRBERIER
Waste gas emission from new factory — mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 0.07 0.4 2.04
production unit 25,/ HK g
REMIHEEENNERIER
Waste gas emission exhaust port from ~ mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) - Not-Detected (ND) 0.07 0.77
plastic injection after waste gas 22,/ 5K i Kt
treatment
BERREGIBEENERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port from  mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 358 023 18.3
assembly pad printing and spray £,/ K R
painting after waste gas treatment
BRARERAEVOREREENE
REEHA
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <12 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
BREHRE 2R/ Ihk (N/A)
TNEf
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
&R Bib Bif B TNEf

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051102, SGT-HJ22051103
FERERS : SGT-HI2205702 + SGT-HJI22051103

Sampling Collection Date: 18 May 2022
miERE: —E-—EnA+/\A
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Average speed T ER
Year 2023 —E-=
Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BER B By WRELEY BRELED
Old factory production unit ka/h 6.5X10° 1.0X10®
ERIREESBN NN
New factory production unit ka/h 6.2X10° 1.3X10°
MIMEEEN NIV
Standard Discharge limit kg/h <6.8X10°3 <048
SRR IR R NI =
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052309

SHEREHSE - SGT-HI23052309

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023, 12 June 2023

BEEH: 2= A-H —E-=FXA+-H
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Volatile organic
compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (voc)
BREH Efy 3 R ZRE BRUBRLEY
Waste gas emission exhaust port from — kg/h 51X10 18X10°3 51X10°% 6.4X10°
plastic injection factory NN
REABIHEENERARD
Standard Discharge limit of waste gas ~ kg/h <0.35 <22 <0.70 Not-Applicable
emission exhaust port from plastic ~ Af //\8 (N/A)
injection factory NER
RETBIMAENERERAH
REHHRE
Waste gas emission exhaust port from — kg/h 45X10° 45X10° 15X10°8 3.0X10?
pad printing and spray painting NN
REBAREREENERIHRD
Standard Discharge limit of waste gas ~ kg/h <05 <32 <10 Not-Applicable
emission exhaust port from pad ~ Af /& (N/A)
printing and spray painting TER
REBEORBREENERFHON
REHHRE
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
& B B @i TER

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052308

FERERS « SGT-HI23052308

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023
MRS 2 =F AR
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Average speed FigE=E
Year 2022 ===

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BEREK By HRELEN HBRELCEY
Old factory production unit ka/h 6.8X10° 4.5X10
ERTIREESN Rfr /N
New factory production unit kg/h 6.7X10° 4.5X10°
IRAEESN NIV
Standard Discharge limit kg/h <7.0X10° <0.48
EEHEIREE Afr/ N
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051102
THERERS © SGT-HI2205102

Sampling Collection Date: 18 May 2022
BBH: —E-_FRA+N\H
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Volatile organic

compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (VoC)
BRER Bfy x b ZRE BRUAELAY
Waste gas emission exhaust port from — kg/h 1.1X10* 1.1x10* 1.5X10° 1.6X107
plastic injection factory NN
REFETHAENERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port from  kg/h 41X10° 3.0X107 1.9X10° 0.15
pad printing and spray painting NN
REBIREREERBER D
Standard Discharge limit ko/h <0.55 <22 <0.70 Not-Applicable
BEHHRE DF /N (N/A)
1A
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
#ER kol ko) ®il TER

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ22051103
FHERERS « SGT-HJ22051103

Sampling Collection Date: 18 May 2022
RS : SR ATN\A
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Al.2

During the reporting period, a licensed party was
outsourced by the Group to carry out an assessment
on 2 June 2023 regarding the number of discharges
of VOCs, benzene, toluene, xylene, and non-methane
hydrocarbons. In addition, the Group also outsourced
the licensed party to carry out another assessment
on 2 June 2023 and 12 June 2023 regarding the
amount of lead and tin emissions.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

The Paris Agreement sends a clear signal that the
shift to a low-carbon economy is inevitable, and
everyone must play their part as a corporate citizen.
In order to facilitate such a transition, the Group has
continued participation in the Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP) supply chain program which aims to
help CDP highlight and spur meaningful action on
tackling climate change by capturing vital data on
climate change.

This can improve collaboration and encourage
transparency. Our GHG emission is reported on the
platform in July on an annual basis. We will strive to
meet our air pollutant reduction target of 2% by 2025.

The GHG emissions produced by the Group mainly
arise from indirect emissions (Scope 2) from
purchased electricity for the production factory. In
addition, we also had direct emissions (Scope 1)
principally resulting from the consumption of
liguefied petroleum gas for running the factory
canteens, burning of diesel fuel and vehicle uses. The
decrease in GHG scope 1 emission stationary
combustion was mainly attributable to the PRC
factory canteens outsourced during the reporting
period, the LPG consumption resulted in the complete
elimination. The increase in GHG scope 1 emission
mobile combustion was mainly due to the increased
number of business trips during the reporting period.
The decrease in GHG scope 2 emission was mainly

Al.2

RB|EHAA - XEBER—F
REITNAER RZ2F
CEENAZBEHETER
MERLEEY X BX.
—RXREERREmELED
B BE = A 1T 5E A o bbb -
NEB IR — BRI
¥ R-_T-_=F,AZ
Ak—_T-_=%XA+ZH
HisRBHmEETS B
ST o

BERRB(TRERE D K

ERMpEE L AEST &
FHERR A B TI RSP -
BAALFHEBER/RLEAR
MIER » RIEEZBE - K
SECEE 2 NIRRT E
HEHEEE  %AtElE
EEBRERRELNESR
BUE - HPRMYETEY
AR BRITE -

ZIEEARE A ELIRS
BRE - ZFIEBFELAEZX
FEREBERBHN - T
MBS HERI T _HF
ERTRIIBD 2% H BT -

AEEHNRERBHERER
KEEETIHMBEENNME
EHER(FBE 2) © tesh - T
MEEESR(BE) £
KETIBMRERERRLAH
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W o REREHBEHREE
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attributable to the decreased use of purchased
electricity as the new self-owned solar power system
in the PRC factory started to be put into service
during the reporting period.

ENNERRLD  REZF
B TRE ¥ 8B AR SR
FIAERAER -

The details of GHG emissions during the reporting RMEHR  BEREEN
period were as follows: BT
Investment and
real estate supply 2022
Type of GHG emissions' Unit EMS chain services Total
REREHE ZEICE
REREHHES Efy EFHERK SR @5t
Scope 12— Stationary combustion tonnes of COx-e 4.45 - 3155
gE 1 - ETtER B-gixeE
Scope 12 — Mobile combustion tonnes of COx-e 592 - 419
HE 1 -HENER B-gfixg=
Scope 28 tonnes of COx-e 5,902.03 130.34 6,032.37 7,414.09
HEY [t [y
Total GHG emissions tonnes of COx-e 5912.40 130.34 6,042.74 7,449.83
BEREHNGE B_EtiEs
GHG emissions intensity tonnes of 731 434 EMS: 8.61
BEREHNTE COxe/employee ETRUEMRT : 861
M-gthEs Investment; 3.13
[E8 RE 303

! The calculation of the GHG emission is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from GHG Protocol published by World Resources Institute and
World Business Council for Sustainable Development.

2 Scope T Direct emissions from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group.
3 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by
the Group.

BERBEREENE RARARR R AL EAES
EHeRh 2 ATARBEREETN [CREHRR
HIRIHE

R AR WA AR 2 E R -
RE2 ¢ AREMFNDWENE L2 MBI -
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A1.3 Hazardous Waste Al3 BEEEEY

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a
responsible way and strives to optimize the use of
resources. The Guangzhou factory has established a
comprehensive hazardous waste management
system and carries out the disposal of hazardous
waste in accordance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

Our hazardous waste mainly includes waste-activated
charcoal with organic matter, waste lubricant and
engine oil, waste emulsion oil, waste paint and paint
residual. There is a separate storage area in the
factory for storing hazardous solid waste. Our factory
also works with institutions which are qualified to
handle disposal of hazardous waste. The amount of
solid hazardous waste generated remained stable as
there was effective implementation of solid
hazardous waste management strategies during the
reporting period. Furthermore, the decrease in the
amount of agueous hazardous waste generated in
2023 was mainly due to more treatment and handling
of waste organic solvent in 2022, which included a
portion of the waste generated in 2021. The Group
has set a comprehensive reduction target by 5% for
reducing hazardous waste generation by 2025.

AEBENRUEEENT
ANEEERY ARNEL
BIRAA - BINBEEZZ
PHMEETEEMEER
% WARBAHBTBEIERR
EREEBEERED -

BN BEEEEMETERRE
BHEEE SR - BEEBR
B R E - BEEIL(Eh - BB
REBRERY - ZHE R
ERRTEHREERREEY
WEREE - BMEEREE
BEBEIEUNRBEEEEE
e ARHREHANERE
EREEEZEVHEER
B WMELANEEBEETESE
MEERFEE © WO R
TEC=FEAENRBERE
BEEWMHERLY  HEEH
RZEZ—ZFREREED
T%E&m%?%'ﬁ$”
BT —FEENID

2Y - AEEE R IEj:lj—iS
ThEFEEBEBREVELER
L% EERBEEZ -
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The details of hazardous waste generated by the AEBRBREHANEENE
Group during the reporting period were as follows: ERFEMFFBUT ¢
Investment and
real estate supply 2022
Hazardous wastes generated Unit EMS chain services Total
BREREHE S
FEENEEEEY Bfy E7HERS HIEERE it
Circuit board tonnes 0.014 - 0.085
SRR ]
Steel bin tonnes 0.475 - 0.242
il ird
Active charcoal tonnes 1.071 - 1.399
AR W
Storage battery tonnes 0.023 - -
EE i
Rag tonnes 0.097 - 0.051
i ]
Light tube tonnes 0.005 - 0.011
BE I
Waste resin tonnes 0.400 - 0.444
IR i
Hazardous waste produced tonnes 2.085 - 2.232
— Total solid waste i3
FEENBEEEY - BERENEE
Waste organic solvent tonnes 0.720 - 2.917
BEBRAT i
Paint tonnes 0.052 - 0.067
i) i
Waste ink tonnes 0.020 - 0.007
B2 i
Hazardous waste produced tonnes 0.792 - 2.991
— Total aqueous waste WE
FEENBEEEY - REEENES
Total hazardous waste generated tonnes 2877 - 5223
FMEANGEEENEE I
Hazardous waste generated intensity tonnes/unit of 0.001 - EMS: 0.001
MEERNEZEENZE production STRERY
volume 0.001
W/ EEE Investment; -

3
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Al.4 Non-hazardous Waste Al4 BEEEEY

Our non-hazardous waste generated from the
Guangzhou factory operation mainly consists of
scrap, wasted packaging materials, waste residual
from sewer and filter tanks, as well as other domestic
waste. Wasted packaging materials mainly include
cardboard boxes for product wrap up.

We consider the principle of environmentally friendly
in our packaging design and select more eco-friendly
packaging materials for our packaging process.

In addition, the Group continues to implement the
“Four R’s”, Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, Repurpose, such
as double-sided printing, reminding staff to have
environmentally-friendly photocopying practices and
recyclable waste materials such as paper, wood, and
plastic are collected and sold to third parties for
recycling purposes. Recycling bins are placed in the
office to regularly collect recyclable waste.
Employees are encouraged to read and send files
electronically to reduce printing.

Municipal Solid Waste Charging

Implementation of Municipal Solid Waste (MSW)
Charging by the Government will be rolled out on 1
August 2024. Under the MSW Charging policy, it is
expected that the Group will be subject to the
“polluter-pays” principle, and would incur expenses
relating to MSW. All waste disposed of by residential
and non-residential premises in Hong Kong will be
subject to charging based on its quantity, so as to
drive behavioural changes in waste generation and
hence reduce overall waste disposal.

BARERMNBE 2 EMELHN
BEEEEMIZEEERM
BEEBEME - THKERRE
O REE DA R L Mo AR BIR
BEBEMHMIEREEM
BRAMRME -

BPERRR LRFRRE
FRATHEBEBEFERE
IRRH BRI Y -

SN - REEFHERTT AROR
bER -BEMR BRB
& MUWER)RE - flmne
T ED - 1R EE B TRIFIRAR
VR ENE B R W EARK - R
I 28 1B 55 W] [ U ) R )RR
HYETFE=7/FE0 KA
®e MAEHA R - A
SE HA Uk &= AT (B W A R ) R 2R
Y WekEN B TRIE KX
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BB EZY R E
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To enhance waste reduction and recycling, help
reduce carbon emissions and avoid penalties for the
Group, we will provide staff training to assist frontline
staff in getting ready and set up feedback channels
for staff. Also, the Group will arrange regular reviews,
perform inspections, report on non-compliant cases
and continuous publicity and education in order to
cater for the upcoming changes.

With the increase in the production volume of the
EMS segment during the reporting period, the
amount of Scrap and wasted packaging materials
generated increased. Furthermore, the decrease in
the amount of waste residual from the sewer and
filter tank generated in 2023 was mainly attributed to
the effective water-saving policies that were
implemented effectively during the reporting period.
The Group targets to reduce the generation of total
non-hazardous waste of 6% by 2025.

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F Bl % se R 2R AR A 7
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The details of non-hazardous waste generated by the

s S

B /Eﬂi&fgf

Group during the reporting period were as follows:

Investment and
real estate supply
chain services
Non-hazardous waste generated  Unit EMS REREHE
FELNEZEEY Efy SFRERYE e RS
Scrap and wasted packaging kg 62,725 -
materials* Af
BRREEREMR
Waste residual from sewer and kg 120,000 -
filter tank NI
TREREBEE
Domestic waste kg 136,565 132
EER NIS
Total non-hazardous waste kg 319,290 132
generated NIS
FEENNEZRENEE
Non-hazardous waste generated ~ kg/unit of 0.014 -
intensity production
MEANNEZRENTE volume
D /EEE
tonnes/ 0.414 0.008
employee
/g8

wastes and plastic wastes.

Scrap and wasted packaging materials include the packaging

The year 2022 data has been restated for comparative purpose.

AEERRERANELNE
TREEVHEWT

2022
Total
—E-CE
@it

36,559

120,000

155,000°

136,697 137,504

319,422 329,063

EMS:

0.009
Investment:
ETHERY
0.009

iy

EMS:

0.386
Investment:
0.012°
ETRER -
0.386

RE -

0012

¢ BHEBREREMHRERE

FMREREERY -

s RERLE  —ZZFHEED

ELT
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A2.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation
and emission reduction for green production. The major
resources used by the Group are principally attributed to
electricity, water and packaging materials consumed at the
factory in Guangzhou. We aim to improve our energy
utilization efficiency to achieve low-carbon practices and
emission reduction throughout our production and
operation and strive to save resources.

The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for
energy-saving management which include in-house rules
for both office and factory employees to follow. Besides,
we have devised a follow-up plan after the third-party
certifications for the ISO-14001 standard. Our
environmental management team helps set up energy-
saving targets, emissions reduction levels and
environmental management programmes. Moreover, our
General Affairs Department is responsible for carrying out
the monitoring work for effective uses of energy and
natural resources.

A2.

BIRH A

AEBERBEAERBERNIER - AE
RaBLE ~EBEANTIER
ﬁIE%I%FMﬁ%ﬁﬁME

KR BEME - RABAORE
EE&W“L&$hE%ﬁﬂ
o BREHREEBR - ABHE
HIER °

$EIE§ Be B B 15 5| RIX

'a%%QE& IEBHEE
SPHYAERAR A o AN - HPIBRIE
ISO-14001E X BISE =T RE
B EIERERE - HMAPRIRE R
B BB e R gE B IR - RBEKE
FIRBERT R o b4 - HPIR4E
ﬁ%%,ﬁ LR BAREIRNBEL
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A2.1 Energy Consumption A2.1 BERHEE

We have implemented a range of measures designed
to reduce emissions and minimize the consumption
of energy and natural resources. We also promote a
paperless office and encourage staff to reduce
electricity and water usage in their daily work to
maintain a green office.

In order to reduce the electrical energy consumption,
the Group gradually replaced the traditional lighting
tubes with energy-saving tubes which have higher
energy efficiency and longer life cycles by 6-8 times.

We have established a maintenance and conservation
policy for equipment which aims at enhancing the
optimal use of machinery.

In addition, a number of energy conservation
promotional banners and posters are posted in
various places to remind workers in production areas.
Through catchy slogans and posters, every worker
can pay high attention to environmental protection
and resource conservation. Moreover, we are
engaging in the periodical reporting on energy
consumption surveys conducted by interested parties
like clients and regional governmental bureau.

The Group has set an inclusive total energy reduction
target by 2% by 2025. The decrease in purchased
electricity was mainly attributable to the decreased
use of purchased electricity as the new self-owned
solar power system in the PRC factory started put
into service during the reporting period. The decrease
in LPG consumption was mainly attributable to the
PRC factory canteens outsourced during the
reporting period, the LPG consumption resulted in
the complete elimination. The increase in petrol
consumption was mainly due to the increased
number of business trips during the reporting period.
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The details of energy consumption were as follows:

BERHFRERFBT ¢

Investment and

real estate supply 2023 2022

chain services Total Total

Type of energy Unit EMS RELEHE ZBIZE ZEICE

HRER By EFHIERE SRS a5t Eh

Purchased electricity MWh 7,365.94 173.78 7,539.72 890196
BEE KRB

Diesel MWh 16.96 - 16.96
£ b9

LPG MWh - - 12171
ey KEE

Petrol MWh 2413 - 17.09
R K

Total energy consumption MWh 7407.03 173.78 7,580.81 9,057.72
R EREE KR

Energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 924 579 EMS:

BREREE KEKE /€8 1045

ETRERE

10.45

Investment:

477

RE:

417
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A2.2 Water Consumption A2.2 Ak

Currently, the water supply is mainly from the
municipal water supply. The Group has a strong focus

BA KEHEEEZERE™
Bk o AR EE R

on water conservation and therefore tries to prevent BRRE  AtEHERE
water pollution which is mainly generated by workers’ TEEAT ALFEEHHIK
living activities. The Guangzhou factory uses the ER e BN EHEITISKAE
sewage bio-chemical treatment facility and adopts Y1t £ pE 32 3% B K BE K (B

water reuse so as to reduce water consumption and
ensure water is used sustainably.

We build our own sewage treatment facilities in the
factory to undertake sewage treatment before
discharging, the water from the reclaimed water tank
is used for irrigation in staff living quarters. Moreover,
the factory has applied push-button taps instead of
screwdriver faucets in order to reduce water wastage.
The Group targets to achieve the reduction of the
total water consumption by 2% by 2025. The
reduction in water consumption was mainly
attributed to the water-saving policies that were
implemented effectively during the reporting period.

The details of water consumption were as follows:

A e R RO REE N g
PROKATRFAE(E A

HMERFEARZLTBCH
K BRIR R - 1 R R AT ¥
EKETRE KEIES
Bl Wk A R R B KA R
B e SN BECEAR
EEA /K RETR - ERAC 88 e = 7K
BESE - ARAKRE - K&
BEOHERAN _ZT_hFE
BRAERKERD 2% > MR
PTHEEARBESHAENR
B RHEIKERER

KRBT

Investment and

real estate supply 2022
chain services Total

Water consumption Unit EMS REREHE “E--
i3 Efy ETHERY IR RS @5t
Water consumption m? 62,521 678 73,853

Ak IHA

Water consumption intensity m*/employee 7196 2260 EMS:
FkEE Uhk/ B8 85.89
EFRERE
8589
Investment:
16.35
RE 1635
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A2.5 Packaging Material

Our packaging materials for finished goods mainly
include paper packing materials, plastic bags, labels
and Styrofoam. The Group is dedicated to consuming
the least packaging materials possible. It is the
Group’s practice to implement production planning
on a timely basis so as to assess the least amount of
packaging materials needed.

The Group is also committed to sourcing recyclable
packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly
practices and engagement. The Group targets to
achieve the reduction of the total packaging material
consumption by 5% by 2025. The increased
packaging material amount consumed in 2023 was
mainly due to the increase in production volume of
the EMS segment during the reporting period.

During the reporting period, the packaging materials
consumption was shown in the following table:

A2.5 B HE

Investment and
real estate supply
chain services
Type of packaging material Unit EMS REREHE
BENBRY Bfy ETHERE it FE S PR S
Label kg 872 -
g% TR
Paper packing material kg 641113 -
ERENE TR
Plastic bag kg 12,373 -
BRI TR
Styrofoam kg 567 -
BRI TR
Total kg 654,925 -
Bt 7
Packaging material intensity kg/unit of 0.03
BAEMHEE production
volume
Tr/E2
By

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited #2 Bl g Rl R AR A T
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A3.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has established an “Environmental and Safety
Objectives, Indices and Plans Control Procedures” policy to
identify the Group’s environmental targets, implement
environmental plans and validate the achievement results.

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by
complying with all the applicable regional environmental
laws and regulations for our business activities in the PRC.
Besides, the Guangzhou factory has obtained the ISO-
14001 Environmental certification.

It is the Group’s ambition to sustain compliance obligation,
safe production, resource conservation, pollution
mitigation, waste reduction, accident-free, as well as
packaging materials recycling.

The Group is continuously incorporating environmental
targets into business decision-making, we believe that
protecting the environment is always a crucial concern for
our manufacturing nature business.

A3.1Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
and Natural Resources

Under the rapid pace of industrialization, most of the
provinces and direct-controlled municipalities are
facing smog in the PRC. This weather would affect
people’s lives and it is not beneficial to the
enhancement of sustainability rationale.

Hence, sustainable development could be boosted if
the corporations allocate the work based on the life
cycles and periods of renewable resources during the
growth process.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to environmental
protection for our business activities. Still, the Group
has different measures to save energy consumption
and emissions, and to reduce the impacts of the
business activities on the environment and natural
resources.

A3.

RENAARER
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A4. CLIMATE CHANGE

Governance

Our group addresses climate-related risks based on the
nature of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts
of climate change, including extreme weather events, or
damage to facilities have immediate operational impacts
and are treated as operational risks. Long-term challenges,
such as emerging ESG issues and climate-related risks and
opportunities, may be discussed by the Group’s ESG
Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board
meetings and ensures that they are incorporated into our
strategy.

To ensure our Board keeps up with the latest trends of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills
to oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our
Board also seeks professional advice from external experts
when necessary to better support the decision-making
process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets for
the Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as
well as a gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both
disclosure and policy relative to best practice standards.

Moreover, the ESG Working Group works closely with the
Group’s different operation departments, with an aim to
develop consistent and enhanced approaches to
addressing ESG risk issues and reporting to the
management.

A4
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of
certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts
resulting from natural disasters. We assess the overall level
of risk by taking into consideration a range of diverse risk
factors across the many categories in our product or
service range. This diversity of risk combined with our
business strategy and broad geographic footprint helps us
distribute risk and provide protection against the impacts
of short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection
for people in our communities against weather and heat-
related disease. Besides, we continue to explore
opportunities to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience and reduce
their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration different climate-related scenarios, including
a “2°C or lower scenario” through the following steps:

Step I: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects

As climate change measures proceed, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes,
such as stricter policies including the introduction of and
increases in carbon pricing, as well as advances in
technology and changes in customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and others,
we developed multiple future images of 2030 as the
external environment that will surround our Group. With
regard to the IEA scenarios, we focus on the 2°C scenario
(2DS) and pictured future images in cases where climate
change measures do not progress and where such
measures progress further (Beyond 2°C scenario).
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the
future images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such
a society, it will be possible to expand carbon dioxide
reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and
production, the introduction of, and increase in carbon
pricing is anticipated in accordance with the global
advance of climate change measures, leading to the
possibility of higher raw material procurement and
production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change
measures are not adequate throughout society, production
interruptions and supply chain disruptions are likely to
increase as a result of higher frequency and intensification
of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-
renewable energy during the production. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each demand
for the regions where the emission factors of purchased
electricity consumptions are high. By promoting real
carbon emissions reductions throughout the world through
these types of initiatives, we are working to achieve zero
carbon emission in the life cycle of the product.

We are also working toward zero carbon emission from the
plants in the production stage and reducing carbon
emissions through comprehensive energy-saving and the
introduction of renewable energy and hydrogen. With
respect to renewable energy in particular, we have set a
new target to achieve a 10% reduction rate for purchased
electricity by 2025. With regard to the ongoing
confirmation of the suitability and progress of the Group’s
strategies, we believe that we will have opportunities for
stable funding and sustainable increases in corporate value
through appropriate information disclosure, and dialogue
with institutional investors and other stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or
tests the existing risk management strategies under
climate change with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the
areas where new strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert
knowledge, which can identify how climate change may
compound existing risks or create new ones. The risk
assessment is conducted through the following steps:

Step I: Establish the context

. Objective/goal

. Scale

. Time frame

. Climate change scenario for most climate variables
and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

. [dentify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in
the past in the area

. Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Step 3. Identify future risk and opportunities

. Explore climate change projections for the selected
time frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

. Identify potential hazards

. Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may
get worse under future projected changes

. Identify new risks that can emerge under future
projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

. |dentify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.,
geographical areas, business operation, assets,
ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential to be at risk
in future
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As outlined within the Governance section above, the
Group has robust risk management and business planning
processes that are overseen by the board of directors in
order to identify, assess and manage climate-related risks.
The Group is to engage with government and other
appropriate organisations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in
regard to monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our
daily operation. However, there remains gaps in
understanding how such climate risks and opportunities
may impact our operations, assets and profits. Our Group
assesses how the business addresses climate change risks
and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor and
reduce their environmental footprint.

A4.1 Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-
related physical risks and transition risks, which have
impacted and/or may impact our Group’s business
and strategy in (i) operations, products and services,
(i) supply chain and value chain, (iii) adaptation and
mitigation activities, (iv) investment in research and
development, and (v) financial planning, as well as
the steps taken to manage these risks, are as follows:
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Climate-related risk description
KR BRI R B (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
B

Steps taken to manage the risks

REBZZARMRRNIER

Physical Risk

BEREAR

Acute physical risks

=UEERE

. Increased severity and
frequency of extreme weather
events such as cyclones
floods, and strong wind. Staff
are easily injured. Also, under
extreme weather events, the
costs of transportation,
communications and living
increase, which may lead to
financial loss.

« BmARREG(NEEEE - HK
Nog =) B ER B A AERIE N
BIRGXE - 1 - TR
RREHT &8 BERE
TERAYE R - Al ge 8 B
BBk -

. Increased likelihood and
severity of wildfire, which may
hinder the operations of
factories. Financial loss occurs
due to the interruption of
supply chain, logistics and
transportation.

. %*‘EHJ)\EI’JTA“’IE&J%*EEIE‘

hn B LR aiE o e
@@ ) %//\L&@iﬁﬁpgﬁ—fﬁu%@ﬁ
BATSIER ©

Operating cost
increases.

BIERAIE N o

Expenditures
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the
contingency plan.

B NRITRSGT
SH9FAsTIB M -

Adopted scenario analysis
to disclose an organization’s
planning under future
scenarios, most notably one
with in a 2°C scenario to
collect, manage and
measure the climate change
impacts such as emissions
and use of resources etc.

ERABROMNAREAS
EHARRBEROE - B
BE2° CHBRTHEE
g s - BEMAIESR
RE(CHEE - WPEAE
RERE -

Planned to establish a
natural disaster emergency
plan.
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Climate-related risk description
KR AERI RS (Y HE

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

For more than a decade, the
Guangzhou factory has been
in the supply chain of the
Automotive Industry. It is
mandatory requirements for
the manufacturing site to have
its contingency plan to satisfy
customer requirements in the
event of an emergency such
as utility interruptions, labour
shortages, key equipment
failure and field returns.
THRER - BNBE—BEER
FEITERMERES - RIBIR
BRGIETE - REZBERT I
IMAREZEFE - B8 HE
B B RBEEIRISR
B) - BLET HESIE R =T E
NmEEP&ER -

Chronic physical risks
|"“"|V§E,\EE
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Prolonged hot weather may
increase the energy
consumption.

%%%—uﬁiﬁﬂ /J?/Ié]%%
2 e

Expenditures
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the
contingency plan.

BN BMITR=ET
BRI N -

Revenue is reduced
from decreased
production
capacity and the
negative impacts
of workforce.
ERTERTIAX
INBEETESH
Wasmd e

Contingency plans were
periodically tested for their
effectiveness. Records were
kept for their compliance.

TEHARESTROBH
- WIREEZFERLARL

Active energy management
and implementation of
various improvement
measures in accordance
with regulations and
customer requirements.
BIEBEREEP EXETE
FEEREE WA E S IEME
Efii
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Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

Climate-related risk description Financial Impact
AR AR R E B O S R B

Climate change brings
uncertainties to the
environments of production
and sales. Although direct
losses will not incur by the
enterprises, they may still
affect and limit the sales and
production of the enterprises
significantly.

RIEE L REERHEERES
RABEN - BECETGE
HEEEBE  BEENEER
EEDAEXIERTZERR
il

Prolonged climate change may
detriment the human’s health.
Continuation of temperature
rise can increase the fatality
rates and incidence rates of
some diseases, especially the
one related to cardiac and
respiratory system; the spread
of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and
dengue fever may increase.

Administrative
costs for daily
operations
increase.

AEEZMITHK
ZRIEIN o

Revenue reduces
from decreased
production
capacity and the
negative impacts
of workforce.

Engagement with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local
resilience.

ThE MR 48 e E A X
KRBT RAMIF D E A

Planned improvements,
retrofits, relocations, or
other changes to facilities
that may reduce their
vulnerability to climate
impacts and increase the
climate resilience in long
term.

FENREELAERBEAR - E#ETREIAR AHEETTRIGHCE - BE -
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TR ¢ RIBEE MBI ER D SRR
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R EE -
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks
KR AERI RS (Y HE Mg AEEZSRRMERNEE

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited R Bl sERI 2R B R A &)

Involving in the Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP) to
have declaration to:

1. Reporting Scope 1 &2
emissions,

2. Report an emissions
intensity &/or
allocated emissions,

3. Setanemissions
reduction target,

4. Report emissions
reduction activities.

SRR ERIE H (CDP) LARR

-

1 mEFEER2HFERIE

2. WEHREER %5
feE HERE -

3. RIUBHEREZ
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Climate-related risk description

arasINVAN

B /A $&%

05 48 B [ B B9 i R

Financial Impact
B

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

Transitional Risk

BE R R
Policy risk
K 3R L b

As a result of energy efficiency
requirements, carbon-pricing
mechanisms increase the price
of fossil fuels, or policies to
encourage sustainable land
use, hindering the area of
expansion, which increases the
operation cost.

PR ERRE 5K - ik i (B A% Il 4
=AEAREE B - EE
Hb AT +5 48 N R B R PR B <R
oK - B INEERAR ©

Mandates on and regulation of
existing products and services.
Contractors have to spend
much cost (compliance cost)
to update or maintain the
equipment to fulfil the new
regulations.

IR A E m R RGN AR
B DBRBELERENEK(E
BN ) BTSSR - AT
BIEVE

Operating costs
increase due to
increased insurance
premiums for the
factories.

THRREREEZNE
BUEERK AN

Administrative
costs for regulation
compliance on
mandatory
equipment
standards.

TR B RR AR
BT T TR

Planned to be involved in
carbon trading.

FHEIZERR S -

Planned to purchase an
extra amount of renewable
energy sources and adopt
clean energy in the
operations to reduce the
carbon emissions.

AHEIBERINEN I BL

RERERMESETRASE
R REIR AR D BRBE IR
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Climate-related risk description
KR AERI RS (Y HE

Financial Impact

R/a

Steps taken to manage the risks

REBZZARMRRNIER

Legal risk
JEER

. Exposure to litigation.
Manufacturers have to adapt
the tightened law and
regulations issued by the
government due to climate
change, and they have the risk
of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.

o EFRAERR - HRRIREL - &
EE W/AEER AT A M8 E B
RENERRER - —BREEE
SPETAR A - RIEEREF AR o

. Enhanced emissions-reporting
obligations. Manufacturers
may have to spend much time
on fulfilling the report
standards to comply the new
obligations.

« IEHERERE R c £EET
EREILER ZRHEERRS
AR ABTTHEIETS -
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Operating cost
increases for high
compliance costs
and increased
insurance
premiums for the
Group.

BRRAERS R
S ERER B IR NER
B2 ERANIE I o

Inspection costs
increase for
environmental
emissions.

RGP 218N
RIS

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and
implemented GHG emissions
calculations in advance.

ERIRIBARELERNER
EP TE)EIIJ ETRERES
Eyﬂl‘jﬁ = °

Environmental emission data
were verified by third-party
laboratories or consultants.

REHNBERF=7TER
EHREEREETRE °
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Climate-related risk description
KR BRI R B (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
E\Zr 5{/ =

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

Technology risk
it b

. Developing the low carbon
energy-saving products and
energy saving technologies,
the capital investment and
R&D expense increase
consequently.

. BRI ET B EE o R BN BE %
- BAREERAEERBE 2
B e

. More green building strategies
with low-carbon, energy-
saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

. BEHRH - SEERNAEEER
RIS ENRIITERA o RIEHH
‘Al aE R EI SR MNHEF RS -

. Capital investment

in technology
development
increases.

« RITRBEHERR

Zu0 -

. Administrative
costs for daily

operations.
. A& EET
KB e

B

. Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving

products.
. FTEIR B ST REEE mAIHT o

. Examined the feasibility and
efficiency of applying the
latest environmental
technologies.

- BEEBRFREHANT
SLITER
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Climate-related risk description
KR AERI RS (Y HE

Financial Impact

R/a

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

Market risk
SRR

. More customers are
considering climate-related
risks and opportunities, which
may lead to changes in
customers’ demand for
products.

- EEZNEPEZERIGEREER
Nigs - ATRe SR E P HEM
= oRey B o

. Uncertainty in market signals.
“How environmentally friendly
the product is” becomes one
of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

o MSERNTETEZR - [Em
BIRRIBE A AT EE
mEEBENREEZ— -

. Increased cost of raw
materials. More
environmentally — friendly
raw materials may be much
expensive, which may increase
the cost.

o RMBRARIEN - ERRMR
MEFBEEMMBE - gL
B o
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Revenue decreases
for the change in
revenue mix and
sources.

A8 BB
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ BLEEU AR -

Administrative
costs increase for
compliance and
sales drop for
non-
environmentally
friendly product
design.

B RRITIRB A
e SERIREmMR
FTEHIHE TBE -

Production cost
increases due to
changing input
prices and output
requirements.

BABRRELR
EHE B AE
PRGN ©

Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products
and studied the application
of recycled materials.

B RMERTEIRER
EWE R MR B A
MR o

Bought and selected
different green materials for
the raw materials of the
products.

178 SIS U R AT HE
REEMBRM L o

Reduce and simplify the
packaging of the products,
to lower the unnecessary
costs.

B RECERNBE A
FEART RS ZEIRAN ©
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Climate-related risk description

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

KR AR BR (Y FE it B AEEZSRRMERNEE
Reputational risk

EER

. Unable to fulfil the . Revenue decreases ¢ Supported the green

expectations of the customers,
damage the Group’s
reputation and image.

ReEMEREFPHE BEAE .
EHBERR -

Stigmatization of our business .
sector, such as more

stakeholder concern or

negative stakeholder feedback

on the product designed in a

less environmentally-friendly

way.

B EBEFIH5 R - m .
BABNRET AR NER
NEZFHNERIREESD
EREE -

from decreased
demand for goods
and the decrease in
production
capacity.
EmFH R RER
TREBR AR D -

Operating costs
increases from
negative impacts
on workforce
management and
planning.

SE) e MR EIH
BEPEBEEEK
ZREEAN

productions.

. XFRHMEeEmM-

. Corporate sustainability
responsibility policy was
adopted by fulfilling the
social responsibility by
organizing more activities or
executing actions to
demonstrate how we place
importance on climate
change.

. M EARERREER
R BRAEKRE Z R
RITEBRARMYERIEE (L
BWER - NtEITHEEE -
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During the reporting period, the primary climate- RI|EHE - TEHREA

related opportunities and the corresponding financial BB K R R B 75 R 2

impacts were as follows:

Description of climate-related opportunities
RIFEEGBNFARET

1

Financial Impact

%S

Resource efficiency
BRm =

. Reduce more packaging material usage
WA AR SRR
. Reduce water usage and consumption

B KB IRE 8 N B 7E

Energy source

RETR R

. Use of lower-emission fuel sources
158 FRAEHE AR ZROIR

. Use of supportive policy incentives
FERRFIEBRIE

. Use of new technologies
5 ARl

Products and services

7 in MRS

. Development of climate adaptation and
insurance risk solutions
h] T S M 8 I AR B L B e R 7 2R

. Ability to diversify busmess activities

ZICE R BHEE

Markets
mi5

. Access to new markets
EAFTIS

. Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
and cost reductions
MBI PR AR D & B AN

. Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
cost abatement
R RIEARAREBER D & &R

. Returns on investment in low- emission
technology
KR BT AR & Bl 3R

. Revenue increases through new solutions to
adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services
FRNRRRARERER KRG SERES R
EARR T 28 I

. Revenue increases through access to new and
emerging markets
7R AT S BT 5 AN A
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Description of climate-related opportunities
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Financial Impact

RIZEEEENFAREL g 37
Resilience
g

. Participation in renewable energy programs .
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures
ST B A BRI R EKERER AR 1 e

. Resource substitution or diversification

BERERSEZ T

Metrics and Target

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and
manage climate-related risks and opportunities. The
energy consumption and GHG emissions indicators
are the key metrics used to assess and manage
relevant climate-related risks where we consider such
information to be material and crucial for evaluating
the impact of our operation on global climate change
during the reporting period. Our Group regularly
tracks our energy consumption and GHG emissions
indicators to assess the effectiveness of emission
reduction initiatives, as well as set targets to
contribute to our effort to have minimal impact on
global warming.

The details of the time frames over which the target
applies and the base year from which progress is
measured are described in section Al: “Emissions”
and section A2: “Use of Resources” of this Report.
Our Group adopts an absolute target to manage
climate-related risks, opportunities and performance.

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

FRINER RN - T RIEFEEER BN N
misfhE

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increase

HEER S RESEGRE TLENR NIER
Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

BB ERE AR I E R AR IE A

BEIZERAIR

AEBRNEREEFREAFMG R
EIERARAARE R LB o IR
RBEBERREMIRERHRE R
BHEHRRIEREECZENTEME
BEALER - QRERBREIAE
A8 (GHG) BE 1R Ty IR RH S I
EEAERIEAERROBREE
RAE - REETE B HERETRBFE R
B E R BIR R ARG IE
MR WREBR - REERIEK
HERERNTEFLER -

BB ERENKRERKEE
REEEFNFIFHNAREF AT
&l BER 1 &R B A28 BIRFIA | -
AEBEERMEBH B FEABTERK
FERE R R B A R R 3R
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

BI.

EMPLOYMENT

Quality talents are the Group’s valuable assets for
maintaining business sustainability. The Group has
implemented practices in accordance with our “Staff
Handbook” with respect to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
welfare and other benefits which comply with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations of Hong Konag.

Equal opportunity

The Group places a high priority on achieving equality of
opportunity for all employees in relation to all personnel
matters including recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
benefits and dismissal. The dignity and individuality of each
employee are respected, and the privacy and
confidentiality of employee records are safeguarded. The
performance of employees is assessed solely according to
their individual ability to meet job requirements.

Promotion and appraisal

The Group offers internal promotion to employees,
whenever possible, within the Group. Promotion to a higher
grade normally depends on the availability of vacancy,
individual performance and potential to take up the new
position.

The Group provides an open, challenging and participative
environment for all employees. We aim to provide
opportunities for the development of the skills of
employees to the fullest extent possible, consistent with
the needs of the Group. Job performance is reviewed
annually, and this serves as an opportunity for the
supervisor to evaluate employee’s performance in an
objective and open manner, to discuss concerns, strengths
and suggestions for further improvement. Employees’
remuneration and pay scale adjustments are made
reference to individual’'s performance and appraisal results,
industrial standards and market trend.
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Employee welfare

For the Hong Kong subsidiaries, the Group offers special
arrangements to employees to leave work early on
important traditional days which are not public holidays
such as the Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter Solstice,
Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year’s Eve. The Group
regularly organises internal events to strengthen the sense
of belonging within the Group and boost communication
transparency among all levels of employees.

The Group strives to create a fair and inclusive workplace
where all its employees are treated with dignity and
respect. The Group provides equal opportunity in all
aspects of employment and prohibits discrimination or
harassment against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, marital status, disability, race, colour, religion
and any other characteristics protected by the relevant
laws.

The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the
PRC, the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). During the reporting period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
those applicable laws and regulations.
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Bl.1  Total Workforce Bl (EEA#H
As at 31 December 2023, the employee compositions RZEZ=F+=_A=*+—
(in percentage of employees) by gender, B EEMNBEKAEEES
employment type, age group and geographical R ZER - EEER -
region were as follows: FEAAR N IR = 15 ) o5 1n
T

2022
Employee compositions EEARK —E_—
By gender R &5
—  Male - BH 31%
—  Female - Tk 69%
By age group BERARE D
— 30 or below - 30EEAT 15%
—  31-40 —  3Z240m 32%
—  41-50 —  41E505% 35%
— 51 orabove —  SIgskAE 18%
By employment category RIERERE D
—  Senior management - SREEE 3%
—  Middle management - HREHEE 5%
—  General - —% 91%
—  Contract/short term - AK/EH 1%
By geographical region % ith 3 2 35 Bl o
— PRC - Fh 97%
—  Hong Kong - BB 3%

98  China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited 2 B EE R R AR A 7



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - g RERRE

Bl2 1EERHKHE

REERHEHARZER
Fhe ARl N33R R 58 2 1

B1.2 Employment Turnover Rate

Our Group’s employee annual turnover rate
breakdown by gender, age group and geographical

region during the reporting period was as follows:

BESFRALEAMAMT

2022
Employee turnover rate EERALL=E —E-=
By gender &% B El 5
—  Male - B 44%
—  Female - 29%
By age group RERAERE D
— 30 orbelow —  Z0BRERIAT 85%
—  31-40 —  31E40m 34%
—  41-50 -  4E50m% 18%
— 51 orabove —  SIgRskA b 16%
By geographical region % 1th 38 35 Bl o
—  PRC — H 34%
—  Hong Kong - B 26%
Overall 2 34%
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B2.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group rigorously complies with the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety” ((FRE AR
FME %2 A4 EE L)) and other relevant laws and regulations
of Hong Kong in order to maintain health and safety
working environment. Employment safety rules is included
in the Group’s Staff Handbook for regulating occupational
health and safety and on-the-job training is provided for
the employees in order to minimize the potential risk of
accidents, injuries and exposure in relation to health risks.

The Guangzhou factory obtained Occupational Health and
Safety Certification (ISO-45001) formulated by the
International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”).
Thus, there is effective guarantee of a healthy, safe and
stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by various departments according to the occupational
health and safety requirements of the respective region.
Any non-compliance will also be identified and rectified on
a timely basis. For the Hong Kong office, we have
implemented the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, and maintained the operations of the
system to fulfil the requirements of OHSAS45001:2018.

Besides, the Group has established the Environmental
Health and Safety Steering Committee within the
Occupational Safety and Hygiene Management Committee.
The committee provides management support for the
implementation of this policy and sufficient financial
resources.

Furthermore, the Guangzhou factory has implemented
several workplace safety policies so as to avoid fire and
industrial accidents, these include:

. Fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers are well
equipped.

. Designated staff conducts inspection from time to
time so as to ensure the exit passageway is clear and

unblocked.

. Fire drills are organized twice per year.
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B2.1 Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities B2.1 EITHMHIAB MR

AEBRBE=FZFEHLE
MRETIRERIET ABUAR

Below is our Group’s number of work-related injuries
and fatalities, and the rate of work-related injuries

that occurred in each of the past three years: ATRGHERNT

Health and Safety Unit 2022 2021
BEREZE By —F= T —F
Work-related injuries cases 6 7
AT®5 il

Work-related fatalities cases - -
AT 11

Rate of work-related fatalities % - -
ATt =® %

B2.2 ETHELRT/ERE

REERBE=FNRAIE

B2.2 Lost Days due to Work Injury

Below is our Group’s number of lost days due to work

injury of the past three years: BAITEEHWMT

Health and Safety Unit 2022 2021
REHEZZE B —Eo o —E-—F
Lost days due to work injury days 43 254
ETHBELTIEAH PN
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B3.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group places a strong emphasis on the career
development of individual employees. Employees are
encouraged to keep abreast of the changing world and
pursue continuing education, so as to cope with the rapidly
changing society and meet the evolving corporate
development needs.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in
individual continuing education programs which are related
to their job duties, strengthen the professional career
training of its staff teams, promote the professional
expertise of management teams and stimulate the
potential abilities of employees. In addition, in order to
enable new staff to fit into the Group and comprehend the
Group’s policy and corporate culture as soon as possible.

We provide basic orientation training for all new staff and
provide its management personnel and employees with
on-the-job education, training and other opportunities to
improve their skills and knowledge. The Group continues to
intensify its efforts to promote staff training programmes.
This helps provide the necessary protection for talent
reserves for corporate development.

B3.
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B3.1 Percentage of Employees Trained B3.1 ZIlEEE DL

RBERA - LR R ER
BREONEIEEADL

During the reporting period, the percentages of
employees received training by gender and

employment category were as follows:

T -

2022
Training 13 ==
Percentage of employees trained ZI{EEBESH
By gender &% B &5
—  Male - Bk 116%
—  Female - TH 110%
By employment category RIERERE D
—  Senior management - SREEE 91%
—  Middle management - HREHEE 98%
—  General - —&% 109%
—  Contract/short term - AK/EH 27%
Overall st 108%

During the reporting period, the composition of
employees received training by gender and
employment category was as follows:

RIEBRA - RIER R IERE
BRIE S EIE BB
T

Composition of Employees 2022
Received Training ZIEERRK —E-=
By gender BRI &S

—  Male - BH 32.0%
—  Female - 68.0%
By employment category REBERE S

—  Senior management - SHEEE 2.4%
—  Middle management - HhEEEE 4.5%
—  General staff - —f% 92.9%
—  Contract/short term - BH/REH 0.2%

Annual Report 3 2023 103



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - LG RERRE

B4.

B3.2 Average Training Hours Completed per Employees

During the reporting period, the average training
hours by gender and employment categories were as
follows:

Training b

Average training hours
(hours/employee)

By gender IERE D

—  Male - 5k

—  Female - ik

By employment category RERBERE S
—  Senior management SRERERE
—  Middle management - HREEE

—  General — —R&
—  Contract/short term - A% e

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly complies with International Labour
Standards and the PRC’s “Provision on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour”€ 25 |E £ A & T #% ¢ ). Besides, no
juveniles under 16 years old are recruited.

In order to maintain a harmonious labour relationship, the
Group firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment
discrimination and occupational discrimination. The Group
protects the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and
leave days according to relevant government laws and
regulations. During the reporting period, the Group strictly
complied with laws and regulations relating to employment
and labour practices in the PRC and Hong Kong.

FHZIRE(KE ER)

B4.
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B ¥ 15 5 51 i Boan
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BS.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The principal raw materials used in Guangzhou factory
production mainly include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motors and
batteries. At present, the majority of manufacturing
materials are purchased domestically. The factory typically
procures raw materials and components upon receipt of
purchase orders from its customers.

In order to ensure that the raw materials and components
procured are of the requisite standards, our Purchasing
Department is responsible for procurement of raw
materials, and managing the sourcing arrangement for our
supply chain. An approved vendor list is maintained for our
principal raw materials and components and the vendor list
is reviewed periodically.

During the reporting period, the breakdown of suppliers by
geographic region was as follows:

BS.

Number of suppliers HEBHE
By geographic region it & & 5
—  Hong Kong - B
— PRC - A
—  Taiwan - A
—  Europe - BN
— USA - =H
—  Australia - RN
—  Canada - MEX
—  lsrael - el
—  Japan - BXK
—  Swaziland - It
—  Singapore — TN
—  Cambodia - REE
Total mE

HiEgEE

BEMNBEERNEZRTHEBEE
FRER - ENRIESEIR - B8 - )
WREMS - BRI REDEEMH
BEER - - TH-BRNEEEFPH
REBFTERRBE RV LA -

RERARBO RN RAFTE
RENRE  REBHABRBRY
P E R R AR L P - T
ERTREZEMHRAMFEIL
RAfrEm B - WE B EET
BB -

RIEHA - BRI D HOHERD
B4R -

2022
e —

=

225
166
19
11

[ = NN
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To enhance supply chain management, the Group has
formulated management systems and regulates the
supplier selection process to systematically evaluate and
qualify new suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to
enter its supply system and become its qualified suppliers,
thereby facilitating its stable procurement development.
According to the Group’s “Standard Operating Procedure”
and quality management system relating to the supplier
management process, the Group is to carefully manage
and select qualified suppliers and carry out regular
evaluations to safeguard the quality of raw materials. Apart
from the quality, the Group selects the suppliers based on
the price, location and flexibility. After the comparisons
between various aspects, the supervisor of the department
will choose the most suitable supplier. Once non-
compliance of the supplier is discovered, the supervisor of
the department will inform the supplier to make corrective
actions within a time limit. If no improvement is made, the
supervisor of the department has the right to terminate the
cooperation.

Besides, we ensure our product delivery schedules are
properly fulfilled, and establish a foundation for providing
quality products to our customers. Customers become
more concerned about environmental issues and stress the
importance of using environmental-friendly materials. We
will continue to communicate these demands with our
suppliers, strengthen our cooperation with suppliers
regarding their ability to deliver environmentally friendly
materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials, and
work with them to maximize societal benefits.
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B6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to supplying quality products and
providing quality services that consistently meet or even
exceed our customers’ expectations. The Group has placed
a strong emphasis on quality assurance and adopted
stringent quality assurance procedures at different stages
of its business operation including the pre-production
process, the procurement of raw materials and
components, the monitoring of production processes and
the inspections of finished products to ensure the qualities
meet our standards.

B6.1 Percentage of Total Products Sold or Shipped
subject to Recalls

During the reporting period, neither the products sold
nor shipped (2022: nil) were subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

B6.2 Customer Relationship Management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an
enterprise’s competitiveness, and the Group is to
continuously strive to improve on this aspect. The
Group has a customer-oriented focus and strives to
provide high quality products and services by
continuously addressing the concerns customers are
looking for. A policy “Communication and Service
with Customers Manual” ( ELE8 & &) 18 M AR 7% 15
FE#)) has been set to standardize the procedure for
customer communication in order to promote
operational consistency and faster responsiveness to
customers’ changing needs. The Group collects
customers’ feedback relating to its products which is
used as an important reference in its constant efforts
to improve product quality and promote customer
satisfaction. The Group is always trying to improve
and handle the complaints or feedback quickly to
resolve any issues. A Customer Services Department
has been set up to maintain ongoing communication
with customers and ensure the Group can provide
excellent service. During the reporting period, 7 cases
(2022: 11) of products-related complaints were
received by the Group.
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The Group responded to the cases immediately and
explained to the clients. The situation has improved
after the adjustment of the working schedule of
employees and the increase in consumer service
training.

B6.3 Intellectual Property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our
intellectual property. In addition to highlighting and
protecting intellectual property and ensuring we
respect the intellectual property of others; we protect
the fair competition environment and comply with
industry standards and criteria. During the reporting
period, the Group had not experienced any
infringement of its intellectual property rights by
third parties. In addition, the Group was not involved
in any material violation, litigation or legal
proceedings for violation of intellectual property
rights during the reporting period.

B6.4 Quality Assurance

The Group’s production facilities have been
successfully transited to the new version of Quality
management systems ISO-9001:2015 and IATF-
16949:2016 certified for the manufacture of printed
circuit board assemblies since 2011. Moreover, the
updates of the two certificates have been obtained in
December 2023. In addition, the Guangzhou factory
was 1SO-13485:2016 certified for Medical Devices
certified 2013 and during the reporting period.

B6.3

B6.4
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The Guangzhou factory has a team that is responsible
for quality control and quality assurance. It also has
an independent quality assurance department that
reports directly to the top management on product
quality matters.

Quality assurance functions are performed
throughout the production processes from the raw
materials and components procurement stages to
product delivery stages, with an aim to ensure that
the products can meet the required national
standards and certain industry standards applicable
to such products. Industry standards for products
adopted by the factory mainly include:

(i) IPC-A-610F Acceptability of Electronics
Assemblies for PCBA workmanship
requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances
Directives 2002/95/EC); and
(iii) REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation

and Restriction of Chemical Substances).

Our products are also in compliance with various
international safety standards including:

(i)  FCC standards — product standards which are
applicable to telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;

(iii)y  CSA standards — standards for product safety
and performance;

(iv) China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory
certification system concerning product safety

in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health
or environmental requirements.
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Most of our products and services that are provided
to our customers are mainly environmentally friendly
and lesser-impacts-to-climate. In addition, Green
Purchasing Policies adopted for the selection of raw
materials for our manufacturing which are
conforming to legislative requirements of RoHS and
REACH.

B6.5 Consumer Data Protection

The Group puts great emphasis on protecting
customer privacy and implements stringent internal
management for marketing activities to safeguard
customer information security. Only authorized staff
is allowed to handle the private consumer data, and
consent must be obtained from the Board to provide
the consumer data to the externals. If the consumer
data is leaked, the Group may pursue legal
responsibility for the relevant staff.

B7. ANTI-CORRUPTION B7.

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and
corporate integrity, anti-corruption has become one of the
main corporate business ethics principles for many of the
world’s premier enterprises. We advocate honest operation
and fair competition. Besides, we require our staff to
comply with the national laws and regulations, as well as
the Group’s regulations in relation to anti-corruption
practices. To promote compliance in the workplace, we
also focus on anti-corruption and anti-bribery principles for
staff.
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B7.1

B7.2

Number of Concluded Legal Cases Regarding
Corrupt Practices

During the reporting period, the Group did not
receive any non-compliance (2022: nil) with relevant
laws and regulations related to anti-corruption.

Preventive Measures and Whistle-blowing
Procedures

As part of the Group’s efforts to make anti-corruption
an important corporate management culture, it sets
up whistle-blowing channels to help prevent any
misconduct, malpractice and irregularities. All staff
must comply with the Group’s business code of
conduct, which aims to prevent corruption from a
system perspective. The Group also continues to
improve its internal control and monitoring system. If
problems are identified, the Group will take
immediate corrective action and have a zero-
tolerance approach to corruption in order to prevent
irregularities.
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B7.3 Anti-corruption Training Provided to Directors and

Staff

The Group provided training sessions on anti-
corruption to the directors and staff. At the end of
the reporting period, the number of employees
received anti-corruption training and the training
hours by employment category were as follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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B7.3 BEERETRHNKRES
b= |

rEBRAEERBTIRHER
BEEEIRE RBREH
R REBEESNES
REGEINEEABET
FIFFEREL T

2022
Anti-corruption training RESEI —ZE--
Number of employees ZIEE A

received training

—  Board of directors - EERe 4
—  Senior management - SREEE 13
—  Middle management - HREEE 40
—  General staff - —REIT 914
Total employees EEHAY 971
Number of training hours ZHIEFE
—  Board of directors - EFg 3
—  Senior management - EfREEE 25
—  Middle management - HREEE 71
—  General staff - —REI 1,823
Total training hours B IIFE 1,922

B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

B8.1 Focus Areas of Contribution

In terms of community involvement, the Group
continues to organize a corporate social responsibility
program in order to encourage employees to
participate in community services and contribute to
the care needs of the community. For the Shanghai
office, the company places social responsibility on the
importance of business development.

B8. tHEmixE
B8.1 EXEEiEE

EitE2EHH A
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During the reporting period, the Group has applied
“The Caring Company Scheme 2023/24” which is
organised by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service (HKCSS). We look forward to having cross-
sectoral dialogue opportunities, enabling us to gain a
comprehensive understanding of the community’s
needs. By engaging in these dialogues, we can align
our corporate social responsibility (CSR) efforts with
the specific requirements of the community, thereby
maximizing our impact.

B8.2 Resources Contributed

As part of our efforts to promote education, the
Guangzhou factory has established the “migrant
workers’ child education subsidize program” to
support the education of the worker’s children. The
table below shows the number of migrant workers
who benefited from the “migrant workers’ child
education subsidize program” and the total amount
subsidized to them:
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RBEHA - REEBRFE
HEBH RGBS ABD
[2023/24 S E g R B 51
2l - ZRMEEFEBETRRA
RIMEE 20 THAEER
FE-RBASLEZEHE
BMAIERMOCESLEE
e R A ERR
BF—3% thsARELE
BRMOTES -

B8.2 FTBIAER

RIRERE - BN TR
[RIFRHEMBMETE ]
NZFHITATEOHE -
[RIFXHE®MUAE] X
sNRTIABRNMBMERES
KR

Community Investment Unit 2023 2022
HERE By = =
Number of migrant workers benefited people 228 248
SZHRTAH A

Total amount of subsidy to the workers RMB 228,000 247,250
T ARL4BEE AR®TT

The Group also supports community development by
cash donations. The table below summarises the cash

AEBETEBREBERX
FHRER - TRBAANE
B E—wERARARZE
SREBRBNR SR

donated by the Group to different charities during
the previous reporting period:

Cash Donation Unit 2023 2022

Renu By —=E-= —E-=

The Hong Kong Council of the Church of Christ HKD 250,000 250,000
— Partnership Fund for the Disadvantaged

HEEHeTERe —BFHKBEED BT

Total HKD 250,000 250,000

Bt BT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE IRE - HERERRERS
REPORTING INDEX
Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBRERES E=4:1] BH
A. Environmental
A. EE
Al: Emissions
INER-13i1 ¢!
General Disclosure “Emissions” 56
— MR R [HER
KPI AT The types of emissions and respective “Emissions — Air Pollutant 57
emissions data Emissions”
BB DHEIR AL HERUIE K8 N AR B HE B R [HERY) — =R RBERY
KPI'Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 67
appropriate, intensity Emission”
FRETUEIZAI2 RERBEHMER(WER)EE [HER) — R = REE Y
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where  “Emissions — Hazardous Wastes” 69
appropriate, intensity
BB IEIR AL3 FEXEEEEMEER (WER)® [HER) — B EREEY
KPI Al.4 Total non — hazardous waste produced and, “Emissions — Non-hazardous 71
where appropriate, intensity Wastes”
BRETIEZRAL FELAERIEEVEER(WER T [HERY) — mEREEY ]
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions “Emissions — Air Pollutant 57, 67
and results achieved Emissions”
“Emissions — Greenhouse Gas
Emission”
FREBIEIZALS o 1URR PR 2 )5 BE R FTAS AR [HERRY) — =R 2
[HER) — R = REE Y
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non — “Emissions — Hazardous and 69, 71

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved
RAR AR UIRIZ A16
ENEEMAEKR

IR EREZEEYH T - K

Non-hazardous Wastes”

[BEY) — BEREEEREY]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHEE - -EEH - —REERBEARENESR E=4:0] Y

A2: Use of Resources

A2 - BIRFA

General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 74

— MR R [&RA A

KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by “Use of Resources — Energy 75
type in total and intensity Consumption”

BB AR IR A2 RENESMERER KEEEREEERE [BRAA - EREE]
&

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water 77

Consumption”

BRETUEIRA22 BREKEREE [ERFA —KiEE ]

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives “Use of Resources — Energy 75
and results achieved Consumption”

FRAERIEIRA23  HlsER(E ARG E R AERR [ERMA — gREE

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in “Use of Resources — Water 77
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption”
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

FRERIEIRA24 HWACSKEGERKR ERIBEAERE - UEREA [ERMA —KEE]
FRK a5t &l R AT AR

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished “Use of Resources — Packaging 78
products and, if applicable, with reference to  Material”
per unit produced

BRETUEIRA2S  ERGAAREMENEER (WER)SEE [BRMA — 8EME]

BEE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHERE - -EEH - —REERBARENESR E=4:0] Y
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
3 IRERBAER
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 79
Resources”

—ARHEE [REREARER]

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of No significant impacts of 79
activities on the environment and natural activities on the environment and
resources and the actions taken to manage natural resources during the
them reporting period

BB E DHEIR A3 HEBEZHERERBRERNEATER PRERAN  TEEKIHEHER
EERNEERETZENTH EREREREFENERTE

A4: Climate Change

A4 EAREAE,

General Disclosure “Climate Change” 80

AR MRS

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related  “Climate Change” 84
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them

FRGEUEIZAL  HUABEERARSHETAELEZENERR [RIEEL]

ZEBEE  MEEREESBEEENTH
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B. Social
B. #®&
Employment and Labour Practices
BREREIER
B1: Employment
Bl : [EfE
General Disclosure “Employment” 96
—ARHEE [MEf% ]
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, “Employment” 98
age group and geographical region
RS AE RFEIR BI LR EEER - FheAnN MRS NE [ERF]
B1AE
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group “Employment” 99
and geographical region
RASRAEIEIR B2 BRI FRANRESNEERALE [1EiE]
B2: Health and safety
B2 @RELR
General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 100
— MR R [fEREZ 2 |
KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No fatality case occurred in each 101
that occurred in each of the past three years  of the past three years including
including the reporting year the reporting year
RSB BUIEIR B2, BE=ZF (BRERFE)BFAITHNAYR RABEZ=F(BREHZFE)LE
R bt & HIRA T i fEz
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury “Health and Safety” 100
FREBIEEB22 EIBEAIEBH [fERREZ 2 |
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety “Health and Safety” 100

measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored
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TEHERE - -EEH - —REERBARENESR E=4:0] Y

B3: Development and Training

B3 : & &IETF

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 102

— MR R =958 =EN

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by “Development and Training” 103
gender and employee category

AR AE BUEIZ B3 ZMRIREEERESHZIEEBT L =958 =EN

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per “Development and Training” 104
employee by gender and employee category

BRENIEIEB32 RUBIKEEEAES  BEREETKXIE  [EEEEI]
PR E

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : &5 T %8

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 104

—RRHEE [T AR |

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” 104
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

BB B R 1R B4 R T BB B AR R E T RaEHI%5 [ TR
T

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such “Labour Standards” 104
practices when discovered

RASRAERIEIEB42 HMEERRERBAREREBIEAMRERS S ITER]
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EEEH
B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 - g E IR
General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 105
—RRHEE [ rEseE g |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region - 105
RASEAE BB IR BS.) T S SR HEREE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  “Supply Chain Management” 106
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
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PIREERIEE - U RBERITRERTA
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify “Supply Chain Management” 105
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored
BRENIEIEBS3 HAAMBMNHEREARTNRERM SR [HERERE]
REVIER - LA RARBARIT MBS A
KPI B5.4 Descriptions of practices used to promote “Supply Chain Management” 106

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored
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B6: Product Responsibility
B6 : EmAE
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 107
— MR R [EmET]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  No product sold or shipped was 107
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons subject to recall for safety and
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AR AEIEIR BO E%&E‘iiguuﬁ!%z#ﬂ AL EEEERT RWERREEEENCERE
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KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related “Product Responsibility — 107
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recall procedures Assurance”
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KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and  “Product Responsibility — 110

RG24 IRIZ B6.5

privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Details of (i) business review; (ii) principal risks and uncertainties; (iii)
future development of the Group’s business; (iv) the Company’s
environmental policies and performance; and (v) the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company, are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”, “Key risks and uncertainties”, “Prospects”,
“Environmental, social and corporate responsibility” and “Compliance
with laws and regulations” sections under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 274 to 275 of this annual report.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. Details of discussion of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in this
Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Report.
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The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements on pages 145 to 148.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out
on pages 274 to 275. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$250,000 (2022: HK$250,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium and accumulated losses/retained profits. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company
in paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s distributable reserve was
approximately HK$128.6 million.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. None of such related party transactions constitutes connected
transaction which is subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 80.0% of the Group’s sales for the Year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 46.9%.
Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 32.4% of the Group’s purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
listed issuers share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme to provide additional incentive to its employees. For details,
please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Guozhen (resigned on 4 April 2023)

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan

Mr. Liu Zhiwei

Mr. Li Yinxiang (appointed on 3 March 2023 and
resigned on 14 August 2023)

Ms. Bian Sulan (appointed on 12 June 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Yang Weidong (resigned on 12 June 2023)

Mr. Chak Chi Shing (resigned on 23 September 2023)
Mr. Wu Chi King (appointed on 6 September 2023)
Ms. Zhang Xiulin (appointed on 20 December 2023)

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Ms. Bian Sulan, Mr. Wu Chi King and Ms. Zhang Xiulin
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from Mr. Li
Huiwu, Mr. Wu Chi King and Ms. Zhang Xiulin, and as at the date of this
annual report, the Company still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
46 to 48 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Article 191 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, no interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained in
the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2023, neither the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company which has an interest or a short position in the shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Upon the completion of Right Issue on 23 November 2021 and the
share consolidation effective on 30 March 2023, the adjustment in
relation to the Right Issue and share consolidation, total 533,309
options are granted to one executive director of the Company and
adjusted exercise price of HK$3.46 per Shares with an exercise period
of 28 July 2021to 27 January 2026.

On 3 November 2023, total 3,450,582 options are granted to two
executive Directors of the Company to subscribe for Shares upon
exercise of such share options at an exercise price of HK$2.5 per
shares with an exercise period of 3 November 2024 to 2 November
2026.
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Number of

underlying shares
held/interested

Percentage of
issued share

pursuant to Share Long or short capital of
Name Capacity Options position the Company
REBRERES
EEREZNER HARAT B BT
i 54 BREOMNEE HFREIKXR BEBDE
Lin Dailian Beneficial Owner 2,258,600  Long position 1.15%
MRACESE EmEBA S
Bian Sulan Beneficial Owner 1,725,291  Long position 0.88%
TERE EmEEA S

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, to the knowledge of
the Board, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be:
(i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors and chief executive were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
(iii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

ARRFEBBRNIN R 2
@M ERR

As at 31 December 2023, the register of substantial shareholders WR-Z-—=F+_-_F=+—H ' HBEEEL
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the H}% EIEPEXVEEIBIERNATBEEZE
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of R &M ArEReE - YRR E e RN T
relevant interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the $ AR (B AN A &) 2 B2 1T RE 24N 5% 3k BA
Company. J:) o
Percentage of Issued
Share Capital of
the Company
L WUNGITRY )
L N=R
Number of Long or 31 December
Name Capacity shares held short position 2023
—E-CF
ne/E8 EL) FERO#E BESKA tT=ZA=t+-H
China New Retail Holding Group Limited  Beneficial Owner 51,760,000 Long position 20.4%
(Note 1) 6t 2D e
FENTERREBBRAR (K1)
Mr. Xiao Tan Held by controlled 51,760,000 Long position 26.4%
FELE corporation e
BEEGEERE
Mr. Sy Ming Yiu Beneficial Owner 10,000,000 Long position 5.1%
HEBRIB S A ERBAA e
Note: Biar -
1. China New Retail Holding Group Limited, which is a company incorporated in Hong 1, RS EEERERAR AT A —KREBEME W
Kong with limited liabilities, is wholly owned by Mr. Xiao Tan. BHERAT  BEEEE2EHE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, to the knowledge of B F X FrIEEEIN R -_T-—=4+— A

the Directors, no other person (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company nor their respective associates is considered to have
interests in a business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than
those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.

THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 March 2020, the Company has passed the resolution in a
shareholders’ meeting for the termination of the share option scheme
adopted on 31 December 2010 (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”)
and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2020 Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants (i.e. any director or employee (whether full time
or part time), executives or officers, any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers, any of the subsidiaries and agents of the Group)
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2020
Share Option Scheme became effective on 10 March 2020 and will
remain valid until 10 March 2030. The participants of the 2020 Share
Option Scheme may include directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture
partners, advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company. An offer
shall be deemed to have been accepted within 21 days from the date
on which an option is offered to an eligible participant and a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant thereof. The subscription price for any
share under the 2020 Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified to each grantee
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a share
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as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option; (ii) an amount equivalent to the average
closing price of the share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of the grant.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue
or grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from time to time. Notwithstanding anything contrary to the terms of
the 2020 Share Option Scheme, no options may be granted under any
scheme of the Company if this will result in the said 30% limit being
exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date of
such grant. Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings, with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the existing scheme
mandate limit of the 2020 Share Option Scheme which was refreshed
on 31 May 2021 is 51,353,857 Shares. Since the adoption of the 2020
Share Option Scheme and up to this report date, and taking into
account the Right Issues which completed on 23 November 2021 and
the share consolidation of the Company which took effect on 30
March 2023, the Company has granted options relating to 8,998,969
Shares under the 2020 Share Option Scheme representing
approximately 5.16% of the total issued Shares as at this report date,
of which options relating to 3,098,279 Shares are valid and
outstanding, and options relating to 5,332,800 Shares had been
exercised, options relating 567,890 Shares had been lapsed. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share of HK$0.2
each of the Company.
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Pursuant to the terms of the 2020 Share Option Scheme, the Board
may at any time terminate the operation of the 2020 Share Option
Scheme, and in such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the 2020 Share Option Scheme shall remain in force in all
other respects to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
the options granted prior to the termination.

As the Share Consolidation had taken effect on 30 March 2023,
adjustments were made to the exercise price and the number of
shares of the Company falling to be issued in respect of the
outstanding share options in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the 2020 Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2023, there were Share Options for 3,098,279
shares (after Share Consolidation) valid and outstanding under the
2020 Share Option Scheme.

On 8 June 2023, the Company passed the resolution in a shareholders’
meeting for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2023
Share Option Scheme”) and adoption of the 2023 share award plan
(the “2023 Share Award Plan”) for the purpose of providing the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
directors and employees of the Group and for such other purposes as
the Directors may approve from time to time. For detailed information,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 11 May 2023 and the
announcement of the Company dated 8 June 2023.

The 2023 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2023 Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that eligible participants (the “Eligible
Participants”) have made or may make to the Group, and to provide
the Eligible Participants with an opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company with the view to achieving the principal
objectives of (a) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (b)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are, will or expected
to be beneficial to the Group. A summary of the principal rules of the
2023 Share Option Scheme is set out in Appendix Il to the AGM
circular of the Company dated 11 May 2023 (the “AGM Circular”). The
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Directors believe that the provisions as well as such other terms as
may be determined by the Board, will serve to protect the value of the
Company as well as to achieve the purpose of the 2023 Share Option
Scheme.

None of the Directors is a trustee of the 2023 Share Option Scheme or
has a direct or indirect interest in the trustees of the 2023 Share
Option Scheme (if any). There is no trustee appointed for the purposes
of the 2023 Share Option Scheme.

The 2023 Share Award Plan

The purpose and objective of the 2023 Share Award Plan, which
involves the issue or repurchase of Shares, are: (i) to recognise and
reward the contribution of certain Eligible Participants to the growth
and development of the Group and to give incentives thereto in order
to retain them for continual operation and development of the Group;
and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. The reason for the Company to adopt the 2023 Share Award
Scheme is because it provides for the award of Awarded Shares to
Eligible Participants, who are not required to pay for those Shares
either on grant or on vesting of the award.

A summary of the principal rules of the 2023 Share Award Plan is set
out in Appendix IV to the AGM Circular. The Directors believe that the
provisions as well as such other terms as may be determined by the
Board, will serve to protect the value of the Company as well as to
achieve the purpose of the 2023 Share Award Plan.

None of the Directors is a trustee of the 2023 Share Award Plan or has
a direct or indirect interest in the trustees of the 2023 Share Award
Plan. Tricor Services Limited has been appointed as trustee for the
purposes of the 2023 Share Award Plan.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued in
respect of all share options and all share awards to be granted under
the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the 2023 Share Award Plan of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of adoption. Pursuant to Rule 17.07(3)
of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2023 and the date of this
report, the total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued under the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the 2023 Share
Award Plan is 1,557,836 shares.
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The total number of Share that may be issued in respect of options
granted under all schemes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in
issue for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately 10.7%.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the share option scheme was 18,316,378, representing
approximately 9.4% of the issue shares of the Company as at such
date.

The number of share options available for grant under the Share
Option Scheme were 101 and 1,557,836 as at 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023, respectively (taking into account the Share
Consolidation).

With the effectiveness of the new Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules with
effect from 1 January 2023, the Company shall comply with the
relevant rules of the new Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules under the
transitional arrangements before the Share Option Scheme is
amended to comply with the new Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in section
headed “Management Discussion And Analysis” of 2023 Annual
Report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company has participated in an approved Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Company in an independently-administered fund. The
Company’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. The Company’s contributions
to the MPF Scheme are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no forfeited contribution to the
retirement benefits scheme was credited to the statement of profit or
loss (2022: nil).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since the Listing Date,
the Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save
for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
annual report as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material events after the
reporting period up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited who retires and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re- appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lin Dailian
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B XA RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ENERGY STORAGE TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS “LINK-ASIA INTERNATIONAL MEDTECH
GROUP LIMITED”)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Storage Technology Development Limited (formerly known as
“Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited”) (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 145 to 273, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN =B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

PR E R

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, FAREHETEABRER PN EHE - 2AR
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial B ABREZ GEMEBREBHTHAEE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed inthe 2 E18 - RIFEE TS Gk EEETE
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a W tth ERE RERIBILEEE - M itk
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a ZEEHXRBBEER - ZFIET 2BEEEE
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified EIEA :

is as follows:

Key Audit Matter
BARETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EAMETETRNAEEBRRETSE

Impairment of loans to other parties and other
receivables

@ E At A 1 4E H # B R E A e W R RRLE

Refer to note 25 and note 26 of the consolidated financial
statements.

2R 6 ISR E 25 R MHEE 26 -

Loans to other parties and other receivables represent a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. A loss allowance
for 12-month or lifetime ECL is made on all loans to other
parties and other receivables.
MEMATEENERREMEBYKRIEL EXEEE
WEZE D - FTB REA A T EH 89 E 3% H ith fE IR
HH BRI E A EHEREEEENEEEE -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has loans to
independent third parties and individual with outstanding
principal and accrued interest totaling of approximately
HK$6,949,000 (net of allowance of credit losses of
approximately HK$38,765,000). During the year, reversal of
allowance for expected credit loss (“ECL”) of approximately
HK$4,466,000 was recognised in profit or loss due to the
settlement of HK$9,350,000.
RZZEZ=F+ZHA=+—H  EEERBIEF=AK
BAAELHNEFNREELRE REAMNELBOR
6,949,00078 7T (¥ B 15 & B 1B B 49 38,765,000 8 7T ) °
FAN - BRER9350,0008 T RIBREHERBEHEER
EE([FAHEEER]) BERDA S 446600087

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
impairment policy and the understanding of the
Group’s design and implementation of key
internal controls related to impairment
assessment.

TR ESENRERERTHR BESXEEH
AR S N ED T B 8 R AT R E i o

Checking the supporting documents including
loan agreement, repayment agreement and
repayment record on sampling basis;
MERERFBERBE - EXN DR NERCE
TERHE R

Evaluating management’s assessment of whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
or the credit risk of the financial asset has
increased to a point that it is considered credit-
impaired since initial recognition of material
loans.
AEEEBHUSHAEAERAREERR
ERBEEENSEREENFEERREEME
W REERERNIZERE
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KMETETRNAEEBRRETSE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has other receivables of
approximately HK$11,883,000 (net of allowance of credit
losses of approximately HK$14,859,000). During the year,
allowance for ECL of approximately HK$9,153,000 was
recognised in profit or loss due to increase in assessed
credit risk.

RZEBE_=F+-_A=+—H  EEEEMEWKZKIEL
11,883,000 7T (40 ﬁ?ﬁﬁf&ﬂaﬁéﬁ, (114,859,000 7T ) °
FR - ARFHEEERBRIZN - RNERCHEREBHEES
TET?E(%%’JZ%QBB,OOO,%E °

With the assistance of an independent external valuer
appointed by the Company, the management is required to
exercise significant judgement in determining whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk or the
credit risk of the financial asset has increased to a point that
it is considered credit-impaired since initial recognition, and
in estimating 12-month and lifetime ECL on the loans to
other parties and other receivables. Accordingly, this area is
considered as a key audit matter.

£ ERAZENBEIMNMEERINHBE T - EEEREL
BARAE - NETE BV BERUAREERR S D H IR EZEE
mEeMEENEERBRBENEWEREERENIEE
VA Rz Al 5t 1A Efth A 1E B 80 B 3k B B At FE W R IE 9 12 18 A &%
ZHTEEEEEE - Bt - L EEER REREFIE -

Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

AHEBII N ERE B - e RF B

With the assistance of our valuation specialists,
assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
models used by management to estimate ECL;
comparing the inputs to the models to external
data; and assessing the appropriateness of any
forward looking adjustments in light of available
information about current and forecast future
economic conditions; and
EEMOEESEROBY T  SFHEEEAR
hETEMEEEENREERNES T - H1E
Rl pag A BUREINBEREITH R - RIRIEA
B8 Al R TE) ﬁlJ?K?K%&%‘Hﬁ:?RE’UﬁJﬁH BER T EE
AIRTREEAEMES T &

Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
of the allowance for impairment of loans to other
parties and other receivables and the related
credit risk;

M ESEERREMATEESNERREM
FEWRIE R BB M KRB EE R R 2 RER
M
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Key Audit Matter
AREITSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KMETETRNAEEBRRETSE

Impairment of intangible assets
BREERE

Refer to note 20 of the consolidated financial statements.
2R IS RERMIFE20 ©

Intangible assets, which mainly consist of EAR-1 and EAR-3
(as defined in note 20), represent a significant portion of
the Group’s assets.

BEEETZOREERRERE 1RBRREE 3(EER
Bfizr20) - 1 EEEEEMNEKRILD o

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of EAR-1 and
EAR-3 are approximately HK$1,700,000 and HK$31,779,000
respectively net of impairment loss provision of
approximately HK$20,365,000 and HK$nil respectively. The
management of the Group carried out impairment
assessment of the recoverable amount of EAR-Tand EAR-3
which is based on estimated future cash flows to be
generated from the respective real estate projects and the
distribution of testing and measuring equipments products
and the provision of after-sale services, respectively. The
Group recognised impairment losses of approximately
HK$2,620,000 on EAR-1 during the year ended
31 December 2023.

RZBEZ=F+ZA=1T—0 BRRE# 1 RBRRE
T —3MEREE S BI49/41,700,000 7% 7T K& 31,779,000 A 7T (5
BN E BB B £ 20,365,000 8 T REHET) o S
EERESRIRBEEBEMEERR Mo HAHMAEREE
mARIBHERRBNEFRRRSRE - HERRIERE
EBRREE IHA KB eBETRENG #E_F
ZEFFTZA=T-HIEFE X BESERIBRARIERE
B E 18 492,620,000 7T °

With the assistance of an independent external valuer
appointed by the Company, the management is required to
exercise significant judgement in determining the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets. Accordingly,
this area is considered as a key audit matter.

£ ERAZANBINMEERNBE T  RETEFE
EFE SR - BIREAEDERAE - Bt - phEy
WIR mEARET £ o

Obtaining the supporting documents to confirm
the validity of the exclusive agency rights of the
real estate project;
RISHREMAEEBBRREEFMENERX
"

Obtaining the external valuation reports and
discussing with the external valuer to challenge
the valuation process, methodologies used and
market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

BGIN B ERE - WERINBEERM - A
MFRABZEERY  FERBRXFEERI S
PR 2 BRI R R &2 5B

With the assistance of our valuation specialists,
reviewing the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model prepared by the external valuer;
ERMOEESROBE T - SHARAZEE
B FERRZIFINBEEMERZ HERR
RRTA 2 ERAE RRE 2 TT5RE

Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;
HRTIHERE REMERNAZEERERE
N ¢

Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model; and
BEMERAF 2 EMiEREE R

Assessing the disclosure of the fair value
measurement in the intangible assets.

AEAEETEEATEABZREEN -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, regarding among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chun Sing

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO5537
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

. = N/

AN
YA A = Ej/ﬁ_

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HBEZ—_F=

=F+=A=t+—BILFE

2023
—E-=

Notes HK$°000

k22 FET

Revenue WA 8 501,999
Cost of sales SHE A (365,132)

Gross profit EF 136,867

Other income EHAbUg A 9 13,144

Other gains and losses H b sk K &5 18 10 8,841
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERY (37,988)
Administrative expenses TERER (88,776)

Reversal (provision) of impairment
losses on loans to other parties, net

Impairment losses on trade
receivables, net of reversal

Impairment losses on other

A A T EFRERE
BE(EE) - 8
R E SRR ERR

Eit[e e

Hpth EU BB (B R 1R

4,466
(179)
(9,153)

(2,620)
(13,209)

11,393

11 (3,065)

8,328

12 (3,163)

13 5,165

5,257
(92)

5,165

receivables, net of reversal B[]

Impairment losses on intangible \|EERERE
assets

Research and development expenditure #f7% & FZE s H

Profit (loss) from operations KRR (EE)

Finance costs B E AR

Profit (loss) before tax BRELATER (B518)

Income tax expense s x

Profit (loss) for the year FERA (EE)

Attributable to: DT&SEMN :
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ PN
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R

Earnings (loss) per share SREF (EE) 17
Basic (HK cents per share) A (AN
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (FB)

2022
=

A S

HK$'000
THETT

529,251

(427,855)

101,396
9,631
6,690

(29,988)

(105,039)
(4,118)
(606)
(4,206)

(3,615)
(14,511)

(44,366)

(4,051)

(48,417)

(3,592)

(52,009)

(54,042)
2,033

(52,009)

(Restated)
(g2 =%))

(49.961)

N/A TEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reBnMlEMEE NG

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E—= -
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Btat FET FETT
Profit (loss) for the year FERM (FE) 5,165 (52,009)
Other comprehensive expense: Hih2mEAX :
Items that may be reclassified to AEH S EEEmmIER
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEBINETE 2 [ R EE

foreign operations (139)
Reclassification of cumulative translation H & —RIE & A 5 RS M

reserve upon disposal of an associate —MMfBARBENHE

and deregistration of a subsidiary REHE N GEE -
Other comprehensive expense FEHMZEBX > MNKREE

for the year, net of tax (139)
Total comprehensive expense FEXAMZHAE

for the year (52,148)
Attributable to: AT & 7 A -

Owners of the Company KRaEB A (54,181)

Non-controlling interests ISR A 2,033

(52,148)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARE MR

As at 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F+=-A=+—H

Notes
k23

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &R 18
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19
Intangible assets EEE 20
Rental deposits Heke 25
Total non-current assets kRBEELE
Current assets REEE
Inventories g 23
Trade receivables U E SRR 24
Prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE ~ Hme R EH A ERGIE

other receivables 25
Loans to other parties mEMATREHER 26
Amounts due from directors FEUE EFIA 42
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS 5% 27
Assets classified as held-for-sale DIEABEHENEE 22
Total current assets REBEEHAE
TOTAL ASSETS BEEHAE
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES RAEREME
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners NARER AE(LERE

of the Company
Share capital & A 34
Reserves 1 36

Non-controlling interests ISR R A
Total equity R

2023 2022
—E-= =

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

14,421 21,058
18,674 33,240
34,113 68,380

3,279 1,157

70,487 123,835

54,660 56,799
145,309 115,354
223,568 92,619

6,949 8,032
3,878 536
271,567 252,209
705,931 525,549
= 9,849
705,931 535,398
776,418 659,233

39,155 24,154
447,508 335,708
486,663 359,862

2,062 2,154
488,725 362,016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

are MR

As at 31 December 2023 R=ZE=_=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E_= T
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k23 FET FATT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 20,914
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHETE 20,914
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B E SRR 28 76,471 40,186
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M E M E R IR 29 179,770 201,832
Amount due to director BN ESFIE 42 - 149
Lease liabilities HEAaE 30 6,894 16,596
Borrowings ’g 31 4,849 13,565
Product warranty provisions E MR ARE 32 696 1,207
Current tax liabilities BVEATIE B (B 4,011 2,768
Total current liabilities FREBEEAE 272,691 276,303
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREEHRE 776,418 659,233

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and are signed #Eze@pR T —py&E=HF -+ \BH#LETHT
on its behalf by: WATRAEESE :

Lin Dailian BIAN Su Lan
PRAR BB TE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

IRREE AR
Foreign
Share Share currency Non-
Share  premium option Merger  translation Contributed  Statutory Capital Capital - Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve  contribution losses Total interests equity
b FER

& EER BRERE ANRE ENRE  HAB®  tRME  EAHE  ERNE  2HEE Eh R RESE
(note36  (note36  (note36  (note36  (note36  (note36  (nofe3p  (note 36
(note 34) b)) (b)) (b)) (b)) b)) (b)) o) o))
(W3 (W% (W% (WE% WEs (BE% (BE% (W%
(Hiz34) (00} (xi) (i) (b)i) (&) ) o) o))
HKS000  HKS000  HKEO000  HK$O000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKE000  HK$000  HKSO0D  HK$000
TEr  TEr  TER  TER  TAr  TEn AR TEr  TEr  TER AR TEr ¢

At 1 January 2022 R-F-=f-F-R 18,487 713,018 4576 5L 14,684 18,298 2502 4215 11080 (484414) 365877 m 365,99
Total comprefensive expense for the year FR2ARKEE - - - - (139) (5404) (54,181 203 (52148)
Issuance of consideration shares (note 34(@) ~ B1TRERA (Hiz346) 4600 33200 - - - - - 37,800 - 37,800
Exercie of shares options (note 34(b) TR (Wit 4) 1,067 7374 (2,788) - - - - - - - 5,653 - 5,653
Lapse of share options BREXH - - (924) - - - - - - 94 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled DURELENRABER R

share-based payments - - 4713 - - - - - - - 4713 - 4713
Changes in equity for the year EERREY 5,667 40574 1,001 - (139 - - - -G8 (601 2033 (3982)
At 31 December 2022 and RZE-ZF+-A=1-AR

1 January 2023 “2-ZF-f-A 24154 813592 5511 517 14545 18,298 2502 4215 1280 (53753) 359862 2,154 362,016
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEEARNER (8,150) - - (2893)
Issuance of shares upon subscription (note 34(c) PBEBETRE (M5 340) - - - 96,015
Issuance of shares upon placing (note 34(e)) ~ REEBRAIRGA (B 340) - - - 30,995
Lapse of share options BREXH - - - -
Recognition of equity-settled ENREEE RN AEE AR

share-based payments - - 2,684
Changes in equity for the year ERERRY 112,009 (8,150) - - 6032 126801
At 31 December 2023 RZB=Z%+-A=1-H 925,601 6,395 18,298 2,502 11,280 (531,500) 486,663
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
reaRilenER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—=E_= T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF F&T FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before tax MrFL R = A (E518) (48,417)
Adjustments for: FEE
Impairment losses on trade FEUNE SR FUREEE
receivables, net of reversal FOBR £ (o] 606
Impairment losses on other H b pE WG IR R E S 1 -
receivables, net of reversal FOBR B (o] 4,206
Reversal (provision) of impairment mMEMATERZBE
losses on loans to other parties, net EriEm () - FHE 4,118
Impairment losses on intangible ER A EREREIE
assets 3,615
Reversal of allowance on inventories,  fF&E# &% [0 - F4E
net (1,967)
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 2,640
Depreciation of property, YWE  WENMREINE
plant and equipment 9,909
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEINE 17,756
Early termination of a lease IRATRIERE 15
Finance costs & R AN 4,051
Gain on disposal of associates HERB SN R E -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRHBARZ W (1,780)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — =:$4—RIHI B A 72 Wk -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  WERZEZ
plant and equipment &8 31
Interest income on loans to mEMATERZ
other parties HEHA (1,507)
Bank interest income and bank RITH B WA KSR 1TE 5
fixed deposit interest income TR B YA (2,681)
Provision on product warranty, EmRAREE  NkEE
net of reversal (852)
Fair value losses on investments BAFEFABEN
at FVTPL BB 2N FERE 109
Equity-settled share-based payments  LARREAEE AR (D AEREAY
IDE- 4,713
Waive of license rights payable B R RT3 (5,851)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HRAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-= =S
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FHET
Operating profit (loss) before working %38 & 4 & &) 5l 4 & % 1)
capital changes (E18) 30,747 (11,316)
Decrease in license fee payables AT REE N FOR = (1,938)
Decrease in inventories FERD 2,240 64,083
(Increase) decrease in trade FEWE 5 BR 3k (BE ) #k
receivables (30,291) 46,272
(Increase) decrease in prepayments,  TEfIFIE » 124 K E M EK
deposits and other receivables FRIE (3L H0) A A (140,623) 1,305
Increase in loans to other parties mE A A T EFIE 0 (239) (2,479)
Increase in amount due JE g 2 =8 ZRIE L N
from directors (4,027) (387)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables  JEfHE FERFIE N CRl) 36,285 (18,508)
(Decrease) increase in accruals TEIRE A N E M BUR
and other payables O ) 3E 0 36,621
Decrease in product warranty EmiRBRER D
provisions (1,525)
Proceeds from disposal of equity HERAFEFTABED
investments at FVTPL fRHEIR & 2 PSR IE 1,120
Cash (used in) generated from &E (R FERE
operations 113,248
Income tax paid B AmEH (5,683)
Finance costs paid BB RA (975)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 38(e) (3,076)
Net cash (used in) generated from FEEE (FTR) TS
operating activities Re TR 103,514
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\\/\ Iﬁi;ﬁgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—=E-= T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
Hiat FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Disposal of an associate ank =R il /N]
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FIEAR 3,500
Bank interest received BUERTTFIE. 2,681
Repayment from loans to other parties Hih A +TEZEZ 1,224
Refundable deposit paid for exclusive X {PBRAE#EZ fREFT S
agency right 2,000
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  WENEE
equipment (7,955)
Proceed on disposal of property, LEWE - BERSREZ
plant and equipment FriSs0E 684
Refund of consideration upon BItEEEE RERE
termination of intangible assets -
Net cash generated from investing BREESMBE ST
activities 2,134

152 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited Bl aE Rl 3R B R A 7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeRRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

Notes
Mt et

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHEEARE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares 1T{F R IRRERS B 1T AR (D BT 1S

upon exercise of share options I8 34(b)
Proceeds from issuance of shares upon R 21T PS8

subscription 34(c)
Proceeds from issuance of shares upon R ER TR (D TS 3K I8

placing 34(e)
Principal elements of lease payments ~ FERZAL D 38(f)
Deposits from the subscriber of share 4RI ¥ 4ETE T I (D B1THY

issue under specific mandate REEBAZFH
Borrowings raised EE5ER
Repayment of borrowings BEER
Repayment of bonds payable EBERENES
Net cash generated from financing BB EEMSIR S F5

activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBREEEYWEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS HE
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREFHTE

changes
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HBHHWEERES

AT 1 JANUARY EEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT+-A=+—HKEBEER

AT 31 DECEMBER BEEEY 27

2023

—g-=

HK$°000
TR

101,844

21,411

(2,053)

252,209

271,567

2022

HK$'000
THETT

(16,970)

5,000
14,000
(1,000)
(2,000)

4,683

110,331

(3,696)

145,574

252,209
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability
on 18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business is Suites 3501 &
3513-14, 35th Floor, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%= A H

sRe MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

— A
RRABIRZZE—ZEFRATNBARER
AEEREHEAMKIAEREER
A Al H 3 F B i 4k & Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © & &
EEMBBIRBEBNERDEEBHE
Jk K= 28 6 FE 3542 3501 & 3513-14 = © AKX
RAIKODEBEBEXSMBR QA
(B3P ]) MR 7 o

ARABRARRAT - EHBRT
EEEHHRB A B RRNE2 -

MRBEA

HZEFAMBRRDBEEEGTA
([ EBEMAE)BEMHZAEER
BV BHmEEN(EBMBREE
ADHER FEMHEREENBERE
MigmE R (BB BREER]) -
BEGEYN(EBEFEN] k2
B ZEGEAVMBRRTTABINE
Z EmRRAN £ R 1) &8 A 3 R 5
XRBBERAERD(F622F) M HER
E o ANEBRM 2 EXGABERNHIFE4
B

BERMASTRME T REE
RIEEVHEHmEEN  RFEANAE
EASTHEERERKAHERK
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EREEFEVBRRARR  BEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts
October 2020 and
February 2022 Amendments
to HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two model Rules
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

RN MRERI BBV mEE

Ell

(a)

eI MR BB SR E R
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fhAg ((BEREFMAE])) M
BFEMEHEERETA » ZFE
AIABLRBUR A BmMARME N =
T =F—- A Bk ZEMABNE
JZ R 58 Bl A R

BEMBREEN  RRAY

FUG(BEE

ZZIEETAR

“ECFZA/

EFTR)

ERSHEREST ST IER

CHES)

ERAETEAENT HEERFEEMN

CHES) BERARGIEH
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EAEHEN BRHBSE -

FNH(BITX) E-YHRAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%= A H

sRe MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

o

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of

the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazette the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”), which will come into effect from 1 May 2025
(the “Transition Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance
takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of the
accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions
to mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to reduce
the long service payment (“LSP”) in respect of an
employee’s service from the Transition Date (the abolition
of the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in
respect of the service before the Transition Date will be
calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and the years of
service up to that date. In July 2023, the HKICPA published
“Accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides
accounting guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism
and the abolition of the mechanism. In particular, the
guidance indicates that entities may account for the
accrued benefits derived from mandatory MPF
contributions that are expected to be used to reduce the
LSP payable to an employee as deemed contributions by
that employee towards the LSP. However, applying this
approach, upon the enactment of the Amendment
Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer permissible to apply
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that
previously allowed such deemed contributions to be
recognised as reduction of service cost (negative service
cost) in the period the contributions were made; instead
these deemed contributions should be attributed to
periods of service in the same manner as the gross LSP

benefit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NS

Eﬁﬁ#&% |3ﬁ nf

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

7

RNFTR] M ERT BB B mEE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

€)

()

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of
the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism
(Continued)

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism, the Group has changed its
accounting policy in connection with its LSP liability and
has applied the above HKICPA guidance retrospectively.
The cessation of applying the practical expedient in
paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 in conjunction with the
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance resulted in a
catch-up profit or loss adjustment in June 2022 for the
service cost up to that date and consequential impacts on
current service cost, interest expense and remeasurement
effects from changes in actuarial assumptions for the rest
of 2022, with the corresponding adjustment to the
comparative carrying amount of the LSP liability. This
change in accounting policy did not have any material
impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2022.
It also did not have a material impact on the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments
to standards and interpretation that have been issued but
are not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2023. The new standard, amendments to
standards and interpretation include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRAFTET SR BB SRS 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) B (%)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (o) EBMEEARER I REIERT
(Continued) BV REAER| ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT B 2%
BN EHEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

ERMBHREEAB 0 REBESTERIFE 285 (BFTA) —REEH
HEtE AR EE FANEELENEE

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
ERVBEMEERF 6 (BFIA) —ERERRSFNHEEARE

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BB EAUE IR (BRIAR) —BEESBEARBHIFRE K
HAEBREE SR BT (ZZE_FF)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
BB EUNF IR UBIA) —WAERFBNIERB AR

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 — Supplier Finance Arrangements
BERGEAE TR RBEBMBRELNE 7R (BF]AR) —HEERELH

Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability
BERGFTEAE 215 (IBFTAR) — B Al L]

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it

has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have A] BE &
a significant impact on the consolidated financial 2o
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise

in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the

holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued) @ HSFEKRBE(8)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued) @ HSFEKRB(8)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combination (other than under common control)
and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, BEREFBERER(8)
(Continued)
(b) Business combination (other than under common control) (b) EBAEG(HEEEHERI) RgE

and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the consideration
transferred in a business combination to calculate the
goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁnf

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

IR A

W, N

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

©

Foreign currency translation

®

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or 1oss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR A
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P ek

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

©

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

4.

EXE

©

oM

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment ) Y- BENMEE

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Over the lease term
or 20%-25%

Leasehold improvements

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools 10%-50%
Furniture and equipment 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 18%-33/:%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)

(e) Leases (e) HE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)

(e) Leases (Continued) (e) HME(E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(e) Leases (Continued) (e) HME(E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the group took
advantage of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

Intangible assets acquired separately

(i) Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
customer relationship

Customer relationship are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Customer relationship 3-6 years
Computer software 3years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

EX®

ATERERER (8)

(f) Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued) fH EARkENEEEE (&)
(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i) EERAEAEHNELE
exclusive agency rights for real estate projects E-EHEEENBERRE
rE
The exclusive agency rights represent exclusive right BRAEBEAERENARIE
to sell certain properties in Thailand within agreed HRNEEZHEHES TWED
agency periods; BHRER -

Exclusive agency rights
BRAERE

Agency Period
2 AR

Number of units

BEUHE

Level Condominium
("EAR-1")

Level Condominium

(IBxRREE1])

LA VIE ("EAR-2")

LAVIE(BRRERE-2])

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to project
owner or property developer for the acquisition of

exclusive agency rights.

from 1 January 2020 to 17 March 2021,
and further extended from 17 March
2021 to 30 November 2025

R-E-TF—H— E'j:;?;_i
—A+tR: RE—TFH-_ - —F
EH+tHﬁ§§_T_£¢
+—A=+H

from 18 August 2020 to 24 November 2021
and further extended from 24 November
2021 to 24 May 2023, terminated on
5 September 2024
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77 villas planned to be
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. BERGFTHEEHR(E)
(Continued)
(f) Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued) O  EARUENEREE (&)
(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i) EERUEAEHNERE

exclusive agency rights for real estate projects
(Continued)

The amortisation of exclusive agency rights is
calculated by the number of units sold during the
period over the total number of units granted, after
taking into consideration of any residual value. The
residual value of exclusive agency right is the
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already
of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life.

At each financial reporting period end, the
management will review the forecast of units sold
over the remaining agency period and the estimation
of residual value, and consider whether it is necessary
to adjust the amortised cost shared by each unit.

Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
agency right for testing and measuring equipments
products (“EAR-3")

The agency rights represented (i) exclusive agency
right to distribute a list of testing and measuring
equipments products (the “Products”) and the right
for after-sale service in Hong Kong SAR and in Macau
SAR; and (ii) non-exclusive agency right to distribute
the Products and the right for after-sale service in the
regions of Asia outside the mainland China, except
Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR, within agreed
agency periods from the date of acquisition to 6
December 2031.

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to an
assignor for the acquisition of the agency right.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)

(9) Research and development expenditure (9) MEEFEESZH

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
product development activity is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

—  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— Management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

—  There s ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

— Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available;

—  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR A

[\\/ N

P ek

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

®

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
() Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments () WREKIERSRHITIAEE)
(Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()  Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
() Financial assets (Continued) G EBMEEE)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

(n) Borrowings and bonds payable

Borrowings and bonds payable are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings and bonds payable are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the reporting period.

(o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

(p) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue and other income (@ WAREMIA

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i)  Revenue from the sale of electronic products, medical
equipment products and energy storage products are
recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the customer has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customer as this
represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

(i) The real estate supply chain services operation
provides two type of services, the real estate advisory
service and real estate purchase service. The real
estate advisory service provides the customer with
real estate investment advice and help them to
source investment opportunities in South East Asia
and Pan Asia markets. Real estate purchase service
provides services for obtaining the legal title of real
estate investment on behalf of customer. The
customer will negotiate the price of the two services
together, and the customer usually pay a lump sum
fee that represents the sum of the consideration of
the two services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue and other income (Continued) (@ WAREMUKA ()
(i) (Continued) (n (%)

Real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service are two distinct performance obligations. The
transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis
estimated using the expected cost plus a margin
approach.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service and real estate purchase service at a
point in time upon completion of each service.

According to the related terms of real estate
purchase services, the Group has contracted to
arrange delivery and transfer of legal title to the
customers within a period specified in the service
agreement. If the Group fails to fulfil the obligation on
time, the customer has the unilateral right to cancel
the contract, and recover all the payments made to
the Group, together with the interest determined
based on the formula specified in the service
agreement.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
amount of revenue recognised to date will not occur
should the legal title to the subject real estate not be
transferred to the customer within the timeframe
specified in the service agreement.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission
are recognised when the services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

Employee benefits

)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued) n REEBHE)

(i) Pension obligations (Continued)

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be offsetted
as a deemed employee contribution towards the LSP
obligation in term of HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a) and it
is measured on a net basis. The estimated amount of
future benefit is determined after deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which are
deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

(ili) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of transaction does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)

(t) Taxation (Continued) t ME(E)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)

(t) Taxation (Continued) O ME(E)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(u) Impairment of non-financial assets (W FemEERE

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)

(v)  Impairment of financial assets v) EBEERE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade receivables, other
receivables and loans to other parties, as well as on
financial guarantee contracts. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(v)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) V) SREEREE)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

SRR M oL

YA A =

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

BERETBREMN(E)

)

TREEREGE)
FERE R KRS M (&)

Eim LA FHE SR - NEE
fRIE i & I B HIEE B 30K
AlemEENEERR B HHER
PATRFEZIE NN - BRIEARE BB
REERRI EEEIR NS IER
SFER - AERR

BEMAIXAT - AEBERRME
BMTARNHEAPRETEREER
aRE - AemIANEERRB
6 FERRIA SR AR Z AL AN - fi

h =TERIANEZORRE -

(i EHABRKEINOHA
BITHAHNREREEE
&

(iy PR EBHARANRBAH
B BB RV EHISSER
AETEARHNBESRERE
MEEN  Blem T AWERE
REEERBRERIE -

AEERS  HIRBEARNEE -
EREEMNIFEEFRSHRE
AR AR RS S BB R AR
ZEEEB B AMFE - Al
ZeREEAAREEERR - B
HMEREXZHTFHEERYNIH
AR R I 4838 A R

Annual Report 3 2023 187



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) V) SmEEREE)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) V) SmEEREE)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) v) EBMEEREE)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-
looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

FHFEBRENTERER

BEHEEBEBENERENA L
- BHOBER(ANHRBORH
BEREE) MEORRO R - Z
KR BEME MR B R R ey aT A TR
SRIE S BUBETT - Yl B XXPTit ey
AIEEERHEL R - L REE
mE @ EWERAZEENREH
HMEmAE LM BERE QM
5 BREENHRE B HRRNE
BEREAERELBE  AEE
BEBAFERRRET ROERE
AR E A ERATIE B R B R eV TE
ISR HGE £ B BT iR AR RS
TR

RERMEEMS  BAHREEEER
REBEEVENARENOMBESHR
REEAKERERBUIIZRE
ERMEYEBRENMAREREZR
R ERETTIET -

AU BREERENME - ARREE
RITAGK  AEBEAREBEA
ERRELNR BHEERER
EEREAMELEEBEMNIER
MR AEEBTERHAA - B
ASAE R E A T WELE (LA &2 78 -

HAEE D BERSHREZAS
RERBREEEENSEES
BT EMEBREE  ERARER
HET2HEMEEERGTTE
ERK  AARBRARE BHER
BERT —EAEHREEERENS
BERTEERRE EERBEN
BERRIN

AEEGABSRTARBRTE
RBEN R - IE B ER R
B REREEFLARAE -

190 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited 2 Bl e BRI BB R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

(x) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the

higher of:

—  the amount determined in accordance with the ECL

model under HKFRS 9; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of

HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRARM

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. EBASEHET N EEEE
(i) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies () FEEETBERAEREME
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the FEBEFEERE EFE/EHT
directors have made the following judgements that have PSR E M SRR ER N FIE S &
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in K2 7 Hb (B R Ahst &
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those ERTXER) -

involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Significant increase in credit risk (a)

As explained in note 4(v), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i)  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(Continued)

(b) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to
exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s

operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.

Further information is set out in note 19,

The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the current financial year, no lease term has

been reassessed.

5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BERHEREZEF(E)

(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (i) fHErTHABAEZEZEEHRR
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key PRERREARARNEEBRELE
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the M EET T REBARE R 2 E ERR (Y
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a T—HRFEZEEREBEBENERR
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and BEREAFAERZEXNER)ET
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed XETm e
below.
(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and @ YE BERIEBURMSER

right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December
2023 was approximately HK$14,421,000 (2022:
HK$21,058,000) and HK$18,674,000 (2022:
HK$33,240,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BERHEREZMEF(E)
(Continued)
(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) (HEFTHBAEZEZ EERE(E)
(b) Impairment of exclusive agency rights EAR-1 (b) BRAREHEEAR-1ZFEE

The Group paid HK$25,000,000 to a company
("BXG”) in 2019 as prepayment and has reclassified
that prepayment as intangible assets in 2020, which
represents exclusive agency rights (“EAR-1") for
certain number of apartments (both furnished and
without decoration).

On 1 December 2022, BXG further extended the
appointment of the Group as its exclusive agent to
30 November 2025.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, in view of
impairment indicators, the Group performed
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of
EAR-1. The recoverable amount represented its value
in use determined based on discounted cashflow
forecast prepared by the management of the Group.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$2,620,000 (2022:
HK$3,615,000) was recognised in profit or loss. As at
31 December 2023, the carrying amount of EAR-1is
approximately HK$1,700,000 (net of impairment loss
provision of approximately HK$20,365,000).

AEEBRZZE — M F R
— A » @((BXG)) X fF
25,000,000 JT1E B TE T 3K
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BERExEAE HRERE—
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K& -
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(ZZF = = F : 36150008
L) e R-_ZE-_=ZF+—A
=+—H  EARIHIEREEY
1,700,000 74 7T (41 Bx Rl & &5
1BEHE#) 20,365,000/87T) °

Annual Report 3 2023 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
AN

VA% R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

o

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

@i

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c) Amortisation of exclusive agency rights EAR-1 and

EAR-3

The Group determines the amortisation of exclusive
agency rights EAR-1 based on the allocation of costs
corresponds to the actual number of units sold during
the reporting period over the total number of units
with exclusive agency rights granted under EAR-],
respectively. The Group considered this method is
more appropriate to reflect the usage of the exclusive
agency rights as the customers demand varies from
period to period.

Due to the pandemic, the term of exclusive agency
rights EAR-1 were extended and revised and the
economic effects of the pandemic could materially
affects sales forecast. At each financial reporting
period end, management will review the forecast of
the number of units that can be sold before the
expiry of exclusive agency rights, and the estimation
of residual value. Any changes to the forecast may
result in changes in the unit amount of amortisation.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no
amortisation (2022: nil) of exclusive agency right
EAR-1 was recognised in profit or loss.

The Group determines the amortisation of exclusive
agency right EAR-3 based on the agreed agency
periods from the date of acquisition to 6 December
2031,

For the year ended 31 December 2023, approximately
HK$4,014,000 (2022: HK$2,007,000) was recognised
as amortisation of exclusive agency right EAR-3 in
profit or loss.

5.

kgl eI )

0]

BET TR E 2 E 2 RR(B)

()
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

©

(d)

Amortisation of exclusive agency rights EAR-1and
EAR-3 (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of EAR-1
and EAR-3 were approximately HK$1,700,000 and
HK$31,779,000 (2022:HK$4,320,000 and
HK$35,793,000) respectively net of impairment loss
provision of approximately HK$20,365,000 and HK$nil
(2022:HK$17,745,000 and HK$nil) respectively.

Impairment of agency rights EAR-3

The Group settled HK$37,800,000 by the allotment
and issue of 230,000,000 shares of the Company to
a scientific instruments manufacturer (the
“Assignor”) in 2022 for an intangible asset, which
represents (i) the exclusive agency right to distribute
the Products and the right for after-sale service in
Hong Kong SAR and in Macau SAR; and (ii) the non-
exclusive agency right to distribute the Products and
the right for after-sale service in the regions of Asia
outside the mainland China, except Hong Kong SAR
and Macau SAR (“EAR-3").

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, in view of
impairment indicators, the Group performed
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of
EAR-3. The recoverable amount represented its value
in use determined based on discounted cashflow
forecast prepared by the management of the Group.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts. For the year ended 31 December 2023, no
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss
(2022: nil).

5.

B8 I i e = 245 ()

)

AR TR ZE 2 T ERIR(E)

()

(d)

BXRAREZEAR-1Z EAR-3
e (@)
%:;::¢+*H:+*
CREMBRREBERES
}EJ“J Z’]ZO 365 OOO/% JC & = /E

T(ZEE == 17,745,000
/%TE& /%7'5)1§ EAR-1 &
EAR-3ZBRHEE D Bl A

1,700,000 7T F2. 31,779,000 /&
T(ZZE =4 : 4320,0007%
7T 5% 35,793,000 7T) °

RIEEAR-3 ZRE

RZZEZZF - ARQF

m— %ﬂﬂ{*””%zjﬂ(%
E A BB R E T
230,000,000 BB 17 L2 &
= 8 137,800,000 7T * A
BEREEERODETBE
TR E RORPIRF BT R [E
HEMRERREENNE
KB RMEFBEAM
LASNEE N [ (BB R RITTIR
& SORPIRFRIFT R BR AN 5
HEMRERRBEEN®IE
BRNIERE ([EAR-3]) ©

RZEZ=FR=-F=_=
+ZA=+—8 ERREE
PR NEBEHEAR-3H R
EEERERf o AT EE
BERBErEEEEERE
E"],ﬁaﬁfﬁﬁﬁ/m]’é E‘J}*Il:_ﬁlﬂi
AEME - BERMGEFHE
(BIEAIR YIRS RETENR
iET’)’@%ﬁTH&@%%EFE
BERRXE - BE_T_=F
+= H7+—E¢¢F *E}E
EREEBENERER(Z
::i-?)

Annual Report ¥ 2023 197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BERHEREZEF(E)
(Continued)
(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) (HEFTEHBAEZEZ EERE(E)
(d) Impairment of agency rights EAR-3 (Continued) (d) RIEREEAR-3ZHE (&)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
EAR-3 was approximately HK$31,779,000. (2022:
HK$35,793,000)

Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables,
and loans to other parties

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables, other
receivables and loans to other parties based on their
credit risk. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, further impairment loss
could be necessary.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
trade receivables was approximately
HK$145,309,000 (net of allowance for trade
receivables of approximately HK$1,005,000) (2022:
HK$115,354,000 (net of allowance for trade
receivables of approximately HK$826,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e) Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables,

and loans to other parties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
other receivables was approximately HK$11,883,000
(net of allowance for other receivables of
approximately HK$14,859,000) (2022:
HK$57,024,000 (net of allowance for other
receivables of approximately HK$5,971,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
loans to other parties was approximately
HK$6,949,000 (net of allowance for loans to other
parties of approximately HK$38,765,000) (2022:
HK$8,032,000 (net of allowance for loans to other

parties of approximately HK$43,231,000).

(f) Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome in future is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/
write-back in the period in which such estimate has

been changed.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximated HK$54,660,000 (2022:
HK$56,799,000) net of the accumulated allowance
for slow-moving inventories of approximately

HK$16,843,000 (2022: HK$16,944,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BERHEREZEF(E)
(Continued)
(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) (HEFTEHBAEZEZ EERE(E)
(9) Share-based payments (9) URBHAERZAR

The fair value of share options granted is estimated
by independent professional valuer based on the
various assumptions on volatility, life of options,
dividend paid out rate and annual risk-free interest
rate, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions, which generally represent the best
estimate of the fair value of the share options at the
date of grant.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, approximately
HK$2,684,000 (2022: HK$4,713,000) recognised in
profit or loss and correspondingly to share option
reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have been
arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of reporting period had changed
at that day, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

B 75 R B 3

AREBXRBEHAIZTET AR : S
KRk BRER EERR RBE
T B K N R E B o AN S L Y 42 58 L F
BIRAE BN S Rm SN A R
RYENBREHAEEPBRENEED
2

(@) SMNERR

AEBEFAZE TIHINERR - REA
RAHBOEBRS  BERAEE
ZUASEERZIEERIIE -
R 62 [ 3R B 3F 4 5 TE B R EL A NS
R BERBENIINEE K
R ARBEYEREINERR -
FERGEZELPERRSNERL o

BT B IR B B T
Ao WA s AR EARR
MERRZEMEEET  SEEF
518 RS T A IR 0 N 2 1k
T RFR ©

Increase/

(decrease) in

consolidated

Foreign  profit after tax
currency (2022: Increase/
strengthened/ (decrease) in
(weakened) consolidated
by loss after tax)
memR

#n,/ (i)

(ZB=-=&F:

HNEFHES BRBRGEER
(B2E) /()
HK$000

TET

Year ended 31 December 2023 EE-_=F
+TZA=t—HLEE

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TARE])

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z—-—fF
TZRA=+—HLEFE

Renminbi (‘RMB”) AEE(TARM])

5%/ (5%) 2,547/(2,547)

5%/ (5%) 2,038/(2,038)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (including trade
and other receivables, loans to other parties and amounts
due from directors) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial

instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for which

the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UKEREE(E)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERE(E)

Trade receivables (Continued) EWESRX(E)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables AEBZBESENE2HEHREERE
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated RS RETERIE IR BB &
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit B EEBEHREESESEERR
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss HBEBTE - ARASBERBTE
patterns for different customer segments, the loss EEBEBRITEB TR TREE S
allowance based on past due status is not further MEBEXFEERER  thiAsE
distinguished between the Group’s different customer B EE—TESETRZEER
bases. 2 ERE AR EE T R B IE R -
The following table provides information about the Group’s TREFNEEAEBR T ==
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at + - A=F+—HEAENEERR X
31 December 2023: EWESERTEHEEHENE

B

2023
e

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE REOLE EHERE
% HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHExT

Current (not past due) BNHEA (R0 HA) 110,579 106
1-90 days past due WEIIZE 90 H 34,199 821
91-180 days past due #HINE180 H 1,013 47
More than 180 days past due #HA180 H LA E 523 31

Credit-impaired (note) =ERE (KiE) = =

146,314
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

FRsE R EIE (8)

(b EERR (&)
EWE SRR (&)
2022
—EF=-=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BHIEER REeE EEEG

%  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT TAT

Current (not past due) BIHA (R HA) 0.32% 102,895 332
1-90 days past due AH1E90H 2.57% 10,981 282
91-180 days past due AHINZE180H 8.88% 1,536 136
More than 180 days past due #HA180 HIA + 9.83% 768 76
Credit-impaired (note) SERE (M) - - -

116,180 826

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Note: For trade receivables relating to accounts which have known insolvency,
they are assessed individually for impairment allowance in order to

determine credit-impaired.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 84.1% (2022:
73.1%) of trade receivables as at 31 December 2023.

BHERXERBE=FNERE
BEBAE - ZFHLERBBER
EW SRR BN - AR
RAGEER S REIRE F 6
BRI 2 TP IR BR ) 22 R AETT

o

MeE - BEMEDEEERF O EKE SRR
5 OERBERFEETERE - AE
EEERE

AEERZETEESEYRR
REZAEE=KEB ARG
T ZF+-A=Z+—HOER
ES5ERA AN (_E ==
731%) ©
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

6.

R EE (&)
FERR (&)
FE W 5 R ()

R SERE S KRR B
2B :

)

At 1 January ®n—A—A

Impairment losses recognised FRERREREIE
for the year

Reversal of allowance P[]

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

All financial assets measured at amortised cost other than
loans to certain other parties and certain other receivables
are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore
limited to 12-month expected losses. For loan to certain
other parties and certain other receivables, lifetime
expected losses were recognised if credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition or if they are credit-
impaired.

2023 2022
—_=E_= —Eg-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FET
826 220

186 606
@) -

1,005 826

BRBHEATENERMEE

REBIRE KA EN AR
BE(MBEEMALTERRET
Hth FE USRI R 51 ) 145 B B R
RAE - Ett - AC R E R
IR B A+ @ ABHER - 3R
REEMATERLETEMER
FEME - WIEERR B NRHER
PABRK 18 48 00 2K fi B 3R E B
B AfETEEREHERE

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. MEEREEGE)

®)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

by EERRGE)
BRBHRATENEREE (F)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REBZNBEERRTHRRE
comprises the following categories: FELATHER
Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/
Internal credit rating  Description contract assets other items
ABEETR Fit EHESERN AHNEE Httem&ER HiER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
el REHFEOERE  MELABEH 2HBRHEERE - T_EABHEEESR
oA BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
usually settle in full not credit-impaired
BRRE ERABRREBRESEE  TAE PHEHEEERE - T EABHEESRE
—RBEE REERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
A5k FRAFEEZERINAEREH 2HBRHEERE - HRHEERE -
EE R B 16 R AR AR BEERE BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B BEBBTZAECHREERE PHEHEEERE - L HRBEEEE -
EERE FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
fi 58 BRBEREEAGREMN B - IR T AN OB T LAY

TEBYEBEFEZBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR A

\\/ N

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=T ==

6.

Eﬁﬁ#&% MT IZI_II_

F+-A=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

()

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:
Internal ~~ 12mor
Note %edlt rating ||fet|Te ECL
Wi EEER %Hﬁfﬁ,ﬁﬁ“éﬁéﬁh ]
HK$'000
TR
Financial assets at Hmﬁﬁk?ﬁi
amortised cost H’Jﬁm!
Deposits 25 Note(ii)  12m 6,085
M@ TR
Otherreceivables  EMEMEE 25 Note(i)  12m 4,487
W)  +=fA
Stage 2 lifetime ECL 7,010
BB 2R
FE T8
Cred\t -impaired 15,245
/H
Loanstoother  MEMALTER
parties 26 Note (i) 12m -
% WG +=fEA
26 Note (i) StageZIlfetlmeECL 2,479
) El ]
% WEG)  EHEEEE
Credit-impaired 43,235
EEH
Amount due from  [EMFEE £
non-controlling B
interest 25 Note(i) 12m
5 WEG  +=EA
Amount due froma [ER—ZEE
key management  EEABFE
personnel 25 Note(i)  12m 1,536
MaEa  TZ@EA
Amounts due from EREZFE
directors Note (i) ~ 12m 3,878
2 WEG  TZEA
Bank balances RITHEH 27 Note()  1am 270,713
7 MEO TR
Notes:
) Bank balances are deposited with financial institutions with high credit

@in

rating and are considered low credit risk financial assets. The
management considers these assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible as they are banks with high-credit
ratings. Therefore, no impairment allowance is made on theses balances

For deposits, amounts due from directors, amount due from a key
management personnel and amount due from non-controlling interest,
the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL. The Group
applies internal credit risk management to assess whether credit risks
has increased significantly since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The credit risk on deposits, amounts due
from directors, amount due from a key management personnel and
amount due from non-controlling interest are limited having considered
the credit quality of the counterparties and the probability of default is
negligible. Therefore, no impairment allowance is made on these
balances.

6.

31 December 2023
Gross carrying amount

HK$'000
TR

26,742

45,714

)

B R

Y EIE(48)
EERR(E)

BBENATENERMEE (H)
TRFE@IE TERETRBEER
EBERFENAEESREENEE

[

Loss 31 December 2022 Loss
allowance B %rgss_ cgryiig amount allowance
saan TN EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR TiEn FiEx
21,864 -

20,473 215

40,757 3,991

1,765 62,995 1,765

2479 53

48,784 51,263 43,178

4,084 -

536 -

247,622 -

Bzt -

(0] RITHEBTHRREER &i&?mﬂﬁfﬂﬁ%
#BERAREERROSREE -
BERRZSEERSHEE - Hﬁﬁaﬁé
H LR BRI A RBETET o
FEt - WA R S AR IR E RS -

(i) BiRe BEKEEFIE BR—ETE
Mi%)\% RIE K% JE U B2 AR 7 R TE T

CAKEREERT_EAEHEE

E%Z@%ﬁ?gﬁﬂéﬁéﬁ REERA
AMEERBRER - A EBE TS HER
RERERRERBRELN - U ER
T CAKERRAEHRAEEERE £
BEZSHTF 2 EEERREOHXT
”Jlﬂi?.ﬁ' B BREEFR - EU
—REEEEABRERER IR
BRI EERBRER - Bt - WHEFL

ZEBHRETIRRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRARM

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBERERE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b EERR (&)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued) REBHEASTENESREE (H)
Notes: (Continued) Wizt - ()
(i) For other receivables and loans to other parties, the Group measures the (i) T LUK TR K e Eo At A £ B KT
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL. The Group applies internal credit risk $‘§I?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ'fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfggﬂﬁz
management to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly SHEATEBEEE - ASERARIEE
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. RRER - LFEEVSERUREER
Except for other receivables of HK$7,010,000 (2022: HK$40,757,000) BREREEEN  FUERT - REERE
and for loans to other parties of HK$2,479,000 (2022: HK$nil) which are REHBHEEEIE - BRE_REEH
under stage 2 lifetime ECL, other receivables of HK$15,245,000 (2022: TEEZ B 5 1B A9 E b B U 5K T 7,010,000 7
HK$1,765,000) and for loans to other parties of HK$43,235,000 (2022: Jo(=ZT = —4F : 40,757,000 B L) REH
HK$48,784,000) which are credit-impaired and ECL has been provided i A+ E 24790008 T (—F = — 4 :
amounting of HK$2,115,000 (2022: HK$3,991,000), HK$748,000 (2022: THTT) A - EMh FEURIE15,245,000 4 7T
HK$Nil), HK$12,744,000 (2022: HK$1,765,000) and HK$38,017,000 (ZZT = =4 17650008 7T) RmEA
(2022: HK$43,178,000), respectively, the credit risk on remaining other + B 5432350008 o( =& = = F:
receivables and loans to other parties are limited because the 4878400078 7T) NeERMEEB D RIFHE
counterparties have no historical default record and the ECL on these ?EHM*%ETE%#&ZHSOOO,%E(:;::
items are considered insignificant. £ 139910007 7T ) * 7480007 Jo( = &
ZZF T IT) 127440008 T (=
Z =4 117650007 7T ) & 380170007 7T
(ZZ= =% : 4317800077T) * FARK 5
HF W AR LFE L 40 ox B G RATE B M T
FEBBRATA - Bt T Ha B
BRAHEMATEZRNEERBRAR
Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets FR - REERATENSRMEE
measured at amortised cost during the year is as follows: EERE BT
Other receivables Loans to other parties
At WA AEMEATER
Not credit Credit Not credit Credit
Not credit impaired impaired  Not credit impaired impaired

impaired (Lifetime (Lifetime impaired (Lifetime (Lifetime
(12m) ECL) ECL) (12m) ECL) ECL)
BEERE  GERE BEERE  GERE
EEERE (RHES  (RUEM EGENE  (REEE (RHES
(+=f8R) FEFR) FEFBR) (t-@R) FEFR) GEFR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—%-F—H - - 1,765 - - 39,113
Impairment losses recognised BB E
for the year 215 3,991 - 53 - 4,065
At 31 December 2022 and WZE-—F
1 January 2023 TZA=+-Bk
—E-=%-F-H 215 3,991 1,765 53 - 43178
Transfer B - (3,991) 3,991 (53) 53 -
Amount written off MEes - - (265) - - -
Impairment losses recognised ~ ERBAREEE
for the year - 2,115 7,253 - 695 -
Reversal of allowance B (215) - - - - (5,161)
At 31 December 2023 WZZEZ=%F
+-A=1+-H - 2,115 12,744 - 748 38,017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRER(E)
(o) Liquidity risk © mBELER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REBWER B TEHERRER KA
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HRRHELTE @ UBERAEE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity G TR EHENENEIHER
requirements in the short and longer term. RENTEHESTE -
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEBEEBEBENSHIEIRRS
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: REDHE SO

Weighted Less than
average 1year Between Between Total
interest and on land 2and Over undiscounted
rate demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows

1£0T
R NT NT FER
MEF 7= BRE 122% 285% BBSE HREREAE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$7000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TiEx TR TER TiEn TiEx

At 31 December 2023 R=B==f

t=A=t-H
Trade payables EREHER
Other payables EtER S
Lease liabilities HEARE
Borrowings B8
At31December2022 ~ R-Z=Zf

+ZA=t-8
Trade payables REES - 40,186 - - - 40,186 40,186
Other payables Efb R 5E - 34,977 - - - 34,977 34,977
Amount due to a director BN —ZEEZE - 149 - - - 149 149
Lease liabilities HEaE 156 18,736 7,890 12,050 4,703 43,379 37,510
Borrowings g 115 15,125 - - - 15,125 13,565
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HUEEREE(E)
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FIEEP

The Group’s loans to other parties and borrowings bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to
fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition. At
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
management of the Group considers that the exposure to
the Group arising from interest rate risk is limited and no
sensitivity analysis is therefore prepared.

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December (e)

Financial assets: ETRMEE -
Financial assets measured REEK AT ENEREE
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities: SEAaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IR#E IS AT|EH SR A E

(f)  Fair values @)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their respective
fair values.

7S B 1) Bt A £ B R SR B R
Rt M - ElkAEEATER
EER o

REBEFAZEBITEROFER
B o REFRIREBF KGR - F
EKIRERMANE - RZTZ=F
TZA=t+—BERZZEZZ=F+=
A=+—R FAEEEREERAAN
SEFHEEOFERBEER
Bt N S T TR R AT ©

Rt-A=t—BNEBITEER

2023 2022
—E:2-= —ET-—
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
451,293 459,103
113,181 126,387

AFE

AEBERGEMBEIRRRAE B
BEMGBABENREAERESA
HY R HERS °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has five (2022: five) operating segments as follows:

EMS — Electronic manufacturing services

Marketing and distribution of
communications products

Distribution of —
Communications
Products

Equity investment, property agency
service and other operations

Securities and Other —
Assets Investment
and Others

Real estate advisory service and
real estate purchase service and
energy storage products

Real Estate Supply —
Chain Services and
Energy Storage
Products

Provision of loan services by
licensed corporation

Money Lending —

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include interest
expense, depreciation, equity-settled share-based payments and
unallocated expenses. Segment assets do not include
unallocated bank and cash balances, unallocated property, plant
and equipment, unallocated right-of-use assets and unallocated
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. Segment liabilities
do not include unallocated lease liabilities, unallocated
borrowings and unallocated accruals and other payables.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

5 EE R

AEBRE(ZZ-_—_F: AELES
BT

BETRERY — ETHERS

DIEAER — FHEROHBHER

EFkEM — BEERE WEARE
BERE RS e Lt 8
KEAM

FHEHERE — FEXAREEE
AR5 & b E R B R A K A B
ff# BEE o P fh

fEE - AEFTRRREME

IR

REBE O HRE D B AREAFEMMR

BORBUERBEML - SOMBLE

B REAZEEBHE RO LS
THARAK o
REDHHN G BRESEM B RERN
FE4PTE AR - D BRE L T BIEF
BRX 8 UBEEEARND AE
RN RE RO - DEPEEL T
BREADRRITRASESR  KOED

X BEERE RAOEEREEER
AOEEMNFKE - e R EH MR R

B NHAEBITEEASEEESR
B RAROEEEERRSRBEREALA
i FE AT FRIR o

AEBIZE R MEILD BEHEE REE
AR M E = e ik -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HHERE)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @ BEBRSHITEFNEE BEK
and liabilities: aENER :

Real estate
supply
Distribution  Securities chain
of  andother servicesand
communi- assets energy
cations  investment storage Money
EMS products  and others products lending
#ER EhE
ETRE  OHER  HUEE AEERE
FRA% Em REREM REEER &E @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TARL TERL TEL THT ThRL TER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE-B-=%&

t-A=+-ALEE
Revenue from external customers  RESNREEIMA 444,171 ! 21,333 19,846 247 501,999
Segment profit/(loss) P EET/ (B8) 30,964 1,329 (11,330) (1,148) 20,105
Interest revenue FIEWMA 8,852 3,819 7 - 12,679
Interest expense FIEHY (1,725) (110) (60) - (1,895)
Depreciation it ] (15,006) (3,786) (797) (19,589)
Amortisation B - (4,014) (4,647)

Other material non-cash items: ~ HEAFBSER :
Impairment losses for loansto~~ AE AT EFRERE

other parties, net of reversal BE - NRED 5,161 4,466
Impairment losses for trade FEWE SRR ERE -

receivables, net of reversal MAEE () (179)
Impairment losses for other HipERTEREER -

receivables, net of reversal MhREE (9,153) (9,153)
Impairment losses for apEENERR

intangible assets (2,620) (2,620)
Additions to segment non-current 3 FIERBEE LR

assets 2,173 19 2,792
As at 31 December 2023 R=BZ=#+-B=t-H
Segment assets PEEE 484,320 J 52,375 252,055 2,430 792,221
Segment liabilties AHEE 223,295 ! 45,797 12,149 3 304,213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEERGE)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @ BEBRESBEFXEE BER
and liabilities: (Continued) BEMNER (&)
Real estate
supply
chain
Distribution Securities services
of  andother and
communi- assets energy
cations  investment storage Money
EMS products  and others products lending Total

EHR FiE

ETRE OWEA  EMEE  HEERS
i Em RARM REEER fE& it
HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000
TR TR BT AT AL AL

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-B-—%&

TZA=t-HLEE

Revenue from external customers REFNREFIRA 502,606 18,489 679 7,388 89 529,51
Segment profit/(loss) AEER/ (B8) 11,140 8)  (13%4)  (15835) 82 (36959
Interest revenue FBWA 2,679 - 1,507 2 1 4,189
Interest expense FlEmS (2,150) (4) (51) (484) - (2,689)
Depreciation il (16,978) (319) (2,502) (3,007) - (22,806)
Amortisation B - - (2,007) - (633) (2,640)
Other material non-cash items: ~ Hit EAFHLER :
License rights payment BIERR - (1,938) - - - (1938)
Impairment losses for loansto~~ AE AT EFRERE

other parties, net of reversal BR - kg - - (4,065) - (53) (4,118)
Impairment losses for trade EWE SRTRERE -

receivables, net of reversal nkEE (337) - (269) - - (606)
Impairment losses for other EHENFERERE -

receivables, net of reversal nBEE - - (4,206) - - (4,206)
Impairment losses for apEENERR

intangible assets - - - (3,615) - (3,615)
Additions to segment non-current 2 E3ERENE EL

assets 4,163 - 40,417 1,176 - 45,756
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-—#+-A=1-H
Segment assets PHEE 470,098 4,311 82,242 109,850 3,772 670,273
Segment liabilities HEEME 237,289 26,489 17,790 19,904 24 301,496
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss:

»EPE R ()

(b) 73 BRUA B M S B R A TR

2023
—E-=

HK$°000
TET

Revenue

L'ON

Total revenue of reportable segments  #4E5 SFUL A 4258

501,999

2023
o=

—EE =

HK$’000
FRET

Profit or loss

BENEER

Total profit (loss) of reportable segments 34 5 253 5| (E518) 4228

Intersegment elimination
Unallocated amounts:
Interest expense
Depreciation
Equity-settled share-based
payments
Other unallocated head office
and corporate expenses

7> B A1 3K

ANEEE

M BRI

e

AR RS E AR 1D 7
ERER R

Hip Ry @R EE N
RAERX

20,105

Consolidated profit (loss) before tax

BRILATAR & ) (B 18)
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2022
=T

HK$000

FET

529,251

2022
e —

=

HK$'000
TET

(36,959)

(1,362)
(1,612)

(4,713)

(3,771)

(48,417)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HDHERE)
(c) Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: © HPBEERAEBEMNEE:
2023 2022
—=E-= —ET-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FETT
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments  $REDEPEELE(E 792,227 670,273
Elimination of intersegment assets e E E R (22,982) (22,983)
Unallocated amounts: Rol&Es
Bank and cash balances RTINS % 6 7
Property, plant and equipment M - BENEE 4,567 6,179
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,353 4,600
Prepayments, deposits and AN ek
other receivables E b e W FRIE 1,247 1,157
Consolidated total assets RAEEERE 776,418 659,233
2023 2022
—E_= —E-
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FAETT
Liabilities =F
Total liabilities of reportable mESEEEREE
segments 304,213 301,496
Elimination of intersegment liabilities 2 ZFfE & &K 54 (22,982) (22,983)
Unallocated amounts: ROBELHEE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M E A B BUE 568 431
Borrowing EE 4,300 13,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,594 5,273
Consolidated total liabilities e BEER 287,693 297,217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HHERE)
(d) Geographical information: (d) HEEE :
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location REE R B INRE FIRER T
of operations and information about its non-current assets E D MU A A RIZFT 5 2 3E
by location are detailed below: MEVEEMBEERFFMNT

2023 2022
—=ZE_= T
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
Revenue KA
The People’s Republic of China FRE ARME([hE])

(the “PRC”) (including Hong Kong) (BIEEE) 84,928 57,186
United States of America (“U.S.A.”) ENBERBE([ER]) 122,685 102,579
Switzerland mt 55,882 94,436
France JEE 72,272 78,898
Belgium [aeilliss 46,462 54,978
Thailand R 13,034 15,946
Malaysia B2k T 22,167 22,773
Brazil i) 7,742 10,826
Others HAih 76,827 91,629
Consolidated total R 1EEE 501,999 529,251

2023 2022
—E_= —E-
HK$°000 HK$000
THET FAETT
Non-current assets IREBEE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BEEE) 123,835
Consolidated total RE4BEE 123,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER(E)
(e) Revenue from major customers: (e) KREFBEFHWA :
An analysis of revenue from major customers which RAREBRAINSHA FHTFER
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as FRADIWOT -
follows:

2023 2022
o= —m—

—_—=—= —_—=

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FAETT
EMS segment ETREREDS
Customer A ZEA 235,380 234,176
Customer B 2FEB 68,880 85,418
Customer C (Note) =P C(ME) - 55,114
Note: Revenue from this customer is less than 10% of the Group’s revenue for Miz: REZEFPHNKAGARAEEEZ
the year ended 31 December 2023. ZECCFFZA=T-HIEFE®D
WADHR0% ©
8. REVENUE 8. YA
Disaggregation of revenue WA D
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by AEEREEFPAEORAKREEE MK
major products or service line for the year is as follows: fRI% 6B DIFAT
2023 2022
—=E—= T
HK$7000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Revenue from contracts with customers B&E B REENE15%
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEEANESSHKRA
Disaggregated by major products B E2ERIMRBIEE DT
or service lines
— Sales of goods —HEEm 493,602 521,750
— Provision of real estate supply — IR b (e S AR TS
chain service 8,150 7,388
501,752 529,138
Revenue from other sources REEMIFERURA
Rental income Ha A 8 24
Loan interest income BERF BWA 239 89

501,999 529,251
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IR A

N

Eﬁ%&#&% BH |:|_|I_

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=T ==

REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services and at a point in time in the following major product

lines and geographical regions:

= A = —BlSEES

8. WAUE)
WAR T (&)

SR BN T 51 E B EE an AR M i B [ I 9R
A-KRMEREREREELRA

Marketing and
distribution of Real estate supply
Electronic communications Securitiesand other  chain services and energy
manufacturing services products assetsinvestment and others  storage products Money Lending Total
EIEMEERE
ETHERE EHRAMBAER RAREMEEREREM RERER 5t
2023 202 2023 2022 2023 202 2023 2022 2023 202 2023 202
CECCE Puebekdl “ECCF Babdaetdl “E--F Pabdabetdl —3--F Babdabal —Z--F Bebdeidl CFC-F et
HK$'000 NSO  HK$'000 EGTCYNN  HK$'000 EGTCIUGOR  HK$'000 ERGISYUGN  HK$'000 ETCIVOON  HK$'000 JEISIVA)
ol Tt EYd T A T M T EERd T R AT
Primary geographical markets ~ TEHETS
- The PRC - Mg 31,502 49030 - 679 7388 89 84,928 57,186
-USA. -%8 112,458 84,588 17991 122,685 IR,
- Switzerland -kt 55,882 9443 55,882 9443
— France -8 mmn 78898 nm 78,898
- Belgium i 46,462 54,978 46,462 54,978
— Thailand -7 13,034 15946 13,034 1594
— Malaysia -EfES 2,167 2173 2,167 0173
—Brazil st} 1,82 10,826 - 1,82 10,826
- Others -Ef 76,652 91,131 498 16,827 91,629
Segment revenue AERA 444,171 IR 18489 679 7388 (e 501,009 VRN
Revenue from exteral customers RESMREFMA LITAVIN 502,606 18,489 679 7388 [N 501,999 YRR
Timing of revenue recognition W ATESZ 2 K%
Products and services transferred at R E — BB ERA)
apoint intime EnRiRE 444,171 IR 18489 05 7388 501,752 JRYRNKS
Senvices transferred over e FEES T &R MR
U 89 147 113
Total st 444,171 VAN 18489 679 7388 [N 501,099 VRN

The transfer goods and services are for periods of one year or
less. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

EEEMNRBWER A —FRIUAT -
REBZRERBEREER L - BEE
B mEERFESRAAT - DB TZ
ERBITANNRHEBRITAREEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. EHlg A
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest income on: FA T BIEAASHR EHWA -
Bank deposits RITIFR 315
Bank fixed deposits IRITE BT 2,366
Loan to Individual D (note 26(ii) MEA D E R (A1t 26(i)) 1,039
Loan to Independent Third Party C MBYE=FCER
(note 26(7) (et 26()) 468
Total interest income F U A LB (B 4,188
Government subsidy (note) B EB) (KfiE) 1,994
Sale of scrap materials HE R 562
Other H 2,887
9,631
Note: The amount mainly represents service trade subsidy and employment stability Hfet : %SBEEIBEBEE S B RIERER - RE
subsidy. During the year ended 31 December 2023, an amount of HKD80,000 E-E-_ZHF+_A=F+—RALEE &8
(2022: 610,000) was recognised as other income. The amount in 2022 mainly 80, OOO}%ﬁ(:?::i 1 610,000 7T) R A
represents Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the EMRA c RZZE - FZ R EE BB BRI
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The Group had to THERBNOHENEESE TARRES -
commit to spending the assistance on payroll expenses, and not reduce AREBMBEALEGEBESBETEHAYX  RIETE
employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified period of time. The i3 Fsﬁﬂﬂiﬁhﬁ B AHHERE RN EKTF - &
directors of the Company confirmed that the Group did not have any unfulfilled NRIEE CAEEREE_T-_—F+=A
conditions relating to the grant during the year ended 31 December 2022. During =t— EIJJ:EEI%TIHEEE%SQE}VEB&Z*E
the year ended 31 December 2023, no such government subsidies (2022: TRt -BE-T-_=F+-_A=+—801L~F
HK$1,313,000) was recognised as other income. B BMEAEBFEN(ZT =24 1313000

BT FERAREAIINA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. EHfblezs K EE
2023
—E-=
HK$'000
FHExT
Gain on disposal of associates HER SN Tz W 6,582
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(a)) H&—E B ARz Yzt
(Kt:E38(a))
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — BB A RIS R 2 e e
(note 38(c)) (K15 38(c))
Fair value loss on the BATEFABENRE Y
investment at FVTPL NEEEE
Net foreign exchange gains Ryt
Loss on disposal of and written off property, H& N;MEME  BE&
plant and equipment Byt !
1. FINANCE COSTS N EEKAK
2023
HK$°000
FET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABEZFERX 2,112
Interest on borrowings BEZHE 953
Interest on bonds payable ERESHZFE =

220 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited 2 B SR B R AR A 7
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HK$ 000
FHET

(109)

5,050

(3D

6,690

2022
—E-F
HK$'000
FHET
3,076

924
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4,051



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

12.

PSR X
BERMBHERBRERNT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for the year
(Over) under-provision in prior years

FREE

BIETHIR — BAFIEH

BEFE BERE) BETR

BIEAR IR — &5
FEEE

Current tax — Overseas
Provision for the year
Under (over)-provision in prior years

BEFERET R GBERE)

2023 2022
—=ZE_= —=FT=-=

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,410 3,474
(¢1:1:)) 133
3,122 3,607

(15)

(15)
3,592

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for the
first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations established in Hong Kong will be lowered to 8.25%
(2022: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be subject to
the tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). For the other Hong Kong
established subsidiaries, Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
provided at a rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

BREMRSFIEHSE - REBKIH
BB E 2,000,000 7T &R
BTG EBAERESLN(ZF
T 1 825%) ¢ MiRBZE A EF
151216.5% (ZZ — —4F : 16.5%) H) F &
B EMBEBXNLOMBRRM
T BBNEHIR G E RGN/
16.5% (—F = —4F : 16.5%) sT12&A -

Hipith 75 EERDUSE MO IHIBE A AR

SEKEMEBRRENHE  REEH
BRITED] - 2R REHEE -

Annual Report 3 2023 221



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit (loss) before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

2. FEHAX (&)

Profit (loss) before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5% (2022: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

Tax effect of expenses that are
not deductible

Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of tax concession

Under (over)-provision in prior years

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
not previously recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

BENE
HERNT :
2023
—B-=
HK$000
TR
BRI A (B 1R) 8,328
EEBFEHHE6.5%

TETF 1 165%) Rt E 2 BIE
BERBBANBR B
TAMBEROBEZE
AEREHEZRNOUBZE

BEMENRETE
BAFERETR (GBREEE)
FABTRERTSEEN
g
RERHREEENTR G E
MEBA AR ER=ENTE

Income tax expense

st
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P 15 75 B S B2 B B¢ A s A1) (&5 48) 3R JA
BB R E L 2BBENR

2022

T

HK$'000
THETT

(48,417)

(7,989)
(2,140)

5,488
(563)
(1,762)

118

4,872

6,858
(1,290)

3,592
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

13.

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13, FEuH(EE)
The Group’s profit (loss) for the year is stated after charging REEZFEnF (EE) T GrA)
(crediting) the followings: AT ZIBEESNOT -
2023 2022
=== T
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN £
— audit services — BRI 2,327 2,150
— other services — E AR 44 372
2,371 2,522
Cost of sales (note (7)) SHERA (M3 (D))
Cost of inventories sold BEGFERAK 357,445 428,794
Allowance on inventories FTEREE 12,203 12,628
Reversal of allowance on inventories FEREERR (M da))
(note (1)) (12,304) (14,595)
357,344 426,827
Amortisation on agency right (EAR-3) RIBHE CBRAIBRE-3) 7 i 4,014 2,007
Amortisation on computer software BB o BB 633 633
Depreciation on property, Y BB MEREITE
plant and equipment 8,909 9,909
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 15,539 17,756
Research and development expenditure  #f%5 RS H
(note (iif) (B a2 i) 13,209 14,511
Reversal (provision) of impairment mEMATERREEE
losses on loans to other parties, net RO (s 58 (4,466) 4,118
Impairment losses on trade receivables,  FEUE 5 R R EEE
net of reversal R D 179 606
Impairment losses on other receivables,  E fib e U 2B REE S
net of reversal R E 9,153 4,206
Impairment losses on intangible assets EREERERRE 2,620 3,615
Expense relating to short-term lease HHEERERX 1,795 1,176
Equity-settled share-based payments PARRRE 45 B LARR D B E RN 30 2,684 4,713
Loss on disposal of and written off HE MW E - BE MR IEEE
property, plant and equipment 82 31
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14.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=T ==

= A = —BlSEES

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes:

@

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, cost of sales includes approximately
HK$71,083,000 (2022: HK$74,308,000) relating to employee benefits expense,
amounts of which are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above and note 14 for each of these types of expenses. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised a write-back of licence
right payables of HK$5,851,000 in cost of sales upon the waiver of licensing fee
by the licensor.

The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of
inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$13,050,000 (2022: HK$14,151,000)
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

FEm A (E1R) (F)

Wit -

0]

(i)

(iii)

(==

Employee benefits expense BREEBFMAX
(including directors’ emoluments): (BIEESHE) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - TEALROERL

Equity-settled share-based payments

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

INEN

RIRRERE IR

VAR A B AR 1 AR B 1Y

HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—BLLFE ' HEX
NEIEE R 818 IR X 471,083,000 7T (=
T4 74308000 BIT) * ZESBEIFETA
EXRMFEAERI B ES BRI NAEF o
ECZCCFT A=t HIEFE - REFETA
TR BE - AEBEREEKAREREERE
< 5K [8] 5,851,000 7 IT ©

AEBMEERAE B EHMNRRENNFEER
B - BEEDEERANEERNENTFES

BE-Z-=Ft-A=+-BLER HER
ﬁ?iﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁi%mﬁomm%

7'5(7 T4 11451000 EIT) 2SS EH
FE E!ﬂ%iﬁﬂm
3 18 AR 2
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
140,628 140,210
2,684 4,713
11,793 13,689
155,105 158,612
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

14.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 14.

Five highest paid individuals:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included none (2022: none) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 15(a). The emoluments
of the remaining five (2022: five) individuals are set out below:

ES=EE—

=F+=A=t+—BILFE

BB =R (F)

hE&EHAL

(=

Salaries, bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

¥o o JEARORRE
RIRAERET B

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000

2,500,001 7L Z 3,000,000 77T
3,500,001/ 702 4,000,00078 7T
4,500,001 L2 5,000,000 7T
5,500,001/ 7L E 6,000,000 % 7T
6,000,0018 7L £ 6,500,000 /& 7T
6,500,001 70 & 7,000,000 77T
7,000,001 7.2 7,500,000 7 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

#

AEE AEERERRHATHEE
TIFE|ES AR
5@ 27D MHRE - 2 THEZ(ZF
ZZF AR ATHBISEINT

2023 2022
—=ZE_= —FT-=

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FAT

28,989 17,236

288 279

29,277 17,515

BN oIS E

Number of individuals
AE

2022
—z——

HEz_ZT-_=Fr-_FT-__F+=-A

=t HLEFE AEEHER TR

Rma AT - ERIMAKR

B INARE B 1R 0 BB KA /S R

fHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 5. EEFRRMNNER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEH
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BEEHFMEWOT ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
RERES (BRMADNAREKBEAAER)
YN e TGk
Employer’s
contribution Equity-
toa settled
retirement share-
Discretionary benefit based
Salaries LT scheme  payments
EEEHK NRELE
BHGE  URGAR
EA ¢ BETA R ERNAR h
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$°000
TR TR TiEx TR TR TR

Name of directors s
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WL (ZE)
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan e+ (i)
Mr. Liu Zhiwei SRS (i)
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEELE V)
Mr. Li Yinxiang SRR i)
Ms. Bian Sulan TEHERT (vii
Independent non-executive BUHRTEE

directors
Mr. Chak Chi Shing Ryt (viil)
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE
Mr. Yang Weidong BEREE (ix)
Mr. Wu Chi King iR Gt (x)
Ms. Zhang Xiu Lin KAWL (xi)
Total for 2023 —E-CEAY
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

15.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

15.

BEEEN RS (E)
(@ EFFMGE)
BESHBBIIT -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or

its subsidiary undertaking
HEEEZ (ERNADRAISENBARAR)
NEARBE N FERHDH

Employer’s
contribution Equity-
toa settled
retirement share-
Discretionary benefit based
Fees Salaries bonus scheme  payments Total
EERK WEEEE
B ARGA |
ER ¢ BERA HR ERNAR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TET TEL TEL FET TET
Name of directors Expg
Executive directors HITEZ
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WREEE(FE) - 2,000 - 18 285 2,303
Mr. Duan Chuanhong Blla%sE 0) - 374 - - - 374
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan WMzt (ii) - 495 - 12 - 507
Mr. Liu Zhiwei AEEEE (ii) - 83 - - - 83
Mr. Xia Xiaobing ElN:S (iv) - 43 - - - 43
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEERE (v) - 2,000 - 18 285 2,303
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chak Chi Shing Bibia (vii) 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Li Huiwu TEREE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Yang Weidong BEREE (ix) 240 - - - - 240
Total for 2022 —ECCE@H 720 4,99 - 48 570 6,333
Notes: Htet -
0) Resigned on 13 July 2022. ) R-TE-_—FtA+=HEHT-
(i) Appointed on 4 March 2022. @i RZEB-—F=AMEEEE-
(i) Appointed on 1 November 2022. @iii) RZTZ_=—F+—A—HAEZT-
(iv)  Resigned on 4 March 2022. (iv) MN-TE-—F=ANBEBT-
W) Resigned on 4 April 2023. ) RZTBZ=FAEBAEIT -
(vi)  Appointed on 3 March 2023 and resigned on 14 August 2023. (vi) R-BE-_=ZF=ZA-HEZIERR_-Z
Z=FN\ATMA BT -
(vii)  Appointed on 12 June 2023. i) R-ZE-=FA+_BHEZT-
(vii)  Resigned on 23 September 2023. iy R-FZ=FHA-t=RAEEI-
(ix)  Resigned on 12 June 2023. (ix) RZTZZ=F ATHEHE-
) Appointed on 6 September 2023. x) RZZZ=FNANBEET-
(xi)  Appointed on 20 December 2023. (xi) RZEZ=F+_A=THEZFT-
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N
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=T ==

F+=A=+—AILFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 15, ZEEF KMiEn (8)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ ZESBHME)
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the FRN - BEBEEERETAS (=
year (2022: Nil). TFE\E)
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no BE_E-_=FR_FT-_—F4+—
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors A=+—BILFE  ~NEEBER
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ERESZMAEHY - EAIMALXE
compensation for loss of office. BN AREE & W R S E Ak

B (E o

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in ) BEMES IZHEEKREEE
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate and BREENER EEFLAEMESE
connected entities HER
The information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings BRARRASWB ARG IAES
entered into by the Company or subsidiary undertaking of BEmAZENR  EERRHEME
the Company in favour of directors is as follows: EZERWMT :

Outstanding Maximum
Total amountatthe  Outstanding outstanding Provision
amount  beginning of amount at the amount during Amount due  for doubtful
Name of director B3R payable the year end of the year the year but not paid debts made Term Interest rate
Ezrk  FRzHA FARE HBEEE fEi
ENERE HERE HERE HAEERE XHHE RIEB AR GilkS
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn TER TER TiEx TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2023 R-BZ=ZF
tZA=+-8
Quasi-loans or ERFAEERS
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dalian B Nil & (149) 3,878 3,878
Mr. Wang GuoZhen (Note) ~ FELSESE4 (M) Nil & 53  (Note) (Hfzf)  (Note) (Hii)
As at 31 December 2022 i St 3
+-A=t+-H
Quasi-loans or credit EERHEERS
transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian L (149) Nil Nil & Nil Nil 8 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Wang GuoZhen THERE Nil & Nil & 536 1,19 Nil & Nil Nil & Nil & Nil &

Note: Mr. Wang GuoZhen resigned as director of the Company and et . TEBEXAEFRTIARRESTETRS
reappointed as key management personnel. The outstanding balance FTEEEEERAE - *f”/iﬁiﬁ%i*ﬁ
reallocated to amount due from key management personnel. REEREREBEEABRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

So far disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company and the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2022: Nil).

15.

16.

BEEEN RS (E)
(© EBEERXS THREHNERRE

s
paN

I

BREAVBRRM FE2MEE
BERNFRLFAEAFEFER
ARRBEPITNOTRARRES
REZZHENERLIREREE
AESHNBRARBEBNEME
ARS ~ R REH -

H&/%\
HE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—8HIEE
MEDRENERERS - BEREH
RARIMERRETMARE (-
T e
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
is based on the following:

FhE T (E1R)

SRR R RF (BR) BT 515
e

2023 2022
—m— = e —

—_— =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THBTT

Earnings (Loss) BRI (E5E)
Earnings (Loss) attributable to owners of ARt ESIRERZF]
the Company for the purpose of (E518) 2 K ARER A
basic earnings (loss) per share e &R (EE) (54,042)
2022
—F=-=
(Restated)
(g&=m75)
Number of shares B EE
Weighted average number of ordinary ARETESRERZF
shares for the purpose of calculating (E518) Z T A e
basic earnings (loss) per share FHE 171,818,161 108,168,155

No diluted earnings (loss) per share for years ended 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022 are presented as the exercise price
of those options was higher than the average market price of
shares.

For the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the share consolidation being effective on 30 March 2023 was
deemed to be effective throughout the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2023.

HE_T-_=F4+-_A=1+—AK=F
T+ ZA=1+—HLEFE  ARZ
EHRECOEESRARO 2 FHEM
B W E25gREERT (B8) -

RHERE_TE_=FR_FE__

+ZA=+—RLEFEZSRERRE
EAEMN(BE)ME  RZTE=Z=F=A
STHRERZBRODEHHEERR_-ZE
—_—_#%#—AB—HE-_ZE-_=Z%+—-AH
=+ —HHRERK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - HWEKRE
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Leasehold moulds and and Motor
improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
HEXEIR HEARIE GHERRE RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET T T
Cost R
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_ZF—/F—H 35,428 112,606 16,716 1,495 166,245
Additions BE 4,118 3,240 597 - 7,955
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(a))  HE&—FAKMB AR (H1:F38@)) (4,685) - (264) - (4,949)
Disposal & - (2,289) - - (2,289)
Written off bkic! (475) (10,339) (245) - (11,059)
Exchange differences EHER (1,546) (6,112) (458) (18) (8,134)
At 31 December 2022 and 72::¢+ A=+—H
1 January 2023 —T-=#—H—H 32,840 97,106 16,346 1,477 147,769
Additions BE 223 2,003 566 - 2,792
Disposal & - (982) - - (982)
Written off 5 - (1,098) (44) - (1,142)
Exchange differences fE 5 =% (535) (1,991 (164) (6) (2,696)
At 31 December 2023 REFZ=F+ZA=+—H 32,528 95,038 16,704 1,471 145,741
Accumulated depreciation RiHTE
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F—A—H 29,788 98,485 7,264 1,072 136,609
Charge for the year FEER 1,898 5,810 2,102 99 9,909
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(a)) & M B AR (Hit382)) (195) - 4 - (199)
Disposal e - (1,587) - - (1,587)
Written off s (475) (10,326) (245) - (11,046)
Exchange differences fE 5 =58 (1,478) (5,103) (376) (18) (6,975)
At 31 December 2022 and RZEZZH+-A=1—H
1 January 2023 “T-=%—Hf—H 29,538 87,279 8,741 1,153 126,711
Charge for the year FEER 2,142 4,461 2,207 99 8,909
Disposal & - (836) - - (836)
Written off g - (1,093) (44) - (1,137)
Exchange differences B =5 (509) (1,680) (132) (6) (2,327)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=%+-A=+—H 31,171 88,131 10,772 1,246 131,320
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+-A=1—H 1,357 6,907 5,932 225 14,421
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-A=+—H 3,302 9,827 7,605 324 21,058
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 9. FHREEE

Leased

properties

HERTF

HK$000

FHET

At 1 January 2022 R-—E-_—F#—H—AH 54,466

Additions BE 6,671
Depreciation e (17,756)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(a)) & —fEIF B A R (B3 38(a)) (6,666)
Reassessment (note) SRS (BYaE) (1,054)
Exchange differences [ 5 =58 (2,421)

At 31 December 2022 and E’\ffiii‘i' A=+—8H

1 January 2023 kZZT=-_=%—H—H 33,240

Additions BE 1,995
Depreciation e (15,539)
Deregistration of a subsidiary (note 38(c)) T 8E— M B A B (M 5+ 38(c)) (337)
Exchange differences M5 =58 (685)

At 31 December 2023 R-ZZE-—=FE+=-A=+—H 18,674
Note: The amount mainly represents the early termination of a lease of staff quarter Mz ZEeBWMEBREMKIEEIEEMEERCOVID19

and COVID-19 related rent concessions. RS ER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

19.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBE A EREZ

(included in finance costs) (FEARERCA)
Expenses relating to short-term lease EHCHEENRAX
(included in cost of sales GITAEEXNARITHER)

and administrative expenses)

COVID-19 Related rent concessions received 2 W ELH) COVID-19 tERATE & &R

ERREEEZTERX

ERAEEE (&)

2023 2022

—Zg2-= T
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
15,539 17,756
2,112 3,076
1,176
312

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$21,896,000 (2022:
HK$37,510,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$18,674,000 (2022: HK$33,240,000) as at
31 December 2022. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 38(f).

For both years, the Group leases various offices, factories and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

R-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H BEER
FHEBE42896,0008 T( T ==
% : 37,510,000 7T ) & AR B8 &9 5 AR B
& E%186740008 (ZE = =

33,240,000 7T) - BRI ARBERNHEE
BEPHERERIN  HEBRTHEN
FAEMELY - HEEETFSARER

HRER SR AR FIBENMIREIS) °

KRR AREREEEHESE
WA IRKREIFES HESOR
—E+FEMEEFHETL - BEGRTIZ
BRI EEER - WEESETRAEK
R Akt = 1O e T H S R A T AT J el 2
RMERER  AEEERAANNERLE
ERKFRHIHITAHHR -
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P ek

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=T ==

= A = —BlSEES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. B EE
Customer Computer
relationship EAR-1 EAR-2 EAR-3 software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c) (note (d)) (note (e)) Total
EFBR BRAEE- BRAEE-2 BRAEE-3 EEH st
(Hie @) (M m) (Hi ) (Wit () (Fistce)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Cost R
At 1 January 2022 WZE--%—f—H 13,707 25,000 27,000 - 1,900 67,607
Additions BE - - - 37,800 - 37,800
At 31 December 2022 and _2::$+ A=+-AH
1 January 2023 T-=%—-HF—-H 13,707 25,000 27,000 37,800 1,900 105,407
Termination Rk - - (27,000) - - (27,000)
At 31 December 2023 —T-=%+-fF=+—-H 13,707 25,000 - 37,800 1,900 78,407
Accumulated amortisationand R34 RREEE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2022 T —F—fA—H 13,707 17,065 - - - 30,772
Amortisation for the year FEBH - - - 2,007 633 2,640
Impairment loss for the year FEREERSE - 3,615 - - - 3,615
At 31 December 2022 and \7§::¢+ A=+—H
1 January 2023 —T-=#—f—H 13,707 20,680 - 2,007 633 37,027
Amortisation for the year if;}éﬁé} - - - 4,014 633 4,647
Impairment during the year FERE - 2,620 - - - 2,620
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-A=1+-H 13,707 23,300 - 6,021 1,266 44,294
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2023 —T-=#+-fF=1+-H - 1,700 - 31,779 634 34,113
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=-f=1—H - 4,320 27,000 35,793 1,267 68,380
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

20.

Notes:

(@) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer

relationship was 3-6 years.

(b) The Group paid HK$25,000,000 to BXG in FY2019 as prepayment and has
reclassified that prepayment as intangible assets in FY2020, which represents
EAR-1 for certain number of apartments (both furnished and without
decoration). Due to the effect of the pandemic, the terms of the EAR-1 were
extended and revised. The Group determines the amortisation of EAR-1 based
on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number of units sold during
the reporting period over the total number of units with exclusive agency rights
granted under EAR-1. The Group has the rights to sell the apartments from 1
January 2020 to 17 March 2021. On 1 December 2022, BXG further extended the
appointment of the Group as its exclusive agent to 30 November 2025. Further
details of impairment assessment and amortisation of EAR-1 are set out in notes

5(b) & 5(c).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, due to the poor performance of the real
estate supply chain services and energy storage products segment, the Group
performed impairment assessment on the cash-generating unit of this segment
in which EAR-1 belongs. The recoverable amount represented its value in use
determined based on discounted cashflow forecast prepared by the
management of the Group. The Group estimates the value in use of the EAR-1
using a discount rate of 13.1% (2022: 13.7%). The EAR-1 was impaired to its
recoverable amount of HK$1,700,000 (2022: HK$4,320,000), which is its
carrying value at year end and the impairment of HK$2,620,000 (2022:

ES=EE—

=F+=A=t+—BILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

HK$3,615,000) has been recognised in profit or loss during the year.

20.

BEE (&)

Wizt -

@

(b)

EPHAREEEBAMAEAZTP REBEEE
HEBHARBELNRREENS - TPHAEF
BRI EGF o

REBR =T — LM BFE RABXGCE
25,000,000 F THE BRI HIBI R T ZF5
BEESZENFBEEN D EABINEE - 88
FRASE (BRMEERE) WBRRIEE -1 B
REBZE  BREEE - WEZET TIER R
ER] - AEERREBERERAD HESMBHEH
SERBEBRAEE 1 BEOBRAEESEE
HHLLOIERE D BB O A B RBRAIEE
W AEEARE T -TF-A—HEZ
T —F=-A++tAHERE - RZT ==
+ZA—H  BXCE—FSEERERBERHBR
RiE BHREE-_T-_HFE+—A=+H- - A
BRI -V BT S R A8 — SREEER
F5E 5(0) K2 5(c) ©

R =FR T _F+-_A=+—H ' H
B E R RSB AR 7% Rk A AL EE SR ) SR EEAENEE -
MAEEHZS B (BRAREE MBS HE
SEEBMIERERE - JIRE € BEEREASE
EEREERUOURRSABUAECTNERE
B e REBEEBBRIZI%(ZT - ZF 113.7%)
EFBRARERENEREE - BRAEE-UR
BEEHAREE%81,7000008 T (Z T =4«
4,320,000 L) - BMAEFEEREELRE
2,620,000 7 (ZE = =4 : 3615000%7T) B
RERIBZTER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=T ==

20.

P ek

= A = —BlSEES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

()

©)

On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the EAR-2 from Ratchaphruek Global
Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for the rights to sell 77 villa units (“Target
Properties”) planned to be constructed under a project (“Project”) of a
developer company (“Developer”). The Group determines the amortisation of
EAR-2 based on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number of
units sold during the reporting period over the total number of units with
exclusive agency rights granted under EAR-2. The Group has the rights to sell
the Target Properties for a remaining term of not less than 12 months from 18
August 2020, and may be extended by another 6 months upon expiration. On 19
January 2022, the Developer further extended the appointment of the Group as
its exclusive agent from 24 November 2021 to 24 May 2022. On 17 May 2022, the
Developer further extended the appointment of the Group as it exclusive agent
to 24 May 2023. The Group signed the termination agreement with the vendor
on 9 September 2023 and the remaining consideration of approximately
HK$27,000,000 was refunded on 21 November 2023.

The Group settled HK$37,800,000 by the allotment and issue of 230,000,000
shares of the Company to a scientific instruments manufacturer (the “Assignor”)
in 2022 for an intangible asset, which represents (i) the exclusive agency right to
distribute the Products and the right for after-sale service in Hong Kong SAR
and in Macau SAR; and (ii) the non-exclusive agency right to distribute the
Products and the right for after-sale service in the regions of Asia outside the
mainland China, except Hong Kong SAR and Macau SAR within agreed agency
periods from the date of acquisition to 6 December 2031 under EAR-3. Further
details of impairment assessment and amortisation of EAR-3 are set out in note
5(d) & 5(0).

Computer software represents software acquired for money lending business
and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The system software is amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 3 years.

20.

mILEE (8)

Hfat - ()

©

(@

(e)

R—ZZ_TFEFNA+NB AEEE
Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd. ([ & 7 ) B
BERREE-2 BREE—HEEEAR (8
BE)EE (BB DETHEZLZNT7ER
FEU((BEYE]) - REERRERSHRE
PEBUERBZERBEBERREZE-2REN
BRRIERE B BE AL BIAEE D BRI p A
EEBRRIBE2NEY - AEEFEA-T
ZZEFENATNBRERDR2ME B AT E
HEEEEME  YRERSBESR6EA -
R-Z-—F—A+NA ZREE-HZEL
ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁm%@ $_7_*$+*

::¢£H+ta BREE— i§&$§l¢
AEBRNRE  BREZE-_T-_=FRA=-1+mN
B AEER-Z_=FNANBHREFER
IE#eE - BRIBRE %127000000%715}%,
T-_=F+—HF=1+HE

R-T-—F  KARBEBR—AREEREE
7 ([ A J) Bl %8 K %77 230,000,000 A& A& 15 5k
8 Ji7 & E (837,800,000 7T - BEBEEFEE
ERWE R RE—_S=—F+ A NB0HE
REHRRBEBRAIBE-30)EEBERIITH
& SORPIR BT S 5 857 [ 12 AR IS HE R 69
BRI RG)IEPE A ASNE M E (F
R RITTIBUE BOR PR RIITER R BR A1) 9 $HEE G
R E#RSEFNNIBRAIBRE - BRURETR
K EAR-3 S5 H) FHIBE R M 5 5(d) B 5(0) ©

BRUIHE R EXBHBREOEM - IRARER
FHE I RERRRERRSIR - FRRIHRE
BOEN SF RN o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HBEZ—_F=

21, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are as

=F+=A=t+—BILFE

follows:
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital
ERAL/ KL/ BRARAZRE/
WEAREH mEny ZMER
Charm Year International Limited BV 100 ordinary shares
BIFERERAR RBRAES of US$1 each
100 R EREEETH
Liatk
China Khan Limited BV 100 ordinary shares
ZRERAF] RBRAES of US$1 each
00 REREEIZTH
Liatk
Natural Perseverance Limited BV 100 ordinary shares
FRBRAH RBRAES of USS each
00 REREEIZTH
TRk
Powerled Limited BV 100 ordinary shares
EEERAT) HBRUHES of USS each
100 REREEIETH
LR
Sheer Victory Limited BV 100 ordinary shares
HBRUHS 0f US$1 each
100 BRERIXTH
LER
Dayshine Global Investments Limited BV, Tordinary share
SERLES of US$T each
IRSRAEIETH
LER
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1
EEEXARAR ik 1B TRL @R
Link-Asia International Cell Technology Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$!
Group Limited e IETALER
ReARBRNRERERAR
Be Smart Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$!
0 IBTAERR
Link-Asia International Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS!
Electronic Technology Limited e IRTHEER

RERRETHRERAR

2. REBRARRNKE
—=#+-_A=+—AWEAT

BT

Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power/profit shating
fEREs:/ REE/
BRAMEEAL

2023 2022

o

—5_=

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE Rk BE ik

Principal activities

IEER

100% = 100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
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Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding

RERR

Inactive

EEXH

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

REER
Provision of loan services

REETRE

Inactive

TEXH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

21.  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 2. RMBARIMIRE (&)
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital voting power/profit shating Principal activities
HMARYL/HRL/ BREARAZRE/ fEREs REE/
WEARER Ly afER BRAMEEAL TEEK

2023 2022
—E-=F ks
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE Rk BE i

Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
FEERAT B HK$5,000,000 and trading
5,000,000 7L H & @R RERREES
Space Wisdom Limited BV Tordinary share of - 100%  Inactive
BhER AT RBRLEE USS1 each EmEH
IREREEIZTN
EER
Talent-Asia Holdings Co. Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding and
RERGERERAR 5% HK$1,000,000 provision of real estate
1,000,000 A TH LB advisory service and real
estate purchase service
REBRRRHENE
wARENEE
BERSE
Talent-Asia GC Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 51%  Provision of real
ROHBERAT 0 HK$1,000,000 estate advisory service
1,000,000 LA L BR and real estate purchase
service
REFHESARBEA
FHERERE
Telefield Holdings Limited BV 410,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
RBRAEE of US$1 each REER
40000 RERAEGEIZT
G
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding,
HEBRAT] Bk HK$20,000,000 and electronic manufacturing
non-voting deferred services for
shares of HK$5,000,000 telecommunications,
20,000,000 & LR BR security, car electronics,
15,000,000 T8 home appliances,
BREEELRD other consumer and
industrial electronic
products

RERR ER RE-
REETER 58

EthEERTZET
EmNETRERS
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Inactive
HEEERNERAR % HK$1,000 ThE
1000 BT ERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=T ==

F+-A=+—HIEEE

21, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 2. RHBRARMEE (&)
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital voting power/profit shating Principal activities
HMARYL/HL/ BRARAZRE/ fEREs: REE/
WEARER Ly afER BRAMEEAL TEEK
2023 2022
- Sl ks
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE Rk BE i
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and
FERKERAA % HKS$15,600,000 trading of
15,600,000 B TR EER telecommunication
products
REERRENERES
Telefield NA Inc. USA Share capital of - 100%  Trading of business
e 1S$2,000,000 telephone system
FE7 2,000,000 T BEREZRES
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100%  Manufacturing services of
GEEFERAT 0 HK$1,000,000 home appliances, other
1,000,000 B LA & @K consumer and industrial
electronic products
RE HUEERIE
BT ERMEERS
Sota Acoustics Umited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$ - 100%  Sale of audio equipment
BEEZERA BE 1BTH LRk BIERENHE
Link-Asia International Assisted Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$! - 100%  Investment holding
Reproductive Technology Group B AT LER RERR
Limited
ROEBENEENEERERAR
ENFEEFERAR(EMNTE])  PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacture of
Guangzhou Telefield Limited (“GTL")* # US$11,060,000 telecommunications
(2022: Registered capital and other products
of US$8,060,000) SRAREMERME
FHAEA1,060000 % T
(ZZ==F AR
8,060,000%7T)
BN EETERAR PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Guangzhou Zhong Sui Limited* HE US$1,500,000 consumable electronic
FEA1500000% T products
BEEFERNEER
#HE
BN EERERERAT PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Inactive
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng Plastics i U5$2,000,000 EREH
Co., Limited* R 2,000000% T
EREBXARI)BEA PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Inactive
Huashi Management Consu\tancy i RMB300,000,000 LY
(Shenzhen) Limited® AMERARE
300,000,000
SHIE BN ERAF PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Investment holding
Ding Cheng Investment HE RMB200,000,000 RERR
(Yangzhou) Limited* AMERARE
200,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

b

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

2. RMBRARNKRE (8)

Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
HMARYL/HL/ BRARAZRE/ fEREs REE/
WEAREH mEny ZMER BRMEEAL TEER
2023 2022
“E-=F o
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
HE Rk BE itk
ERERSHRITFY)ERAF PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Huashi Medical Assistive Technology el RMB500,000,000 RERR
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd* AMERARE
500,000,000

LERBENERNRBRAE PRC

Registered capital of

(5118 : LEBBEREHERAR) F RMBI00,000,000
Shanghai Tiantian Lvke Energy Storage AMERARE
Technology Co., Ltd (formerly known as 100,000,000 7T

Shanghai Fu Mian Management

Consultant Limited)*
REER (5 EMBENE PRC Registered capital of
BRAR* e RMB20,000,000
Huanya Shengke (Shanghai) AMERARE
Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd* 20,000,0007T
BBk (RN BERAR PRC Registered capital of
Huanya Holdings (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd"* & RMBI10,000,000
AHERARE
10,000,000 7T
HEEHE (R ERAR PRC Registered capital of
Zhongxixin Trading (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd* RMB200,000
AMEFARE
200,0007T
English names are for identification purpose.
# Deregistration during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Except for Huanya Shengke (Shanghai) Biomedical Technology
Co., Ltd and Huanya Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd which
established in the PRC in the form of limited liability company, all
subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises.

As at 31 December 2023, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$70,336,000 (2022: HK$45,387,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

100%  Provision of consultancy
service

Rt ARE

51%  Provision of pre-pregnancy
care and assisted
reproductive services

REZAREREDER
TR

51%  Provision of real estate
advisory services and real
estate purchase service

REERMELAREN
FHERERY

100%  Manufacturing services of
home appliances, other
consumer and industrial
electronic products

FE HMEERTX
ETERMBERTS

# HE-Z-_=F+-A=-t+—BILFECHET
fH} °

BETBENEREER BT AKILAR
TSEM(LB)EMBEEMEERARFR
REERCRIDBERQBSN  AEES
BRI B AR RINEEERE -

R-ZB-=F+-A=+—0 K&£H
B R B R B A B A A R EHE R R
FEIRIRTTHYER 1T 45 82 5 4970,336,000
BT (T = 4 :45387,00087C) °
AR 55 HNEE 78 5% B HMNE B IR i
Bl REE - EERMEZTERTENHR
R o AT ANEEEENBBRAIETT
INERXRZZIRITEHARESBKEME
ﬁg o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2022

—=— = —E =

—_— J— R

HK$°000
Fi#

HK$'000
THETT

Unlisted investments in the PRC:
Net assets of associates
Impairment losses

EIZE EMRE ¢
BERREEFE
R EE 1R

11,254
(1,405)

9,849

Reclassified to assets classified as
held-for-sale

BN BEARFEIHEENEE

(9,849)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2023 are as

AEBR - ZE-_=F+_A=+—HH

follows: B ARSENT -
Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/
Place of profit sharing
incorporation/ FrEfER REE
Name registration Registered capital A E D Principal activities
2022
a8 MR BEmE FmER —E-CF XEER
PEREREHAARARA([BE]) PRC RMB30,000,000 49% Consultancy service
Shanghai Rongshu Business e (not fully paid up) AR
Consulting Co,, Ltd. (“Rongshu”)* AR#30,000,000 7T
(REEHZ)

English names are for identification purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

L

23.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose of all its entire 49% equity interest in
Rongshu to the controlling shareholder of the associate with a
consideration of RMB15,000,000. The transaction was not
completed as the agreement condition has not yet fulfilled as at
31 December 2022. The carrying amount attributable to this
investment was classified as assets held-for-sale at 31 December
2022 with a view that the disposal is expected to be completed
within twelve months.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposed of
its 49% equity interest in Rongshu for a consideration of
RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,443,000).
The consideration of RMB5,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,117,000) had been received during the year.

INVENTORIES

22.

23.

REEREIHIRE (8)

B2 EP49% e T H & N B 2 FEARAR R -
KB A AR 15000,0007T ° FHRA
MW ARER  ZRXHIR_TEZ_F
TZA=T—RAUYRENX  c ERZEE
ERARTZEAATK AR =F
T+ A=+ B BRIEEEER
EEDHEARFELEEE -

BE-_Z-_=F+_A=1+—HILFE -
ANEE AR E AR 150000007 (HHE
R #916,443,000% 70 ) HE AR B E 8
49% R HE - KRB AR 5,500,000 7T (FHE
R #96,117,000 47T ) B A RYER ©

Raw materials R
Work in progress F KM
Finished goods BIRK (B
Goods in transit FEEm

2023 2022
—E_= -

HK$’000 HK$000
THET FAETT
23,616 31,458
10,885 12,270
11,063 11,387
9,096 1,684
54,660 56,799
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. RUWE FERR
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. AEFEEFFEUEEFRNETE
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each Eo-ZEH—BNTI0EROK - B
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, BREFHOEESEERE - HEFP—KRAE
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to TTENRIE  AEBBRDE EHRKED
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue JEUG FRIE 435 BRIR BE 4R - EH F B
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. BEALEER o
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice HEZHEEWNE SR (NREE)
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: BRER DT -
2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
0 to 90 days 0ZE 90K 125,406 96,702
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 18,436 17,704
181 to 365 days 1812 365K 946 217
Over 365 days 365 KA 521 731
145,309 115,354
Further details of credit risk assessment is set out in note 6(b). EERBFHNE —SFBHAMNE
6(b) °
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEERWE ZRAZERBEFEAUT
denominated in the following currencies: BH¥EHE
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
United States dollars (“USD”) En([Ex]) 14,896 99,165
HK$ BT 126,783 9,989
RMB ARHEE 3,630 6,200
Total b 145,309 115,354
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  25. TEfIRUR - #&2& R E A& YIE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TER FAET
Prepayments TR 201,766 10,804
Other receivables H b ez E 11,883 57,024
Purchase and other deposits REREMZRS 6,085 21,864
Amount due from key management  JEUFBEIE A B Z08 (M)
personnel (Note) 1,536 -
Amount due from non-controlling FEMIEE IR R 2 SRR
interest 5,577 4,084
226,847 93,776
Analysis: oA
Current portion BIERER 223,568 92,619
Non-current portion JERNERES > 3,279 1,157
226,847 93,776
Note: Disclosed in note 15(b), Mr. Wang GuoZhen resigned as director of the Company Mzt - San Wﬁm(bﬁﬁ\ﬁ?‘i I@jﬁﬁ%iﬁ%’&$’&i
and appointed as key management personnel. ESTRRERERERAR -
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ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES 26. MEMALTER
The Group has engaged external independent valuers to assist AEBBIINEBZAEMUIBBERRE
the management to assess the expect credit loss (“ECL”) rates at I ERREBRNBHEERE ([ A
end of reporting period. FEBEX-
Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at
31December 31 December Cumulative
Name Terms of loan 2023 2023 ECL rate allowance
R-B=-= R-B-=
+=A=t-B t+=A=1+-8 BHES
#E/ 48 BRER e ZIEFIE FER EHE @it
HK$000 HK$’000 % HK$000 HK$’000
THT T % THT THT
Independent Third Party C Unsecured, repayable on (0] 21,150 6,866 88.13% (24,691) 3,325
BUE=HC 31 December 2024 and

bears interest of 10% p.a. ("Loan Z”)
mEM AR -E-ME+-A=1—-8
BEREEHEI0%:E ([ERZ)

Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (ii) b ! 87.61% (13,200)
fBAD 31 December 2024 and
bears interest of 16% p.a. (‘Loan X”)
B BR-Z-MNF+-F=+-A
BERRENE16% T E([ERX])

Independent Third Party F Unsecured, repayable on (i) 82.89%
BUE=ZHF 15 September 2021 and
bears interest of 12% p.a. (“Loan W”)
ERE ER-Z--FNA+HA
BEREENX%E([ERW])

Others Unsecured, repayable in August 2024, (iv) ’ 30.17%
Htt and bears interest of 10% p.a.
EFE BN -_Z-_MENABER
REFEI0%EE
Total @t ) s (38,765)
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e e

= A = —BlSEES

26. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued)

26. MEMATERE)

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at
31 December 31 December Cumulative
Name Terms of loan 2022 2022 ECLrate allowance Total
RZE-= N-T—
+ZA=+-B +ZA=1+—-AH EHEE
"E/ER ERRH P& RIS BEX RitAE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FAR % TAT TAET
Independent Third Party C Unsecured, repayable on (i) 26,000 4,610 88.88% (27,206) 3,404
BUE=HC 31 December 2022 and
bears interest of 10% p.a. (“Loan Z")
BER ER-F__F+-R=1—-H
BEREENZI0%:E ([EBRZ))
Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (ii) 13,000 5,022 87.93% (15,846) 2,176
fBAD 30 September 2022 and
bears interest of 16% p.a. ("Loan X”)
BER - ER-Z-—FnA=1H
BEREEHE%TE([ERX])
Independent Third Party F Unsecured, repayable on (i) - 152 82.89% (126) 26
BUEZHF 15 September 2021 and
bears interest of 12% p.a. ("Loan W")
s5E BR-Z--FNA+EA
BEREFFHED%:E([ERW])
Others Unsecured, repayable in August 2023, (iv) 2,390 89 2.14% (53) 2,426
2t and bears interest of 10% p.a.
BEABR-ZE-ZF)\AEER
REFEI0%:2
Total st 41,390 9,873 (43,231) 8,032
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HBEZ—_F=

=F+=A=t+—BILFE

26. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued)

Notes:

0] Loan Z was originally due on 21 February 2021, but Independent Third Party C
failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. On 27 April 2022,
Independent Third Party C rescheduled payment by monthly instalments and
the last payment date would be 31 December 2022, with interest calculated at
10% p.a. for the extended period, and was secured by personal guarantee given
by the sole director and sole shareholder of Independent Third Party C. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, an amount of HK$4,850,000 was recovered.
The Group recognised ECL of approximately HK$24,691,000 as credit-impaired
as an default event have been observed.

(i) Loan X was originally due on 30 June 2020, but Individual D failed to repay the
principal and interest on that day. On 30 June 2020, Individual D rescheduled
payment by monthly instalments and the last payment date would be 28
February 2021 with all other terms remain unchanged. During the year ended 31
December 2021, an amount of HK$2,000,000 was recovered. On 22 April 2022,
individual D rescheduled payment and the last payment date would be 30
September 2022, with interest calculated at 16% p.a. for the extended period.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, an amount of HK$4,500,000 was
recovered. The Group recognised ECL of approximately HK$13,200,000 as

credit-impaired as an default event have been observed.

(i) Loan W was originally due on 15 September 2021, but Independent Third Party F
failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. During the year ended 31
December 2022, Independent Third Party F fully repaid the principal amount of
RMB1,000,000(equivalent to approximately HK$1,225,000). Up to the date of
report, Independent Third Party F did not made any repayment of loan interest
receivables. The Group recognised impairment of approximately HK$126,000 as

they are credit-impaired.

(iv) Loans were originally due in 2023. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group received the loan interest receivables of HK239,000 and signed loan
extension agreement with “Others” and the loans will be repaid within 1 year.
The Group recognised impairment of approximately HK$748,000 as the result

of significant increase in credit risk.

26. MH

0]

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

B AL B (&)

BERZRER-_E=-_—F-A=+—B28
BUE=H CRENZBERRASRAE - R
To-FMA=++H BYS=HCEHET
TRADBHERNEEE  HhSE—EAFTH
AEA-T-_—_F+-_A=+—H8 EKRHH
REFERIO%TE  WHABIE=HFCHKE—E
FRE—RREEREABRELER - HE-T
=+ A=+—HILFE - $[E4,850,000
B AREBENEHCBE MALEEBH
24,691,000/ TR TEEME BB IRER R EERME -

ERXRER-T-_TFA=THEH  #E
ADRERZBEERSRFE - R-ZT-TF
NAZ=1B - BADEFRI TIRASHERN
HEE  EFSE - EMZNBHEA=S——
FZAZTN\B - FTEEMERGERTE - BHE
—E- -+ -A=+-BLEE K@
2,000,000 - RZZT-_—FMA=-+=H "
BEADEHHF T EREHER  HPRE S
FHMEHEA-T-—FNA=1+A  ERHM
REMR%TE - BHE-_Z-_=ZF+=A4
=+—BI1EFE - $E4,500,000#7T - HRE
HEMHEEE - WAREEEX13,200,000 7 TTH
BHEEBEERAEERIE -

BRWRER=-Z=-_—FhLA+HBEEH #
BUB=FFRENZABERASLAE - HE
R CHEFZA=THIFE  BUE=H
FEBEE A S ARML0000007T(HHERLH
12250008 7T) - BEAKEBH BYE=FH
FREREMEBRERAE - ARREZNEER
BB - ARG B R R RIEXY126,000 B 7T ©

EFEER_Z_=F5H - AEERHEE=T
ZEFFZ A= BIEFEREEREFHFS
239,000/ 7T + WA [ HAth | HEBEFGE Az -
MEFER—FRNEE - AN EERBREEE
o AR EHERIRE A 748,000 8 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HBEZ_F=

27. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

=F+_A=+—HILFE

27.

RTINS AR

Cash on hand EFRE
Fixed deposits TE HATF 3K
Cash at bank RTINS

Cash and cash equivalents in the

consolidated statement of cash flows

2023 2022
—_E_= —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
854 4,587
117,453 124,637
153,260 122,985
271,567 252,209

The bank and cash balances of the Group are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEBRITRES BRI T EEH

usb =T
HK$ BT
RMB AR
Others Hith

8

2023 2022

—_E_= =T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
184,947 184,637
16,225 22,113
70,394 45,447
1 12
271,567 252,209

As at 31 December 2023, the bank balances of the Group’s

RZEBE-_=F+-A=+—H K&£E

subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$70,336,000 (2022: HK$45,387,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

B BB B A BIA A R EHE RIF R
H B Y ERTT B R T 45 82 8 49 70,336,000
BT (—Z = —4F © 45387,000/87T) °
AR 550 R HNE 78 52 B HME & 1 i
Pl 4 E - EiE RNESERERR -
SR - AR B E P S B R A HETTHME
RHZBITHARE HIRH M E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. ERNEFEXR
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as RREZHHNENESRERNERRS T
follows: (1N
2023 2022
—E-= —Eg-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
0 to 90 days 0FE 90X 60,096 35,777
91 to 180 days 91E180K 1,436 1,955
181 to 365 days 181 % 365K 14,925 2,415
Over 365 days 365 KM 14 39
76,471 40,186
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEFERNEZGERERZEME/GHUT
denominated in the following currencies: T E -
2023 2022
—E_= —E-
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
usD ETT 48,850 11,741
HK$ BT 21,384 24,337
RMB AR 6,237 3,906

Others Hit - 202

Total CEl 40,186
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

29. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

29. FEIRERNHMEMNFKIE

2023 2022
=== T
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Accrued salaries BRI 134,637 137,923
Accrued expenses TEIERISZ 19,681 28,932
Customer deposits BEEe 15,487 25,270
Amount due to individual A (Note) FETE A AFRIA (BFE) 4,902 -
Other payables H i FE A~ FR0E 5,063 9,707
179,770 201,832
Note: Individual A is the shareholder and sole director of non-controlling interest. The BfaE : A A BIEIERERSOBRERE —EE - %R
amount in non trade nature, which is unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed BRIBHHE  EER 2EEEETERH
repayment term. R o
30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. #HE&BE

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BREHEEREZRE
2023 2022
—E-= —E -
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Lease liabilities payable: JENTHERRE :
Within one year —FRN 6,894 16,596
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFEERF(REEREMT) 13,522 6,600
After five years RE 1,480 14,314
21,896 37,510
Less: Amount due for settlement within 3§ : 1218 A R EI B fE N 7008
12 months (shown under current (RmehBE~IIR)
liabilities) (16,596)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 B 1% | HAfE - 50R
12 months (shown under non-current (RIERBEETIIR)
liabilities) 20,914

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities ranged from 2.41% to 9.58% (2022: from 2.41% to

9.58%).

JERRTAE B E/INEEF 125 RF
BNANF2MN%EIS8%( T Z4F : 2.41%
Z958%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

31. BORROWINGS 3. BE
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-—
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FHT
Loan from an Independent KEBULE=FGCHER
Third-Party G (note (i) CiEz30) 565
Loans from financial institutions (note (i) kA & @B E R (ML (i) 13,000
13,565
Notes: Hat -
0] The amount represents loan from an independent third party, which is non- 0) ZeBARA—BEBLE=ZFNENR  BEES -
interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand. IR IR B REE -
(i) The amount represents loan from financial institutions, which carries interest at (i) ZEHEAKREBSMEBNER  BR20%EEF
a fixed rate of 12.0% per annum, unsecured and repayable within one year. FIRGTE -« EIEFRER —FREE -
Certain borrowings of HK$4,300,000 (2022: HK$13,000,000) ETHEE43000008T( -

are arranged at fixed interest rates. Borrowings are denominated
in HK$. The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s
borrowings at 31 December 2023 and 2022 approximate to their
carrying amounts.

13,000,000 % 70 ) iR EE FI K& B - B E
BB TTHE - EEEAEER T
CTEFERZFIFFTA=+—A
HENQATEHEAEREERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

528

33.

PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are
analysed as follows:

32.

EmRAEE
AEEERRBEGEHHNMT :

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FATT

At 1 January n—A—H 1,207 3,584
Provisions used REINGEEE = (1,525)

Additional provisions REONEEAE 696 1,207
Reversal of provisions B (1,207) (2,059)

At 31 December Rt+-A=+—8 696 1,207

The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied
ultimate consumers. Such kind of provision for product
warranties are recognised based on past experience of level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.

DEFERRED TAX

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$472,539,000 (2022:
HK$465,078,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$53,244,000 (2022: HK$58,221,000) that will expire within 5
years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

33.

BEETHHBAE NRRREPRERE
B AREAERZEFDHERELEEM®
HEHRER - ZEEMRRABRBREE
B MREKFRBELRIER  WITR
EERE@ER) -

EXEFIA

RREER  AEERESARBARIES
BH A472539,0008 T(ZE ==
465,078,000 7T ) - A] AR EA R K H
A o BB AE TERI R s F i - B
HREBADATEEENEERIEE
E- ARV EEBEESEENAEFARE
HEE R 49 /553,244,000 L (Z T ==
% : 58,221,000 7T ) o H M Fi I E 18 Al
R B AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL

34,

2023
===

-

Number of

shares

i 4

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 (2022: HK$0.02)

EE

each 0.02/87L) Ll
At the beginning REA 75,000,000,000
Share consideration (note (d) BOISEEIE) (67,500,000,000)
At the end of the year REXR 7,500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.2
(2022: HK$0.02) each

At the beginning of the year

Issuance of consideration shares (note (a))

Issuance of shares upon exercise of
share options (note (b))

Issuance of shares upon subscription
(note (c))

Share consolidation (note ()

Issuance of shares upon placing
(note (e))

002/87) LBk
WEH] 1,207,691,855
BOREBRG (Wi @) -
TERRERETRG (B3 b))

RRERETRG (W ()
517,600,000

Bia ¢ (07 @) (1,552,762,670)
REERETR (Wi @)
23,244,000

At the end of the year

RER 195,773,185

RN
2022
—E--F

Number of
Amount shares Amount
&8 e k|
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHEL
1,500,000 75,000,000,000 1,500,000
1,500,000 75,000,000,000 1,500,000
924,363,855 18,487
230,000,000 4,600
53,328,000 1,067
1,207,691,855 24,154
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

BT

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a) On 18 January 2022, the Company entered into the deed of assignment with the
Assignor to acquire EAR-3 (note 20(d)) at a consideration of HK$37,800,000,
satisfied by allotment and issuance of 230,000,000 consideration shares to the
Assignor with a nominal value of HK$0.02 each. The fair value of the shares of
the Company at the date of agreement is HK$0.164 per share and amounted to
approximately HK$37,800,000, of which HK$4,600,000 and HK$33,200,000
was credited to the Company’s share capital and share premium accounts,

respectively.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2022, 53,328,000 share options were
exercised by holders to subscribe for 53,328,000 shares of the Company. The

=F+_A=+—HILFE

exercise price of those share options was HK$0.106 per share.

() On 13 September 2022, the Company entered into the subscription agreement
with China New Retail Holding Group Limited, which conditionally agreed to
allot and issue 517,600,000 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.1855
per subscription share, resulting in an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$96,015,000. The subscription was completed on 6 February 2023. The
subscription price was HK$0.1855 per share and amounted to approximately
HK$96,015,000, of which HK$10,352,000 and HK$85,663,000 was credited to

the Company’s share capital and share premium accounts, respectively.

(d) On 30 March 2023, the Company implemented a share consolidation on the
basis that every 10 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each would

be consolidated into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.2 each.

(e) On 20 October 2023, an aggregate of 23,244,000 shares of the Company with a
nominal value of HK$0.2 each has been substantially placed at HK$1.37 per
shares. The net proceeds from the placed shares (after deduction of commission
and other expenses of the placing) amounted to approximately HK$30,995,000.

34,

A (&)
@ RIFoZF—ATNR - AATRERALL

(b)

©

[C))

(e)

R DAREERAERE -3 20(d)) -
K18 437,800,000/ 7T EEESTRK0.02H T
1888 A B % & 217 230,000,000 B A E R D 2
fte RRBRGRBFEAHOAFEELATR
01647 7T * & % #) A37,800,0008 7L+ HF
4,600,000 7T & 33,200,000 % 7.2 9 Bl 5t A
A ERA KRR (B o

HE-_Z-—4+-fA=1+—HBILtFEE - HBA
B 171£5332800017 B AR # - AREARQ A
53,328,000 AR AR 17 » 2 ZERENITERERFTIR
0.106 7T ©

R-IZT-_—FHhhA+=8 ARFETPEFTE
EREEBRAR L RE R - Bt PEH
TEEREEARADA KHRERZRBESR
08 AR 19 01855 7% 7T B 8 K % 17 517,600,000 %
g - BB RIEL A 96,015,000 87T © 26
FHEOR-ZE-_=F-_A A%K - RBEAE
B%0.1855 8 7T+ & F%9/5 96,015,000 T - HF
10,352,000 # 7T ) 85,663,000 7 7L 9 Blat AR A
RIARA AR 1D 52 (B R -

RZTZ=F=ZA=+8 " AAREKSORET
FREMEO0.02B LB BT R AREITEBRE A
BREREE2ETAHRONEERERNE
B

RZZZ=F+HA=+H ' 53523244000 &~
REIRD (BREEO02E ) EERIZE37
BILEE - RERMDMSRIAFE(EMKRES
B& REAMFR) 44 30,995,000 T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 34. IRA(E)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for
bank overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and
other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from 2022, was to maintain the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio at reasonable level. The debt-to-adjusted
capital ratios at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

AEEEREANEREHELAEEDN
FEELR UBBB(LEEEESR
B RERTREAL R AEEE
RESRAR L | —FEARLL A R o

AEBZEBRLEIIETEASRE  ~&E
B A B AR B ) M ARRE B E R R
SRMEEEEAGEBLFLHE - B
FAABRENGERE  AEEAHEKE
R BIOHER - BORD - E5H
& BEREGEEKHEEENRE -

AEERBEGHEHBEN L RER
B - R RBEFBRALRHEE
AHAE - REGEREEE(RITEXRK
5N o RFEBEARBIETA #ERR D (A
BeA - REEM,RATHEE R E M)
(GERRERRIN) -

HE-_ZT-_-F+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEEZKREE T - —FHELI
EEE) ABEREHKHEE AL RSE
BREEBEKFE - RZEZ=FK=F
T+ A=+ HNEBEERAER
BEAR R

2023 2022

—E-= g
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Total debt RIET 4,849 13,565
Adjusted capital KA AN 486,663 359,862
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BEREE AT E R R 1.0% 3.8%

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
to maintain its listing status on the Stock Exchange is that it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based on the
information that is publicly available to the Group and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Group has maintained sufficient
public float throughout the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 as required under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

AN B A 4 B BB 2 P _E T AT
M—EEBTHINRERRERARER
B NMER25% ° RIEFEREBFTEH A
ERRBEEERN REE-_T_=F
F—E-_—F+-_A=t+—HILFE"
AEBE—BHHEFE M EMAERATEE
MRMARFRE -

Annual Report 3 2023 255
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 35. ARBZHBEMRRER M FEEED)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @) AREZEBARRER
2023 2022
—_E_= =T
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaF THET FAETT
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment % - R R iR E 2,364
Right-of-use assets FREEE 4,600
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRIMIEE 21 138
7,102
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUHTE D 7 2118 35(c) 188,706 177,958
Amount due from a director B —ZEEIAE 1,501 536
Prepayments, deposits, other TERFRIE ~ e - EfbEU
receivables IR 7,798 14,077
Loans to other parties mEMATIREHER 5,192 5,580
Bank and cash balances RITRIR L% 1,074 4,956
Total current assets REBEEHAE 204,271 203,107
Total assets EEHAE 206,516 210,209
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company (Continued)

35.

(&)

ARRBZFBERNE R HEEE D

(@ ARBZFBRRE (E)

2023
—E-=
Notes HK$°000
Btat THET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EakEasE
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners KARVHE ANEGER
of the Company
Share capital & A 39,155
Reserves HE 36(b) 150,553
Total equity SRR 189,708
Non-current liabilities ERBERS
Lease liabilities HeEaE
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHETE
Current liabilities REBAE

Accruals and other payables
Lease liabilities

BB R LA TR
HERE

10,914
1,594
4,300

16,808

Borrowings =P
Total current liabilities REBEEHAE
Total equity and liabilities ERRAGERAE

206,516

Approved by the Board of Directors on and are signed on

28 March 2024 its behalf by:

Lin Dailian
MRAHE

2022
—mm——

=

HK$'000
THET

24,154
150,751

174,905

1,594

1,594

17,031
3,679
13,000

33,710

210,209

EEeN _ZET-_WNWFE=A-+/\H
HETHTIALTRESEE

BIAN Sulan
TE
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e M BmRARM

ExFT-=

= A = —BlSEES

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 35, ARGz BMRAKR R FEHEEH
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (O VNGIPE=1
Share Share
premium option Merger Capital ~ Accumulated
account reserve reserve  contribution losses Total
BoRER  BRERE GG ERHE ZitEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TAL TAn TAL TAL FAL
At 1 January 2022 WZE-—%-f-H 773,018 4,576 311 11,280 (565,386) 226,659
Total comprehensive expense for the year FE2AMYEE (118,407) (118.407)
Recognition of equity-settled BAARELE R AR
share-based payments WARE 4,713 4713
Issuance of consideration shares (note 34 (3)) ~ BITRERR (Mt 3403)) 33,200 33,200
Exercise of share options (note 34 (b)) T RIRE (W 3400) 7374 (2,788) 4,586
Lapse of share options B (924) 924
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R-E-—f+-A=+-Ak
“E-CE-A-H 813,592 5577 3171 11,280 (682,869) 150,751
Total comprehensive expense for the year ERRARTEE (114,891) (124,891)
Recognition of equity-settled EANREEEARNAER AR
share-based payments 2,684 2,684
Issuance of shares upon subscriptions ARBEEIRG (W#340)
(note 34 (c)) 85,063 85,603
Issuance of shares upon placing (note 34 (8) ~ RELERETRA (it 34(e) 26,346 26,346
Lapse of share options BRI (775) 775
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-f=1-H 925,601 7,486 311 11,280 (796,985) 150,553
(c) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest () [EWMBATIEAEEM . © 8
free and have no fixed terms of repayments. REEiEFEE A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

36. RESERVES 36. f#iE
(@ Group (@) ~A&E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements $EI1§%1%§%E&EZ@JEA SR
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of @R HMEERERRGEER Y
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and BRNZT o

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) FEBEMEEREN

(i) Share premium account i) RORER
Share premium represents the amount of the excess RiaBEREREDE RN
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par BFTERAEEENSRE -
value.

(ii) Share option reserve (i) BREGREE
The share option reserve represents the fair value of BREFEEBREBEZRSVS
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share MR FAC) MU ELE
options granted to employees of the Group LARR 0 B E 5 2 A 3RFT R 4R
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy IS BRERE T AEE
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in EEZRITHEERIMETE
note 4(s) to the consolidated financial statements. BERERE AFE -

(iii) Merger reserve (i) BOHHE
The merger reserve represents the difference AHREERERESEZEAER
between the nominal value of the shares issued by N E) LT D B ENE A R Y
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of EMfiBARBRAEE Z58 -

the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
group reorganisation.

(iv) Foreign currency translation reserve (iv) ER#E
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all ERRESRBLEGINER
foreign exchange differences arising from the PV MEREENEINEE
translation of the financial statements of foreign B ZREBRERE VR
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance K FE4QGDFrE & st R
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to I o

the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

36. RESERVES (Continued) 36. fHE(E)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) FHEEMEERE®H(E)
(v) Contributed surplus V) BARERR
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the REBEBOFARKERN
difference between the nominal value of shares of the —NAEFERBEESAK

subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value of
shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents gains/losses directly
reflect in equity resulted from change of equity
interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

(viii) Capital contribution

The amount represents the difference between
inception fair value and proceeds of non-interest
bearing loan from shareholder, which regarded as
capital contribution.
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Telefield Holdings Limited A&
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ERBEERZERRERARN
SETEMNMEQRGKRE R
TR 8 o

BB
2 7 5 5 7 D O 4 B 1
BB T EEEHE 5
BB A MR B IR
%508 -

(viii) ERHE

ZRREE NI A FEERE
PR e B E RS IR 2
HZERE - WRREE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “2020 Share
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations on 10 March 2020. Eligible participants
include the any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, business or joint venture partner or
adviser of or contractor of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries. The 2020 Share Scheme became effective on 10
March 2020 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for 10 years from that date.

During the year, the Group adopted a new share option scheme
(the “2023 Share Scheme”) and 2023 Share Award Plan on 8
June 2023 and terminated the 2020 Share Option Scheme. Upon
the 2023 Share Option Scheme is effective from 8 June 2023,
the 2020 Share Option Scheme of the Company is terminated
without prejudice to the rights and benefits of and attached to
any outstanding options which have been granted under the

2020 Share Option Scheme.

The 2023 Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants include Employee Participant; Related
Entity Participant; and Service Provider had made or may make
to the Group. Options may be granted to Eligible Participants
under the 2023 Share Option Scheme during the period of 10
years commencing on the effective date of the 2023 Share

Option Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
in respect of all share options and all share awards to be granted
under the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the 2023 Share Award
Plan of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption. The
maximum number of shares issuable under 2023 Share Option
Scheme and the 2023 Share Award Plan to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to

shareholders’ approval.

37.

PARS AR AR ELHE 2 ISP 3R
VAR # # H E P i T 2

RZZEZZTF=A+H ARAEIT—
HERETE (22 FRM5TE D)
URETRREAREELE 2 KINED
BERIZAERSEE - BEIRSHEER
BARRERARGBNBAR ZEME
£ EE BH HEAL TP #
JER - RIE - EBR XA ERHEIEAA
SARE —_E_ZFERMAEN T
TEF=ZATHEHES BIESTTUE
HEE] - BRIBRZ AR+ FHEREAE
e

FR AEBR-_Z-=FAN\AK
M—IEHERETE (2B ==FRH
SEDR T =FRMDERTE - I
BIE— T FERENE - — T ==
FEEEFIN - E-_=FXANBLE
Wik AABN T - BEBIETE
BERIE BRHERE_S_SFH
F% 42 51 B 5 S AL (o 18 R T {55 O BE AR A
FIT B A5 B R 1 ] Fl) 2 o

R CFREREAER AR
itE BERARREAERSEE (R
HREEZ2EE BYRERSHEELRE
REM)HAREFLAARELNE
Bl- B-F_=—FBREFILER A
RRIOFA - AIRE T _=FHRE
ENEERSEERTREE -

BEAAT —_SE_=—FERESEIR
T =FRODEBEF B HTE BR
N PTE R RZB A TR AR A F RO
B A TBBBARRLEMAAH
BEEITADEI10% © FEE(RI 1218 A HARS -
BE—_FE-_=FEREFEIR-_F ==
FRADEFRE A MZTINEREE
RBEEZHITHRG LR ~EBBA
RIEEMEEE TR A 1% o (E{aHE
UL PR B B R R — PR AR
RHOERFAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE=—F=_=F+-A=+—HIFE

STk

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a Connected Person of the Company or
any of his/her/its Associate must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of
the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Board, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option,
which must be a Business Day; (ii) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of the Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of the grant,
when applicable.

37.

AR RER 2 R (58)
VAR i A R iRt 81 (4])

BRI ARBZHEAN LT RREF 2 (5
BALZBRE  BRESAQEEILIF
MITEFRE - 1IN EARTARQF
TERRIBUFRTEFTIREZAE
BB A LT ZBRER T @A SRR
ZAERIE R - BB QA BTN
01% HMABREFSIRERNKRRERAE £
HEE

AERARRELRBRARAMRE
AREARBT  WEARTEREZ
BN BEREBREZOTEHHESE
E o YRR BRERFSG RN TERE
HEEEE L B HES0F 2 B
ZETEIZIHA (MABRT)ER -

BREZTEEREFEET TR
ERATZ&EE  ORMORIRTLER
BRERM(AREXH)EBMEA
WERAEFZWHE - (HBEHRBEERR
AR AE A AT A EE X A AR
PR RmERME 2 FHRMEZRF
TR R>DRORE LR Bz EE
A ©

262 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F B e R 2R BR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BTSRRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—T=_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. AR AER 2N (E)
VARG 4t RS AR ST 2 (48)

BRETHTHAEAZAEREINER
REe EREZHER -

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings

Share options outstanding at the 31 December 2023 and 2022 RZEBE_=ZFR_E__F+=A
have the following expiry dates and exercise prices: EJr* B ERITEEBRESERB R
TEENT -

Number of

Original Adjusted adjusted

exercise  exercise price share options

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price  (Noteaandb) (Noteaandb)

SHEE

LRRAEE  WESA

RUAH GRS TEsE RiTREE  (HiEakb) (WiEakb)

HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 December 2023
RZZZZF+ZA=t-H
Directors
Bz

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2021 28 July 2021t0 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,328
ZFZ-5-AZ+N\B ZEZ-§-A=fN\HE ZEZ-FHAZTN\RE
ZEC-FHAZTtA ZEZRF-BZTtA

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327
“Z--#-f-+)\B ZEZ-F-RA-f/\HE ZRIZE-RZTN\HE
ZFZZF-AZt4A ZEZNE-AZTtH

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2022 28 July 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327
—E--F-f=+\B ZE--F-f=f/\BZ ZEZZEEAZTN\RE
ZECCFEACTHA ZEZRF-BZTtA

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327
ZRZ-5-AZtN\A ZEBEZ-§-A-f/\HZE ZRZZE-RZTN\HE
ZEZ=F-ACTH R RF-RZTA

3 November 2023 3 November 2023-2 November 2024 3 November 2024102 November 2026 25 25 3,450,582

S ZEC-F+-AZRE-ZMET-AZA SoMF+-A=AEZEAFT-AZA
Employees
EE

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2021 28 July 2021to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,328 (note ¢)

ZEZ-F-BZft\B ZZZ-F-F-f/\RZ ZEZ-FtHAZTN\HE (MizEC)
ZEZ-FLAZttA ZEZNE-AZTtH

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 444,262
—E--F-f=+\B ZE=-F-F=f/\BZ ZEZZF-AZN\RE
ZEIZF-AZttH ZEZRF-BZTtA

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2022 28 July 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327 (note ¢)

ZEZ-F-BZft\B ZZZ-F-F-f/\RZ ZRICEEAZTN\HE (MizEC)
e Si= i S ol R RF-RZTA

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 444,263
ZFZ-5-AZtN\B ZEZ-§-AZfN\HE ZEZ=F-AZN\RE
ZRI=F-A-ttH ZERINE-ACTtH

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2024 28 January 2024 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 466,404
“Z--#-f-+)\B ZEZ-F-RA-f/\HE ZRIRE-AZTN\HE
‘T‘Elﬁ A-ttA R RF-RZTeA

28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2025 28 January 2025 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 466,403
ZFZ-5-AZtN\B ZEZ-§-AZfN\HE “ToRE-AZT/\BE
ZECRF-RZTtA ZEZRF-BZTtA

3 November 2023 3 November 2023-2 November 2024 3 November 2024 to 2 November 2026 25 25 12,244,500

ZBRZ=%1-A=H ZRIZFT-RZRECTIMET-AZR ZECRET-AZHEZECAFT-AZH
18,316,378
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. AR BER 2R (E)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) LARS S E BT REET 8 (B)
Number of
Original Adjusted adjusted
exercise exercise price share options
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price (Note a) (Notea)
]
ERETRE BREYA
RiLBH GRE TREE RiTEE GED) (GEE)
HK$ HK$
B BT
At 31 December 2022
RZZ2ZZ#+ZA=+-8
Directors
Bz
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2021 28 July 2021t0 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,666,546
ZZo-E-AZf\B ZZ--§-A-f/\BZ T -EtA-T/\BE
I S o S = ZEINE-RZttR
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,666,546
“Z--#-fZ+)\B ZEZ-F-fA-f/\HE _7__¢ AZtN\BZE
‘T“ﬁ AZttA AE-AZTtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 July 2022 28Ju\y 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,666,546
ZE--%-A=t\B ZB=-F-A=-f)\RZ T CELA-T/\BE
R CELACTHA ZEINE-RZHtR
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 2,666,546
“Z--#-AZ+)\B ZEZ-F-A-f/\HE ZRIZE-RZTN\HE
“Eo=E-fo 4R R RF-RZTA
Employees
&8
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4,063,322
“Z--#-AZ+)\B ZEZ-F-A-f/\HE _7__¢ AZtN\BZE
‘T“ﬁ A=t+tA ZAE-AZttA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 4,063,322
ZFZ-5-AZ+N\B ZEZ-§-AZfN\HE ZEZ=F-AZN\RE
ZECZE-fZT4H _z_Ai AZttHR
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2024 28 January 2024 to 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,094,982
“Z--#-fZ+)\B ZEZ-F-RA-f/\HE _7_E¢ AZtN\BZE
:z:mi A=T+H ZAE-AZttA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021-27 January 2025 28 January 2025 to0 27 January 2026 0.359 0.346 6,094,981
ZFZ-5-AZ+N\B ZEZ-§-AZfN\HE ZEZRE-AZTN\RE
SToFE-A- A ZERINE-AZTtH
30982791
Note a:  The number of share options granted and the relevant exercise price are Wiita BEEHERESE RBBTEEDERFE
adjusted to reflect the effect of rights issue on 23 November 2021. URMHR=Z=—F+— A= +=AHBRHTE -
Note b: The number of share options granted, and the relevant exercise price are Hizth: BEHHERESE AT EEDEL R
adjusted to reflect the effect of shares consolidation as defined in note 34(d). LA BB 3 34() FT R E I IR 15 A BrHO 28 o
Note c: Mr. Wang Guo Zhen resigned as director of the Company and recruited as key Wiatc: TEEAEBEIAAGEETERATTEE A

management personnel.

8o
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37.

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Details of the movement of share options during the year are as

PABAD IR E R 2 (3K (R
VAR AE IR A iR 8 (4R)
RERNBREZSFBEHRALT

2022
—E-CF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average

BTN O] Y CI (IR (-0 share options — exercise price

follows:
Number of
B EE A
HK$°000
FET
Outstanding at the beginning of REHRITE
the year 30,982,791
Granted during the year RERRH 15,695,082
Adjustment upon share consideration  RFERRDE F2FEE
during the year (27,884,512)
Lapsed during the year RER LK (476,983)
Exercise of share options PAF 1T A
during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year RERBRITE 18,316,378
Exercisable at the end of the year NERATE 1,688,490

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.73 years (2022: 3.08
years) and the adjusted exercise prices of HK$2.64 (2022:
HK$0.346). The estimated fair value of the options granted in
2023 is approximately HK$12,285,000 (2022: HK$2,788,000).
During the year, approximately HK$2,684,000 (2022:
HK$4,713,000) recognised in profit or loss and correspondingly to
share option reserve.

L S Jilli: B2
TEE EEbe e TEE
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
T#T TR TR

36,315,883 0.346
53,328,000 0.106
(5,333,09;) 0.346_3
(53,328,000) 0.106
30,982,791 0.346
12,062,960 0.346

FAEE R 8 R 1T {58 B I ) hn e S 19 FR 64k
EHNFEHR2IZF(ZT = :308
F) KBRABITFEER264B (T
THF03468TL) c ZEZ=FHET
B AR A 4 5T 2 1B 49 &12,285,000 7%
TT(ZZF = =4 :2,788,000/87T) ° INF
A #726840008 (=T = = F:
4,713,000 7 7T ) 72 18 7 2 48 FE 72 B R 4
EEPRER -
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the binomial option
pricing model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

37.

PARBR AR IR 2R 2 (3% (4R

VAR i A R iRt 81 (4])
ZEAFERA B EERAG
B BRGABENT

2023 2022
=== e

—_—= —_—=

Weighted average share price I (B
Weighted average exercise price hniEFEHITEE
Expected volatility TEER R IR
Expected life T8 HAF Hf

Risk free rate 1 [ B 7 &
Expected dividend yield TEHAR B %

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price in the relevant periods
matching expected time to exercise prior to the dates of grant.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
the Group’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

2.5 0.106

2.5 0.106
126.39% 137.21%

2 years 2 years &
4.16% 2.87%

0% 0%

EHIRIE B B At E AR A IR ER R
HIMHE SR IRETE @ ZKRER TR
HI R e TR HRTT (R B AR U B - AL R R
RrEME RO REASEN&EMGE
LA (TERF LT REER
ENFEFELAE -
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a)

Disposal of a subsidiary — Link-Asia Medtech Investment
Limited

On 31 January 2022, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell its 100% equity interests in Link-Asia
Medtech Investment to an individual third party at a total
consideration of HK$1. The disposal was completed on 31
January 2022. Net liabilities of Link-Asia Medtech
Investment Limited at the date of disposal were as follows:

38.

=

el

I

(@

BREMERME

LEMBAR - BREBERKR
EHRAT

RZEBEZZF—HA=+—H0 &2
AEF T —HEERZE Bt K
AAIRAEBREBERIEEBR
ARz EHEREETFE=ZHE
A BRERBT - HEFHEE
RZEZ—F—A=+—HBZK -
REERH ROBENERER

AR ZBEFBUT
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 4,750
Right-of-use-assets FREEE 6.666
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE -« me REAMERFUE 2,028
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A K H A B FRE (66)
Lease liabilities HEBE (7,007)
Amount due to the Company JERF AN B FRTE (8,151)
Net liabilities disposed of BELEABEFE (1,780)
Gain of disposal the subsidiary: HENB AT
Consideration received by cash BYRIRERE -
Net liabilities disposed of BEREaEFE (1,780)
Gain on disposal HEW R 1,780
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEAMRESRAFEE
Cash consideration received BUIRERE ="

The consideration was HK$1, which was fully settled during the year

ended 31 December 2022.

RERBLT ERBEE-T ==
+TZA=T—BILFEERELS -
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

()

©

Disposal of an associates — Shanghai Rongshu Business
Consulting Co., Ltd.

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose of all its entire 49% equity interest in
Rongshu to the controlling shareholder of the associate
with a consideration of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,443,000). The Group completed the
disposal of 49% equity interest in Rongshu on 7 March
2023 as the agreement condition has been fulfilled. The
Group received RMB5,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,117,000) and RMB3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,353,000) during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2021, respectively. The
remaining consideration of RMB6,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,973,000) had not been received as at
31 December 2023.

Deregistration of a subsidiary — Huanya Shengke
(Shanghai) Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd.

An indirectly owned, subsidiary, Huanya Shengke
(Shanghai)Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd deregistered on
2 June 2023.

38.

¥

A

(o)

©

fe= A
/

=

REnERME(E)

HE—MBEAT - LERER
BHNERAR

RZIE-_—F=ZA=-+=H" 4%
BiTvRMHEBZERBE  UARK
15,000,000 7T (#H% 78 #716,443,000
FETL) BB M B R B AR AR AR
RHEERBENDE 49% AR -
HRRZEIEGEENK - AEBER
ZEZ=F=AEHEXNHERE
EMA%EiE - BE-_T=-=F
+ZA=+—HR=ZE=—F+=
A=+—BIEFE  A&EEH R
B A B #5500,0007T (R E R4
6,117,000 % 7T) & A K8 3,000,000
JC(FB & R #13,353,000 70 ) ° B
—E-=F+-A=+—H" EXk
W B F &R (B A R 86,500,000 7T
(FEE 72 496,973,000%87T) °

S -ENBAT - BIER(F
) B ER AR AT

—EEEENNE AR @ IREE
BHES) BRI ERAARN
TR =FRNA-BiEH-
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

©

Deregistration of a subsidiary — Huanya Shengke
(Shanghai) Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd (Continued)

Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the
calculation of the gain on de-registration of a subsidiary,

meEReRERMEE)

el

(0 HEHE-FEMBAR —RIEM(L
B EMBEERE AR QR (B)
PR EBE R BE 2 FBA RN
—FMB AR 2 a2 st ERED

are disclosed below: T
HK$'000
FET
Right-of-use assets FREEE 337
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE -« e REAMERFOE 101
Accruals and other payables TEIR B R H AR A (186)
Lease liabilities HEA®E (384)
Foreign currency translation reserve b H A 12
Net liabilities of deregistration FHARETE (120)

Gain of deregistration of a subsidiary M B AR 2 W
Cash arising on deregistration HHELECRE -
Net liabilities of deregistration HIHAREER (120)
Gain of deregistration of a subsidiary MM B ARz W 120

Net cash inflow arising on deregistration:
Cash received

HEHEENREIRATFRE
SR E -

(d) Major non-cash transactions

() EBHFRERSH

Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during
the year of approximately HK$1,995,000 (2022:
HK$6,671,000) were financed by lease liabilities of new
lease agreements.

FRNABETAREEREERED
1,995,000 L ( Z & = = F -
6,671,000 % 7T ) Y EE =
WS B EEA -
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 38, #ZelRan=ExMaTF (8)
FLOWS (Continued)
(e) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (e) RMEEHELE-BEHE
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities $‘§llﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬂﬁF$ZE%E@
arising from financing activities, including both cashand ~ # 9 BREASKIEESEE B
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing HURTER BERETHEENE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future & AAZAEREASHRNER
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated mE RASEMNGEHRESRER
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing PoBEAREEBCHASRE -
activities.
Lease Bonds
liabilities Borrowings payable
HEaE BE ERES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT FHET
As at 1 January 2022 R_E__F—HF—H 58,589 614 2,000
Addition HE 6,671 - -
Cashflows BEnR= (20,046) 13,000 (2,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE B R B (BYaF 38(a))

(note 38(a)) (7,007) - -
Interest expenses FEFX 3,076 - -
Reassessment (note 19) EHEAE (MfaE19) (1,069) - -
Exchange difference PE X A= (2,704) (49) -
As at 31 December 2022 and RZZT__F+_A

1 January 2023 —t+—HEE-=F

—H—H 37,510 13,565 -
Addition BE 1,995 - -
Cashflows Hemns (18,578) (8,700) -
Deregistration of a subsidiary 3L —EMB A 7

(note 38(c)) (Bta£ 38(c)) (384) - -
Interest expenses FEMRAX 2,112 - -
Exchange difference PE =R (759) 16) -
As at 31 December 2023 RoB—=%&

+=A=+—H 21,896 4,849 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HBEZ—_F=

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

=F+=A=t+—BILFE

STATEMENT OF CASH

38.

reReRERMEE)

IR
FLOWS (Continued)
()  Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases () MHEBRSRERTHNSHEBEUT
comprise the following: 217
2023 2022
—=E—= =T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within operating cash flows WERSREN 3,907 4,252
Within financing cash flows MEREREA 16,466 16,970
20,373 21,222
These amounts relate to the following; ZESTHEUATRBERR :
2023 2022
—_=E_= —=F-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Lease rental paid ENEERS 20,373 21,222
39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. HABE
The Group and the Company did not have any significant RERB LA NR) W] EASNAREE °
contingent liabilities.
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40, BARIE

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

REERRERRNERALEMT -

Plant and machinery
Contracted but not yet incurred

BRIAMEREL

2023 2022
—_ZE_= T

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

554
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Al

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) with one of the suppliers of an
overseas subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was
disposed on 7 October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of
US$2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,300,000),
which represents a trade balance under dispute between the
Disposed Subsidiary and the supplier. The supplier subsequently
sold the trade balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,100,000). In this regards, as at 31
December 2021, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the
sum limited to US$650,000 subject to the full payment of the
final settlement effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued a counter guarantee to
indemnify the Group for any loss in relation to the Guarantee.
The management of the Group after taking legal advise are of
the opinion that it is highly unlikely that liabilities will be brought
against the Group on the above matter.

41,

B HERE L
RZEBEZ=FR_ZT__F+ZA
=t+—H AEEHERZZE—RF+
ARtBAREZEINMBEAT(TE HEH
Baal) zEh—2HERERARER
ERITZER) HEBEINE& K
2,600,000 2 7T, (#8 & 7 920,300,000 /8
TO)ZFIE - B R EWE AT EZ M
FERzFREPEH  BREERES L
BEOERTE=F -

RZZ—+F DHEMHBARBESE
= EN R TER -+ 9 BB 51650,000
T (FAE R 45100,00087T)  Fhitt
F RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H" 'K
EEEAMKRENEREELRA
650,000 7T RFELHEMBRARE
BB MR FMBEFIEmE -

EHEMBRAREMARRELRE
R ABMZERZEMBRRBRAFR
HAERSE - AEEZEEEREIVE
RERRAR  AEE LKA Lt
SEASEERAE -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

42.

ESTRS

BEaMBHRRE i T RENRES
RBRAEHRI > REERFRERES
BIATRS :

2023 2022
—g—= —E-—

—_=<—= —_—<——

HK$°000 HK$000
FET THBTT

Amounts due from directors (note) JE Uk EE B 7aE (FRE)
Amount due from a key management B —RZEEBEEABR

personnel (note)

Amount due to a director (note) JERt — R EEZIE (M)

T8 (ML)

3,878 536

149

Note: The amounts represent a balance, which is unsecured, interest-free bearing and
repayment on demand.

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid
during the year and set out in note 15.

43. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024.

43.

Hiat: ZESRERE BEN RERAKERE

TREEEKRENHFHNAIARREER
FREINHBME) FBEHNMFEDS °

HERR S SRR

FEEeON - -_NME=A_-+/\Bi#t
R TBHRE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AT HHRE

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2023 are those set out in the audited financial
statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

AEEEE-_ZT_=F+-_A=+—HLEFE
MEEEBERASEER _ZE-_=F1+=A
=+ HWOGRAEE AERERIREEZX
ISR A o

ATEMEY TERERZIBHRERAOEND

statements.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2 T _F —T_-F _—ZT_TF _TNF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHEL FTAET THEL
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 501,999 529,251 675,523 595,023 629,948
Cost of sales SHEM AR (365,132) (427,855) (530,635) (440,311) (494,100)
Gross profit EF 136,867 101,396 144,888 154,712 135,842
Other income, other gains and losses ELABU A « Efth iz
KR 21,985 16,321 25,512 9,642 16,327
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHEAX (37,988) (29,988) (29,232) (56,317) (28,829)
Administrative expenses THER CENZOY  (105,039)  (154,230)  (178,158)  (179,414)
Other operating expenses Hife e B (20,695) (27,056) (27,619) (82,076) (100,405)
Profit (loss) from operations KERF (F8) 11,393 (44,366) (40,681) (152,197) (156,479)
Share of profits (losses) of associates JE{LEEE D B F| (E518) - - 1,098 (12,622) -
Finance costs BMERAK (3,065) (4,051) (4,169) (4,928) (6,809)
Profit (loss) before tax BRBLADER (B518) 8,328 (48,417) (43,752)  (169,747)  (163,288)
Income tax (expense) credit R (A Ee (3,163) (3,592) (3,395) (3,323) (1,300)
Profit (loss) for the year from BEREER
continuing operation FERF (FE) (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)  (164,588)
(Loss) profit for the year from ERIEEEEK
discontinued operations FE(BR)&A - - - (14,739)
Profit (loss) for the year FEERRN (FB) (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)  (179,327)
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AFMBHE

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Total assets

Total ligbilities

Non-controlling interests

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
et T —4F —T-—4F —T-FTF —TAF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FTET FAT TET
AT & A

KAREB A 5,257 (54,042) (46,397)  (173,052)  (171,735)
R (92) 2,033 (750) (18) (7,592)
5,165 (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)  (179,327)

BE  BERFERER
EEBE 776,418 659,233 677,978 657,405 734,840
BiEBE CLyALRY  (297217)  (311,980) (361471  (323.827)
JEE R (2,062) (2,154) (121) (472) -
486,663 359,862 365,877 295,462 411,013

Note:

above.

The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31
December 2019. The results of the disposed subsidiaries and associates for the year
presented have been reclassified for separate disclosure as discontinued operations

Mt AEERBE-—T-NAF+t-A=t-HLEFELES
THBRRIMRBERR - CHEMBARREE QTR
2IFENEEEENOR MR EXBIKRBERER

IHREET -
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